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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

Date: 03/18/2014 

Report of: IIcl ___ _ Office: FBIHQ-INSD 

~) CaseID#: 

(U~ Title: 

297-HQ-A1271699-D 

SHOOTING INCIDENT REVIEW 
REPORT OF SHOOTING INCIDENT 
TAMPA FIELD OFFICE, ORLANDO RESIDENT AGENCY 
05/22/2013 

(U//~ Investigative Period: 05/22/2013 - 03/14/2014 

(U//~ Reference: E-mail on 05/22/2013 from Tampa Field Office A/SAd 

... 
____________ ___,I ___ ___, 

I lt0 . 

(U//F~) Synopsis: 

(U~ Report of a shooting incident which occurred oh 05/22/2013 involvin ------. 
lbragim Abdulbakiyevich Todashev (Todashev) and FBI Boston (BS Field Office A ent 

,__ _______ ........i] Massachusetts State Police (MSP) Troopers and 
.__ ________ rand FBI Tampa (TP) Task Force Officer (TFO) ________ f 

the Orlando Police Department (OPD). 

(U/~) Details: 

(U/ .Lli=Q:f:!P) On 04/21/2013, after the Boston Marathon bombing, the TP Orlando 
Resident Agency (ORA) received an immediate lead regarding Todashev. The lead referenced 
telephonic contact between Todashey and Boston Marathon bombing suspect Tamerlan 
Tsamaev. TP ORA TFOI lalong with another TP ORA FBI Agent conducted an interview 

· of Todashev on 04/21/2013. The interview was initially conducted at Todashev's residence and 
then was moved to the OPD. The purpose of this interview was to identify the nature of the 
relationship between Todashev and Tsamaev. During the interview, Todashev stated he had 
trained as a Mixed Martial Arts (MMA) fighter with Tsarnaev _in Boston. Todashev voluntarily 
provided his DNA and signed consent to search forms for his computer and five cellular 
telephones. On 04/23/2013, TP ORA initiated a Full Investigation (FI) on Todashev. 

(U//~ Todashev was a certified MMA fi]hter in both Florida and Massachusetts 
with a prior history of assault which was known to TP,.__ _____ ...... ~nd the MSP Troopers. 
He held a Florida State Boxing Commission license, number FED#: 129-225 with an expiration 
date of 08/08/2017, and a State of Florida, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 
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MMA Participant, license number PART4184, with an expiration date of 12/31/2012. In 
addition, Todashev held a Massachusetts - Department of Public Safety State Athletic 
Commission MMA Amateur License, number: A3105, with an expiration date of 07/18/2012. 
Information obtained from local law enforcement reports and a National Crime Information 
Center (NCIC) report documented Todashev's prior alleged involvement in violent interactions. 
Specifically, in a Boston Police Department (PD) report of an incident on 02/11/2010, Todashev 
was charged with Disorderly Person, Resisting Arrest, Reckless Driving, and Weaving. In an 
Osceola County Sheriffs Office (SO) statement dated 07/07/2012, Todashev was mentioned as a 
participant with another individual,I I in a Simple Battery incident 
involving the attack on an employee of the Ali Baba Hookah Cafe. Todashev was not arrested or 
charged in this incident. Most recently, an Orange County SO Incident Report of an incident on 
05/04/2013, stated Todashev was arrested for Aggravated Battery (causing bodily harm or 
disability to another), a Second Degree Felony. In addition, ~A fights if,volving Todashev 
were posted on YouTube and had been observed by TP, Agen ..._ ___ ...,and. the MSP 
Troopers. 

(U/~ Through BS's investigation, additional information was obtained indicating 
Todashev's possible involvement in a triple homicide in Waltham, Massachusetts on 09/11/2011. 

Based on this information, BS requested a second int:r: :bi:: was conductled by yo 
along with another TP ORA FBI Agent. Agent ~d Trooper observed I the mt!rview which was conducted at the OPD on 05/1~;~;_ : e interview strategy focused 

on establishing Todashev's timeline in the Boston area in September 2011 and his association 
with Tsarnaev. During the interview, Todashev provided information which indicated his 
presence in the Boston area on about 09/10/2011, as well as further clarification on his contacts. 
Todashev also mentioned a tentative plan to leave the country, however no date was provided. 

(U/;~::.~•gQ"j It was during this interview that TP contacted I 

(U/~ After the interview, TP obtained information indicating Todashev had 
tentative travel plans to return to Russia on 05/24/2013. Due to Todashev's possible departure 
from the U.S., CTD requested another interview for the purpose of solidifying Todashev's 
timeline in the Boston area in September 2011 and to subsequently cocfr T dashev with 
forensic evidence associated with the homicides. On 05/21/2013, TF arranged an 
· · w with Todashev for later that evening at OPD. While preparing or the interview, Agent 

and Troopers! land learned Todashev did not want to meet at the OPD 
uring his prior interview with the FBI. Howeyer, 

--------..-1-s_a_p-art...,......ment. Todashev's residence was an a artment with a 
standalone address o~ !Orlando, Florida. A en supervisor 
had been briefed the interview would take place at OPD. TFO ...... __ .... supervisor was also 
briefed the interview would take place at OPD; however, was su sequently informed the 
interview location changed to Todashev's residence. 
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(U//~ For the 05/21/2013 Todashev interview, no operational or arrest plan was 
documented and there was no plan in place to arrest Todashev. In addition, no communications 
plan was established to provide operational updates to the appropriate FBI personnel on the 
progress of the interview. 

(U//~le jaking ~rrangements for the interview and due to the change in 
venue, TroopersL__jmd riefly discussed recording Todashev's interview. Both 
Troopers mentioned the recording devices try both~possessed. On the way to the interview, the 
MSP Troopers, Agen~ I and TFO riefly discussed whether Florida was a one 
or two party consent state. No decision was made to record the interview. SIRT later 
determined Florida is a two party consent state with a law enforcement exception. 

·......-..:=::.....:;On O /21/2013, at approximately 7:35 p.m., TFd IAgen~ .... ___ ..... 
and met in the arking lot of Todashev's residence with Todashev 

and his frien Todashev led the MSP Troopers and Agent 
I linto his apartment while TFO...._ _ ____. ho had no involvement in the Waltham 
homicide investigations, remained outside of the apartment with Todashev's frien~.,.------,,--' 
Prior to entering Todashev's apartment, the law enforcement officer's observed an image of an 
AK-4 7 at the top of T odashev' s front door. TFd !provided perimeter security for the 
duration of the interview. 

(U/~) TP had surveillance coverage on Todashev on the evening of 05/21/2013, 
from 4 p.m. to midnight. The surveillance team was in the vicinity of Todashev's residence 
throughout the evening and spot checked Todashev's parking lot for a s~ecific vehicle associated 
with Todashev. At approximately 7:45 p.m., two unknown males (TFO,..___....,kmd! I . 
were observed in Todashev's parking lot near said vehicle, At approximately 11 p.m., the 
vehicle departed the parking lot and traveled to a gas station before returning to the same parking 
lot. Surveillance was terminated at midnight. 

(U~OUc::q Todashev's residence was a two-level apartment with a separate entrance. 
The ground floor consisted of two rooms, a living room and a kitchen separated by a counter 
which permitted viewing from one room into the other. A small hallway next to the kitchen 
connected the apartment entrance to the living room. A sliding glass door was located at the rear 
of the living room which provided access to a common area behind the residence. A single 
stairway in the living room led to the upstairs loft and bathroom. Hanging on the stairwell waU 
in the living room was a metal sword. The approximate overall inner dimensions for the ground 
floor were 14'5" by 32'2". 

(U//~) Upon entering the apartment, Agen~ hook a seat, on the second 
stair ste; which I led up to the loft. T roope<l bat in a folding chair in the living room and 
Troope stood against the stairwell wall, also in the living room. Todashev sat on the 
floor next to a bed located in the comer of the living room, ad·acent to the sliding glass door. 
This was directly across from Trooper! •nd to Agent front left. Trooper 

!conducted the interview with occasional support from Trooper._ _ ___,and Agent ------.1 
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~ Shortly after entering Todashev's apartment, unbeknownst to the others, 
TrooperLJturned on his small portable MSP audio recording device concealed in his left 
breast pocket. The interview began almost immediately and Todashev was described as calm, 
articulate, and not excited or agitated. Approximately 20 minutes into the interview, Trooper 

___ ... ~emembered he had a personal JVC digital recorder in his bag. He decided to tum it on 
and placed it on the table after he deleted some of his family videos to make room to rec~ 
interview. This was also done unbeknownst to the others. As Todashev talked, Trooper L___J 
continued to check the recorder and had to delete additional family videos on two occasions to 
make more room to record. The first portion of the interview was also deleted in order to ensure 
there was enough room to record once the conversation focused on the Waltham murders. 

(U/~ Throughout the duration of the interview, Todashev was free to move 
around his apartment and allowed to smoke cigarettes, open and close the sliding glass door for 
ventilation, and take both water and restroom breaks. Approximately two hours into the 
interview, the questioning transitioned from Todashev's timeline in Boston and his contacts to 
his involvement with the triple homicide. 

IIt was at this point, at approximrely 10:~5 p.m., when Trooper 
I !Provided Todashev with his Miranda warning. Troope erbally provided the ---warning to Todashev and had him sign the Miranda warning form (FD-395). This was captured 

via Troope~ !personal JVC digital recorder. Todashev waved~- d continued to 
answer questions. At approximately the same time, Todashev's friend vided TFO 

I !with Todashev's cellular telephone and wallet and left the area. TFO texted the 
MSP Troopers he had possession of Todashev's property. TrooperJ ~xited the residence 
to retrieve the property from TFOI I and then returned to the mterv1ew. 

(U~ During the interview, Trooped ~rovided updates to Middlesex 
Assistant District Attorney (ADA)I I At approximately 10:30 p.m., ADA 

~eaded into his office in anticipation of drafting an indictment based on the information 
,...._p_ro_v-id_e_d ..... by Trooper I I 

(U/.,,,,__~"-'-J.....:.A:!..:?.sh~o~rt time after Todashev signed the Miranda warning, the JVC battery 
failed and Troo e sed his ersonal cellular tele hone to continue recordin the 
interview. 

.__ ____________ ____,Todashev noticed Troo er ecording with his 
cellular ~ne and requested it be turned off. Trooper,__ _ _,complied. A short time later, 
TrooperLJplaced his personal cellular telephone on the dining room table and resumed 
recording. 

(U/~) The recordings, both via Trooped !personal JVC digital recorder and 
his personal cellular telephone, captured Todashev's description of both Tsamaev's and 
Todashev's participation in the triple homicide. In summary,! I 
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(U//~ Once the questionin focused on his resence in the Boston area during the 
time of the Waltham homicide ____________________ ____, 

Todashev's demeanor changed. Todashev began to chain smoke, repeatedly glanced around the· 
room, appeared fidgety, and looked as if he was stretching his arms and legs as he spoke. 

U// With the slidin lass door o en in the room Todashev sat on the bed and 
At ----------------,---,--------;::::::=::::::;------,-------t 

approximately 11 :55 p.m., Troope ........,._ .... ·nformed )roope,

1

1 land Agen ____ e 
was going to step outside for a few minutes. Trooper then stepped outside in order to call 
the Boston ADA and provide an update. 

(U//~) ,___ ________ .....,.... _____ ....,Agen~ lmoved 
from his position on the stairs to Troope .___..,..... ... seat on the Tding c~r in front of the white 
table, approximately six to seven feet from Todashev. Trooper stayed standing in his 
original location next to the stairwell wall. As seen on Trooper cellular telephone video 
recording, Todashevl lbegan to smoke and drink water as he scanned the 
room. Todashev asked for more cigarettes even though a nearly full pack was on the table in 
front of him. Trooper! ~elieved Todashev was attempting to get him to leave the room. 

(U//~) ,.__ ______________ _...., Trooper .... ! _ ____. 
turned off his ersonal cell hone recordin device in order to use his phone and review his 
messa es. Troo er eard Todashev ask A ent 

-----------,-----,--- Agen ____ responded stating, ... ! __ ... !Shortly 
afterward, Todashev asked to go to the restroom. 

(U~ For safety purposes, just like prior trips to the restroom Troo er d 
Agen~-~..-------.--'accompaniedTodashev upstairs to the restroom. Agen ,__ __ ,.......was at the 
top of the stairs and Trooper I rras standing on the stairs about halfway up w ere he could 
maintain visual contact. Both were alert due to Todashev's deliberate behavior as Todashev was 
moving extremely slow, looking around, and did not appear to have to use the bathroom. 
Troopei !and Agentl lmade eye contact and gestured to one another to be aware 
of the threat Todashev posed. 

(U/~ When Todashev finished in the restroom. Troope~ !proceeded down 
the stairs first, followed by Todashev, and then by Agent! I Due to Todashev's 
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noticeable change in behavior, Trooper I ~ecame concerned Todashev might try to flee or 
attack them. Trooper! rreviously observed Todashev looking around at the metal sword 
and described Todashev as moving extremely slowly as ifhe was calculating in his mind. As 
Trooperl._ __ ... ~umed toward the main room, he grabbed the sword which was hanging on the 
wall, and as a safety precaution, quickly placed the sword beqind..a...$oe rack next to the kitchen 
entrance. Although Todashev was still on the stairs, TrooperL_Jbelieved Todashev saw him 
hide the sword due to his reflection in a large mirror positioned at the bottom of the stairway. 
This mirror appeared to be sr;gicall olaced to view the hallway leading to the front dom from 
the stairs. Based on Trooper raining and experience, he was alert and felt the need to 
remove the sword hanging on t e apartment wall as Todashev's demeanor had changed. 

(U/~ Todashev returned to his position sittin on the bed._l ________ ...., 
.__ __________________ ___. Agent returned to sit in the 

folding chair directly in front of the white table and Todashev. Trooper.__ _ __,changed position 
and sat on the stairs, while Troope~._ _ ____,~emained outside. 

(U//~) Due to Todashev's continued methodical behavior, Trooperl7ent a 
text message at 12:03 a.m. on 05/22/2013 to Agen~ pnd Trooper[=::=J··~fu-;;h read: 
"Be on guard. He is in vulnerable rositiol to do something bad. Be on guard now. I see him 
looking around at times." Trooper was on his cell phone at the time and was unaware of 
the incoming text message. Troope~._ __ ...,!waited for Agen BlackBerry to ':ding" 
to signify the receipt of the text message. After about a minute, Trooper ___ till did not hear 
the "ding" so he looked down to check his cell phone to make sure the text went through. 

Almost immediate! at 12:04 a.m. 
.__ ______________ ......., _______ ___.while Agent ____ _. as 

reading his noteP.ad and Trooper,..__ _ _.was looking at his phone for the text message. 
~ly, Agen~ lheard a loud noise and felt a blow to the back of his head. Trooper 
L__jwas looking at his personal cell phone when he heard what he described as a roaring 
noise and looked up to see the1table between Todashev and Agen~ !flying toward 

Agen• I TodasheT hadl flippek~ the table he was writing oj and Trooped I 
believed it had struck Agent in the head. Trooper immediately yelled._! __ _. 
(Trooperl ~o alert Trooper here was trouble inside the residence. Agent · 
I lwho was knocked partially off his chair, saw Todashev run past him towards the 
kitchen and tried to grab Todashev's legs but missed. Agen~ lhen stood up, drew his 
weapon, and ga~· · mmands more than once to Todashev, to include, "sh,ow me your 
hands!" Agent bserved Trooper! Ito his left but was focused on Todashev and 
not aware if Troope had drawn his weapon. 

(U/~ Agend ~tood in the middle of the living room and saw Todashev 
in the kitchen.and descri~ed what he heard as the sound of metal banging together like knives in 
a hurried fashion. Agen~.,,._ ,-,-----'~ontinued to give verbal commands for T odashev to show 
his hands, but Todashev did no! compl}° Agentl !believed Todashev had retrieved 
some type of weapon. Trooper hen observed Todashev run toward the front door near 
the kitchen area and began quickly scanning left to right as if looking for something. Trooper 

I !thought Todashev was trying to flee and stepped towards him .. As Todashev reached the 
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front door he grabbed a red pole, approximately five-feet long, which was leaning against the 
wall near the front door. Trooperl .... __ ...,liescribed Todashev's movements as incredibly quick, 
"like something in a movie." As he grabbed the pole, Todashev turned quickly, ran at full syeed 
from the entryway directly toward Trooped hnd Agent! I Agent! saw 
Todashev's left shoulder drop as he came through the entryway toward the living room where he 
and Trooperl were standing. Again knowing of Todashev's prior arrests and status as a 
MMA fighter, A~entl ~o.ted tha! it was obvious to ~im that T?dashev was i~ an attack 
posture. Troope lsaw Todashev raise the pole above his head With both hands ma 
fighting position, and charge toward Troopd I Trooped lraised his arms in front of 
his face to protect himself and stated he believed Todashev was, "going to impale me with the 
pole." 

U//F~ In the split second available to assess the threat posed by Todashev, Agent 
.----...__,was in fear for his life and the life of Trooped I In order to stop this threat, 

.-------- shot Todashev with two volleys of three to four shots per volley. Trooper 
___ ,eard the shots fired from the first volley off to his right and saw Todashev make two 
twisting movements with ~is torso which indicated he had been impacted by the shots. Both 
Trooped !and Agent !observed Todashev fall and almost immediately re-
establish his footing, suddenl lun in towards them at an angle. Still in fear for his and the 
MSP Trooper's life, Agent shot" Todashev with a second volley of three or four shots 
in order to stop the threat. Troope heard the shots and saw Todashev fall to the ground, 
face first. At that \ime hath 4gent,__ __ __,and Trooped believed the threat had been 
eliminated. Agen~ .... ___ ... ]fired seven shots in total using his Bureau issued Glock 23, all of 
which hit Todashev with the fatal shots entering his head and heart. 

(U/~ Immediately after the second volley of shots, Tr~ope~eard Agent 
-i ---------.!yell "call 911." Trooper! ~urned to look toward Agentc==:Jand saw he 

was bleeding profusely from his head. Trooper I ppplied pressure to a large laceration near 
the back of Agen~._ ___ ___,~ead. 

(~ Troo~erJ lw~o was still outside on his cell phone with ADA! . 
heard n_oise commg from i~side the resid~nce followed by se~eral gunshots. Troopd jdid 
not notice anyone~side, dropped his notes, and drew his weapon. Trooperl .... -,--_ ___.! 
followed by TFOL_____jannounced8and came through the front door of the apartment 
which was not locked. When Trooper entered the apartment, he saw Todashev lying on 
the floor. It was apparent to Trooper due to the multiple gunshots and lack of movement, 
that Todashev was dead. · 

B ~) Immediately after entry into the aRartment, Trooper LJaw Agent 
eeding from the head profusely. Troope~,____ _ _.ppplied pressure to Agent 
wound while Trooped ~hecked Todashev. Trooped µsed a rubber 

medical glove and checked Todashev for a carotid and ulnar pulse. Troope~ !was unable 
to locate a pulse at either location andTodashev's eyes were open and unblinking. Trooper 
I ~elieved Todashev was deceased and did not move his body further to keep from 
disturbing the scene. 
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(U//~ After entry, TFOI btepped back out of the doorway and called 
Emergency Medical Services at approximately 12:07 a.m. The Orlando Fire Department 
responded and after arriving on-scene pronounced Todashev dead. Agent I knd · 
Trooperr--7-vere taken to the hospital where A ent was treated for a large gash 

· on his h~h required nine staples. Trooper.___ .... sustained no injuries other than a 
temporary hearing impairment in his right ear due to the sound produced by the gunshots. 

(~ The SIRT was initially not aware of the audio and video recordings taken 
during the interview of Todashev on 05/21/2013. On 06/05/2013, Agentl ~dvised the 
SIRT of the existence of the recordings obtained by the MSP Troopers during the interview of 
Todashev. On 06/06/2013, the SIRT obtained the Todashev audio and video interview 
recordings from the MSP. Three recording devices were used by the MSP Troopers at various 
times during the interview. In total, the devices captured four recorded video segments, three 
with audio, and one without. The recordings captured various portions of the interview and 
confession of Todashev; however, none captured the shooting incident. Florida is a two-party 
consent state with a law enforcement exception. Therefore, the MSP Troopers, as law 
enforcement officers, were within authority t6 record Todashev without his consent. The 
Department of Justice (DOJ), Civil Rights Division concurs with this analysis and reviewed the 
audio and video recordings. 

: (U/~ On 06/13/~013, t~e SIRT re-interviewed Troopers __ l __ rnd I 
"regardmg the use of the recordmg devices. .__ __ _, 

E3
!..LP@~ On 07/24/2013J I Ins ector 
Assistant Inspector! !and DOJ Civil Right ... s_A_t_to_rn_e ........ __ __. 
travelled to Orlando and met with Chief Medical Examiner .__ _____ __.and 

Medical Examiner (ME) I Ito discuss the Autopsy Report of Todashev. 
Todashev was shot seven times and the entry and exit points of each bullet and angles of impact 
were fully discussed. Most importantly, the shots to Todashev's body were angled indicating a 
twisting, bending, or turning of the body at the time of entry. The shots included three to the left 
upper side of Todashev's torso, two to the middle right side of his back, one to the top left 
shoulder, and one to the left side of the crown of his head. Based on the wounds and the internal 
path of the bullets, it is likely Todashev was moving throughout the incident. I I 
advised the trajectory of the bullets through the body indicated the shooter was to the left of 
Todashev. In addition, the results of the autopsy were c~ with Todashev falling forward 
toward the shooter with head down. I ~ndL__Jalso indicated the shot to the 
head was likely one of the final shots as it was incapacitating.· 

· (U/~) I bdvised the trajectory of the head and shoulder wounds, the 
combination of the seven entrance wounds to include the paths of the bullets, were inconsistent 
with other possible scenarios. First, due to the extreme downward trajectory of the wounds to 
the head ("A") and upper shoulder ("B"), these wounds were inconsistent with the shooter being 
behind Todashev as if Todashev was running away. Rather, those extreme downward 
trajectories could have occurred when Todashev had his back to the shooter, only if: 1.) 
Todashev leaned backwards at a severe angle toward the shooter; or 2.) Todashev was standing 
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below a shooter who was above him; or 3.) Todashev was shot while both he and the shooter 
were prone on the floor. 

(UtrFeUQ;, On 07/25/2013, a meeting was held with A/USA I ~inth Judicial 
Circuit of Florida, State Attorney Jeffrey Ashton, and the State Attorney's Office Investigator 
I I A full briefing of the shooting incident was provided by InspectoJ bnd 
disks/binders of the SIR T investigation were provided. The State Attorney expressed concern 
about backlash from the public once the ME Report was released, as it described shots to 
Todashev's back and advised he would conduct an independent review of the shooting. The­
State Attorney requested to re-interview the MSP Troopers and audio record those interviews. 

(U~j~:Q) The MSP Troopers were re-interviewed on 09/06/2013 by the State Attorney 
Investigator I These re-interviews did not provide any new substantive information. 
Observers to the interview included: MSP Command Staffl DOJ Civil Rights Division Attorney 
I I FBI Inspecto~ .... --___,~nd Assistant Inspector_ I 

(U/~ At the time of the SIRT, based on information provided by OPD, a decision 
was made by Inspecto~!-----------.........,,...pot to conduct a neighborhood canvass. Upon further 
discussion and review by FBIHQ Inspection Division, DOJ Civil Rights Division, and the State 
Attorney, a deci~ion was made ~t _interview~ despite the time period that had lapsed. On 
12/04/2013, Assistant Inspect01L __ f1ith the assistance of a TP ORA Agent conducted a 
neighborhood canvass of the residences surrounding! !Orlando, Florida, 
32819. Seventeen residences were approached, of which occupants of three residences described 
hearing shots fired around midnight. Of the three, one resident observed the lights on, the sliding 
glass door blinds open, and several males inside Todashev's residence. The resident thought this · 
was odd, because the blinds were never open. At approximately 12:00 a.m. on 05/22/2013, this 
resident heard four loud pops, followed by three additional pops. Although he/she could not see 
where the noise came from, he/she believed the individuals across the lake were doing 
construction, and looked out the window and observed several individuals "hovering" over 
something on the ground. This resident advised he/she did not call the police to report what was 
heard because he/she thought the noise was attributed to construction. 

(U~ Todashev was described as: 

Name: 
Aliases: 
Sex: 
Race: 
Date of Birth: 
Place of Birth: 
Height: 
Weight: 
Eyes:· 
Hair: 
SSAN: 
FBI number: 

Ibragim Abdulbakiyevich Todashev 
Ibrahim T odashev 
Male 
White 
09/22/1985 
Romania 
5' 10" 
165 
Brown 
Brown 
012-92-3661 
20549HD1 
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(U/~) Substantive Case Files: 

(U/~) 
(U/~ 

(U//~: 

. Case ID: 
Title: 

89B-TP-2886360 
IBRAGIM TODASrFV· 
SPECIAL AGENT_ 
May 22, 2013 ,.__ _______ ...., 

Case ID: 343G-BS-2902066 
Title:· (SUBJECTS) IBRAGIM TODASHEV; 

T AMERLAN TSARNAEV; UNSUB(S); 
(VICTIMS) BRENDEN MESS; RAPHAEL 
TEKKEN; ERIK WEISSMAN; DOMESTIC 
POLICE COOPERATION; HOMICIDE; 
09/11/2011 

(U) All enclosures have been made part of this report and are identified in the enclosed 
table of contents. 

A. (U/~) Administrative: 

(U//~) The Shooting Incident Review Team (SIRT) was comprised of the following 
personnel: 

Inspector-in-Charge (IIC)._l ......,...=---,,--......,... ......... 1 ______ __, 

Assistant Inspector (AI)/Lead Team Leader! 
Al/Team Leaded I --------
Assistant Inspector-in-Place (AIIP1 ~:~1 I ------
(U//~ FBI Laboratory Shooting Reconstruction Team (LSRT) Personnel: 

Team Leader SS~ ~ Evidence Response Team Unit 
Photographer! I-Operational Projects Unit, Photographic Operations and 

Field Photo:raph~ Programs · 
Visual Information Specialist! j- Operational Projects Unit, Digital 

Mapping an Documentation 

B. (U//~ Shooting Incident Review Protocol: 

(U) All members of the SIRT reviewed the 

ro oco. 
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(U/~ On 05/22/2013, ncl lspoke with TP ORA A.SAC Robert C. Geeslin 
who was acting on behalf of A/SACI Ito arrange logistics prior to arriving in TP 
ORA. On 05/22/2013, the SIRT traveled to TP ORA and upon arriving, IICI land the 
SIR T members went directly to the scene of the incident, I I Orlando, 
Florida. U on arrivin , the SIRT was greeted by ASAC Robert C. Geeslin, TP ERT Coordinator 

r----,.. ____ ----1BS SSAl._ _____ ____,~d MSP Detective Lieutenant! I 
The SIRT was briefed by ASAC Geeslin and TP ERT Coordinator! I The SIRT ---observed the scene through the front and rear door of the Todashev's residence as TP ERT 

described the scene. 

(U~ On 05/23/2013, nc·I ~et with Agen~ ITFO~he 
two MSP Troopers, their respective attorneys, and management personnel to explaiktherevrew 
process and protocols. 

(U/~ Four Signed Sworn Statement SSS) were taken, two from the Agent 
directly involved in the shooting, Agen nd two from the MSP Trooper who 
witnessed the shooting, Trooper t er 1~s, events, and observations were 
documented via FD-302s. Troope ___ .. FOL__J ASAC Geeslin, and SS~ 

I ~ere allowed to read their FD-302s to confirm the accuracy of the informa._t..,..io_n_p_r_o_v.,..id.,...e ..... d. 
Neither the FD-644 (Warning and Assurance to Employee Requested to Provide Information on 
a Voluntary Basis) nor FD-645 (Warning and Assurance to Employee Required to Provide 
Information) were utilized. The SSSs and interviews of witnesses were conducted voluntarily. 

(U) An FD-927 (Warning and Assurance to Employee-Requested to Provide Information 
Following a Shooting Incident) was executed by Agentl ~or his SSS. 

(U~ On 05/24/2013, nq IASAC Geeslin, and nJ lheld a 
conference call with the United States Attorney's Office (USAOj lofthe __ ..., 

~e District of Florida, and provided a briefing of the Agent-involved shooting. USAO._! _ ___, 
L_jprovided a verbal declination of prosecution to nq .... __ ____,~egarding the Agent-involved 

shooting incident which occurred on 05/22/2013. . 

(U~ On 05/24/2013, IIC I I ASAC Geeslin, and TL! ~eld a 
conference call with the Ninth Judicial Circuit of Florida State Attorney Jeffrey Ashton. State 
Attorney Ashton requested the documentation of the facts from the Shooting Incident Response 
Review. State Attorney Ashton verbally advised the actions taken by the FBI on 05/22/2013, to 
include ~e of deadly force, were justified based on the verbal briefing provided by IIC 

I J State Attorney Ashton wanted the opportunity to review the documentation before 
providing the letter of declination and concluded with a verbal declination of prosecution. He 
advised a formal declination letter would be issued once all the facts are reviewed. 

(U) On 05/24/2013, ncl ~elephonically contacted Attorneyl,.__ ____ _. 
Special Legal Counsel, Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division and provided an update on 
the investigation. 
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(U) On 05/24/2013, nd konducted an out brief with ASAC Geeslin and 
explained the ensuing steps of the SIRT process. IIC I !also provided an out brief to 
Agentl land the MSP Troopers to explain the ensuing steps of the SIRT process. 

C. (U~ Personnel Involved in the Shooting: 

1. BS S fired weapon) 
2. MSP Trooper 
3. MSP Trooper 
4. TP TFO and O_...r.,..la_n....,d_o __ P .... D-,-M ..... aster Police Office~._ ____ __. 

D. (U//~ Firearms Training: 

(U//~ The BS Field Office provided qualification records for Agent._! ___ _.! A 
review indicated he was current on his firearms qualification certification. 

E. (U//~ Deadly Force Training: 

(U//~ FBI Deadly Force Policy Training was conducted on 10/23/2012 during legal 
training provided to the BS personnel. BS SSAI I Chief Division Counsel, 
advised SS~r SSA! I Associate Division Counsel were the presenters of 

· this training,~ was memorialized via Electronic Communication dated 01/17/2013. A 
review of the attendance records conducted by ssAOndicated Agentl lwas present 
for the training conducted on 10/23/2012. 

F. (U//~) Use Of Body Armor and Law Enforcement Identifiers: 

(U//~) As the Agent and MSP Troopers were conducting an interview of Todashev 
and not participating in a planned law enforcement action, none of them were wearing 
identifiable ballistic body armor, nor were FBI or law enforcement identifiers displayed. 
However, all personnel verbally identified themselves as FBI and law enforcement officers to 
Todashev upon their initial arrival at his residence for the interview. 

G. (U/~) Criminal History: 

(U//~) The NCIC criminal history check contained two entries for Todashev which 
documented two arrests for offenses including aggravated battery, disorderly conduct, and 
resisting arrest. At the time of the NCIC query on 05/23/2013, no active arrest warrants were 
located for Todashev. 

(U/~ In addition, three police reports were obtained for Todashev. A Boston PD 
incident report on Todashev referenced a traffic altercation on 02/11/2010 in which Todashev 
was charged with Disorderly Person, Resisting Arrest, Reckless Driving, and Weaving. An 
Osceola County SO incident report on Todashev referenced an assault at the Ali Baba Hookah 
Bar on 07/07/2012. Although not arrested or charged by the SO, Todashev was associated with 
another individual lwho was charged and arrested for Tampering with a 
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Victim by Threat regarding this incident. An Orange County SO incident report on Todashev 
dated 05/04/2013 indicated Todashev was arrested for Aggravated Battery (causing bodily harm 
or disability to another), a Second Degree Felony, for an incident involving two other individuals 
over a parking space. 

H. (U//~ Laboratory Division Reports: 

(U~ The scene of the shooting was secured and processed by the TP Field Office 
ERTand the Laporatory Shooting Reconstruction Team (LRST) to include use of Total Station. 

~ TP ER T collected seven shell casings in the vicinity of where Agent 
L___jfired his weapon. Six projectiles were recovered from the body of Todashev during 
the medical examination. One projectile was recovered from the scene. This projectile was 
believed to have fallen out of the body of Todashev with bodily fluids as the body was being 
turned over by those assisting the Medical Examiner. FBI TP Total Station and FBI Laboratory 
Laser Scanning and Spherical Photography were completed at the shooting scene. No Trajectory 
Analysis was completed as all projectiles entered the body of Todashev and had no other impact 
points. 

(U//~ Recovered evidence items requiring laboratory testing were as follows: 

1B7 -
1B8 -
1B9 -
lBl0 -
1Bl 1-
1B12 -
1B13-
1Bl-
1B23-
1B22 -

Firearms/Toolmarks Unit Analysis 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One expended .40 Smith & Wesson caliber cartridge casing 
One projectile, .40/10mm caliber copper jacketed hollow point bullet 
Six projectiles, .40/10mm caliber copper jacketed hollow point bullets 
Smith & Wesson .40 caliber Glock pistol, Model 23, Serial Number NMS622 

(U~ Two laboratory reports, dated 07/07/2013 and 09/30/2013, stated the seven 
projectiles and seven cartridge cases were identified as having been fired from the barrel of the 
Glock #23, Serial NMS622. This was the bureau issued weapon of Agent! I 

1B2 -
·1B3 -
IB14 -

Latent Fingerprint Unit Analysis 
Notebook 
Sword 
Broom stick 

(U//~ One laboratory report, dated 10/24/2013, stated one latent fingerprint of value 
was detected on the sword and was not a fingerprint of Todashev, Agentl k,r either of 
the MSP Troopers. No latent prints of value were detected on the broom stick. Due to the many 
factors involved in the deposition of a friction ridge print, neither the absence of a friction ridge 
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print on evidence nor the exclusion of a friction ridge print with a given source disassociate that 
source from having touched the evidence. One laboratory report, dated 11/13/2013, stated six 
latent fingerprints and two latent palm prints of value were detected on the notebook containing 
the handwritten statement of Todashev. The latent fingerprints and a latent palm print were 
identified as fingerprints and a palm print of Todashev. The remaining latent palm print was not 
a palm print of Todashev. No other major case prints were provided for analysis. 

Nuclear DNA Unit Anal sis 
1B4 -
1B32 -
1B33 -
IBIS -
1B16 -
1Bl8 -

Suit coat (Trooper 
White table .__ _ __. 
Shelf from white table 
Dark pants (Agen~.-·----, 
Dark coat (Agen~._ _ __, __ ....__..,.. 
White dress shirt (Ageni .... ___ ___. 

(U/~ One laboratory report, dated 09/18/2013, stated blood was identified on the 
suit coat (Trooper! I the white table, and the shelf from the white table. The typing 
results were positive for male DNA on all three items and Todashev was excluded as a potential 
contributor. The laboratory obtained Agent I I DNA for comparison from the bloodied 
suit Agen~ lwar~wearing d~ing the incident. A second laboratory report, dated 
10/28/2013, stated Agent was the major contributor and source of the DNA obtained 
from the suit coat (Troope the white table, and the shelf from the white table. 

Operational Projects Unit 

· (U/~ Additionally, the Operational Projects Unit provided demonstrative imagery and 
graphics of the scene. 

I. (U//1;:e:UQ) Medic~I Report: 

FBI Agent Involved in the Shooting: SAi.__ ______ _, 

(U//~ On 05/22/2013, Agent I lwas transported to Florida Hospital South, 
601 East Rollins Street, Orlando, Florida to receive treatment from an injury to the head which 
he sustained in an Agent involved shooting incident. Agentl lwas examined and 
received nine staples to close the wound slightly left of center on the rear of his head. Agent 

I lwas treated and released from the hospital. 

Subject: Ibragim Todashev 

(U//~ On 05/22/2013 at 12:05 a.m., the Orlando Fire Department received 
notification via TFo! ~ho requested police at=ry Medical ServiGes (EMS) 
assistance. TFOI tated an FBI Agent (Agen had been struck in the head 
with a blunt object and a subject (Todashev) had beens ot mu 1ple times and was down. At 
12:07 a.m., a 911 operator directed several responding police and EMS responders to the scene. 
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(U/~) The Orlando Fire Department Ambulance arrived at the scene and described 
Todashev as dead at the scene. 

J. (U//~ Coroner's Report: 

(U//~ A copy of the Medical Examiner's report to include the investigative and 
autopsy report for Case number: ME13-00623, on Ibragim Todashev was obtained from the 
Nint · · · Examiner's Office via TP on 07/09/2013 Qn 07(24(20) 3 the STBI aiong 
with DOJ Civil Ri hts Division, met with MEI . and 
the Deputy ChiefME.__ ______ ...,to obtain clarification on the ME's report. 

(U/~ A review determined the cause ofTodashev's death was "multiple gunshot 
wounds." Gunshot wound "A" to the head was almost straight down and probably 
incapacitating, meaning no purposeful movement after sustaining the injury. Gunshot wound 
"B" to the back torso (upper shoulder, left of spine) was at a similar angle to the head shot and 
hit the spine. This shot could have caused Todashev to drop, but was not incapacitating. The 
ME stated, during these shots Todashev was diagonal to the shooter and would haye been bent 
forward. Gunshot wounds "A" and "B" likely occurred as Todashev was falling down. The ME 
stated Gunshot wound "C" to the back torso (upper right shoulder) was not incapacitating. The 
ME stated the bullet traveled left to right, back to front and downward. Gunshot wound "D" to 
the back torso (lower right shoulder) was consistent with Gunshot wound "C," however it was at 
a sharper angle and was not incapacitating. The ME stated the bullet traveled left to right, back 
to front and downward. Gunshot wounds "C" and "D" likely occurred as Todashev was twisting 
his body. Gunshot wounds "E," "F," and "G" in the left side torso and left arm were likely 
grouped, consistent with the shooter being at an angle to Todashev. These three shots made 
seven holes; two hit Todashev's heart and would have been incapacitating, although not 
immediately. The ME stated the results of the autopsy were consistent with Todashev falling 
forward toward the shooter with his head down. There was no evidence of close range firing in 
any of the gunshot wounds, no stipulating and no close contact shots. · 

(~ rodashev sustained seven gunshot wounds. Five projectiles were recovered 
in the torso, and one was recovered in the head. One projectile exited the body and was 
recovered at the scene. Toxicology results revealed a presence of nicotine and caffeine. A full 
copy of the ME's report is included in the appendix section. 

K. (U//~) Civil Rights Division: 

(U//~_ On 05/31/2013, nd lcontactedl I special Legal 
Counsel,L>OJ and briefed him ~n the shooting inrdent Sjre the initial briefing, the SIR T has 
continued to provide information as requested by._ ____ _._ On 10/01/2013J !advised 
DOJ has agreed to issue a report on their decision which is being drafted. As of the date of this 
report, a prosecutive opinion for the DOJ, Civil Rights Division, was pending. 
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Tampa Field Office, Orlando Residence Agency 
Shooting Incident Review 

Executive· Summary 

(U//F8\:ro) On 04/21/2013, after the Boston Marathon bombing, Tampa (TP) Field 
Office, Orlafido ~sidence Agency (ORA) received an immediate lead regarding Ibragim 
Todashev. The lead referenced telephonic contact between Todashev and Boston Marathon 
bombing suspect, Tamerlan Tsamaev. TP ORA initiated a Full Investigation on Todashev and 
conducted interviews regarding Todashev's possible involvement in a triple homicide in 
Walt.\l,W,.......,..:.1,,1,1~-w..i.i..i..i..i.On 09/11/2011. Following initial interviews Roston CB~) Field Office 
A en Massachusetts State Police C:f:4SP) Troopers I ~d I I 

and TP Task Force Officer (TFO)I ]planned an interview ofTodashev in .....,......,..........,... 
Orlando, Florida at Todashev's apartment. 

(U/~) On 05/21/2013, at approximately 7:35 p.m., Agen~------~d the MSP 
Troopers conducted the interview of Todashev at his residence. The purpose of the interview 
was to solidify Todashev's timeline in the Boston area in September 2011 and to subsequently 
confront Todashev with forensic evidence associated with the homicides. TFO! !remained 
outside the apartment providing security for the duration of the interview. 

(U//~) After Todashev was confronted re ardin his involvement in the tri le 
homicide, Todashev stated 

I IA~t-th_i_s_p-01-.n-t,-a-t-ap_p_r_o_xi_m_a-te_l_y_l_0_:2_5_p-.m-.,-T_ro_o_~----.---~ 

Todashev with his Miranda warning which was captured via T,til!lDf:rL __ _,1w:saitJ.a.L~~---. 
' . 

capture the shooting. 

U/ the interview, Todashev sat on a bed 

L-----r--"l-------------,-....,...----....,.....J At approximately 11 :55 p.m., 
Troope ......,....,...__. tepped outside in order to call the Boston Assiatrict Attorney. On 
Todashev's last restroom break, Agentl land Trooper ecame alert due to 
Todashev's deliberate behavior. Due to his concerns, Trooper moved a sword which was 
hanging on a wall, and quickly placed the sword behind a shoe rack next to the kitchen entrance. 
Trooped !believed Todashev saw him hide the sword due to Todashev's reflection in a 
large mirror strategically placed at the bottom of the stairway. Todashev returned to his position 

sitting on the bed! .---..... I 
(U//~) Due to Todashev's continued methodical behavior, Trooped lsent a 

text message at 12:03 a.m. to Agen~ land Trooper! !which re.ad: "Be on guard. 
He is in vulnerable position to do somethmg ba~. Re on gnar~ now. I see him looking around at 
times." Almost immediately at 12:04 a.m., Agentl _!heard a loud noise and felt a blow 
to the back of his head. Trooper! lwas looking at his personal cell phone when he heard a 
roaring noise and looked up to see the table between Todashev apd Agen~.__ __ _....lflying 
toward Agent! I Todashev ran past Agen~._ ___ ....,Jowards the kitchen and Agent 

I ~eatd the sound of metal banging together like knives in a hurried fashion. Agent 

03/20/2014 
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UNCLASSIFIED//FOl't"Q.LA€h\~NLY 

I lthen stood up, drew his weap1n, and gave verbal commands to Todashev, to include, 
"show je yo: rds!" Trooper immediately yell"'4 tTroope - ....... __,to alert 
Trooper here was trouble inside the residence. In the split sec v a e to assess the· 
threat posed y Todashev who was now armed with a red pole, Agent as in fear for 
his life and the life of Troopd I In order to stop this threat, Agen hot 
Todashev with two volleys of three to four shots per volley. Trooper .__.,.........,. 
from the first volley and saw Todashev make two twisting movements with his torso which 
indicated he had been impacted by the shots. Both Trooper! land Agentl I 
observed Todashev fall and almost immediately re-establish his footing, suddenlr lungmg 
towards them at an angle. Still in fear for his and the MSP Trooper's life, Agen( lshot 
Todashev with a second volley of three or four shots in order to stop the threat. 

UNCLASSIFIED//Folt lJJ..AP<CTisaf'NL Y . 
03/20/2014 
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FD-1085 UNCLASSIFIED 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FD-1085 
vl.2 

5-10-2013 
LESS LETHAL DEVICE/SHOOTING INCIDENT REPORT 

REPORT OF FIREARMS DISCHARGE OR USE OF A LESS LETHAL DEVICE BY SPECIAL AGENT(S), FBI EMPLOYEES, AND/OR 
ACCOMPANYING LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS. The incident must be reported to SIOC and Inspection Division Management, as soon as 
practicable, but no later than 48 hours after the incident has occurred. The FD-1085 must be completed and submitted by an ASAC, INSD TL or 
SSA within 30 days of the incident. 

Date of Report: 

5/24/2013 

Date of Incident: 

5/22/2013 
Time of Incident: 

12:04:00 AM 

Incident Administrative Case File Number 

Classification: 

279 
Office Code:· 

Name of Person Completing this Form: 

I tINSD) (FBI) 
Enter Last Name, First Name and click Firid 

Email: 

Position: 

INSD Team Leader 
Investigating Entity: 

INSD 

Type of Situation: 

Operational 

Planned Event Type: 

r- Arrest 

f- Surveillance 
,--
I CHS Meeting 

r· Bank Robbery 

! Undercover Operation 

Substantive Classification: 

I 
Tovestiaated Cri,~ Type: 

I -

r Search Warrant 

r Vehicle Stop 

17 Interview 

r Buy/Bust 

r Other 

REPORT INFORMATION 

Location of Incident: 

(" Headquarters ~' Field Office O Legat O Quantico 

Tampa 

ca·se Number: Subfile: 

Type of Incident: 

Deadly Force/Shooting Incident 

Type of Shooting Incident: 

Intentional 

Did another case originate as a result of this incident? 

C Yes 

(i No 

LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL DATA 

Provide the following for each Agent/Officer/Employee who discharged a weapon, used a less lethal device, or was injured or killed during this 
incident: 

Agent/Officer/Employee: Position/Title: 

l....._ ______________ 1····· -~=~ FBI-SA 
Full Name of Agency if not FE3_I Emp_I9x~e_: __ .. 

FBI 

Type of Agency: 
·; Federal 

Division Assigned: 

' (" Division 

lo 
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FD-1085 

Gender: 

(e Male 

1 Female 

Duty Status: 

(i On Duty 

! Off Duty 

UNCLASSIFIED 

(i'_ Field Office 

f° Legat 

Assigned Division: 
Boston 

EOD Date: ____ Years of Law Enforcement Experience: 

- ____ 111812008 _ l t? _____________ ·----·--·······-·--·--__J 

Gear used when incident occurred: Incident Summary: 

Ballistic Vest 

r Gas Mask 

r Ballistic Shield 

I Slung Long Gun 

Identifying Clothing 

···--··-········· ........ ······-····· --·-····-- -----=---===--;;-----:---:------
[While interviewing a subject SA as attacked by the subject i 
:who was a Mixed Martial Arts fighter. After S,....,:=======:..,.was struck to the I 
!ground the Subject ran into another room, S believed he was goinu 
tn find a jeapon, the subject then ran out of the room charging towards SA I _and his partner. The subject was non-compliant and SA! I 
Jdischa~ged h]s weapc,.n Ll.r:!~il the threat was_~!~_1_11inated. ·-·······---·------··· .................. . 

Was this person killed or injured during this incident: 

r· Yes 

Current Member of Tactical Team: 

(". Yes 

r. No C No 

Provide the following for every round or group of rounds fired by this shooter during this incident. If a shooter fired more than one weapon 
during the incident, repeat for every weapon used. A group of rounds is defined as any number of shots with the same weapon, grip, shooting 
position, and shooting technique. 

Owner of Weapon: 
Bureau/ Department 
Issued 

Weapon Make: 

Glock 

Weapon Drawn From: 

Hip Holster 

Ammo Type: 

Ammo Caliber/GauQe: 

Grip Used: 

Shooting Position: 

Distance Round Fired: 

~erial N.umber of Weapon Used: weapon Type: 

:NMS622 . Pistol . .,.__;---

IA't:apon _f3arre1Length: Caliber/Gauge:-···-· 

Weapon Malfunctioned: 

! Yes (i No 

Ammo Make: 

. 40 
-·--·' '··-··-·~··---------

Weapon Reloaded: 

C Yes r.1 No 

Ammo Weight: 

' 

Weapon Model: ___ _ 

123 

_
7 

Weapon Sight: 

.... J 

L.----·---•-· 

Ammo Design: 
-----------·---.Jr·--
\ ------------

Shooting Technique: 

Standing 

Number of Rounds Fired: 

7 
Where_t>.i_~-~9._u_~d Impact: 

··-.. ·-· ···-----·--.J 

Unknown 

Result of Rounds Fired: 

20 
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FD-1085 UNCLASSIFIED 

If a round by round accounting is not possible, please provide a summary describing the circumstances that render an accurate round by 
round accounting unknown. 

Incident Summary: 

As the Subject charg~cl-SftJ I he shot hi~-FBl·i~~ued Glock 23 three times. the subject dropped for 
a second then regained his strength and charged again at SA! I SA! !fired four more 
shots, the subject then dropped face down on the floor. 

SUBJECT DATA 

Please provide the following for each subject who was shot, injured, or who had a less lethal device 
used on them during this incident. 

Subject Name: 

Todashev __ Ibrag_irn. __ ... 
Was the subject known to be armed and dangerous prior to this 

incident: r Yes (i No 

Gender: (i'. Male 

(j Female 

Arrest History: (i Yes r No Brief summary of subject's criminal history: 
------------------------11Subject was a known Mixed Martial Arts I 

Check all crimes subject was arrested for: 

r.;-Assault 

r- Drugs 

Fugitive 

r Kidnapping 

Robbery 

r·· 
Terrorism ' 

' 
Unspecified 

Subject Condition: 

I Influence of Alcohol 

Influence of Drugs 

I Violent Non Compliant 

Subject armed: 

(' Yes 

(i No 

r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 

Crimes Against Children 

Fraud 

Gang 

Murder/ Attempted murder 

Sexual Assault 

Unspecified, violent 

Weapons Violation 

r Appeared Mentally Unstable 

P: None Noted 

Subject wore vest/body armor: (' Yes 

fighter. He had a history of violent confrontations i 
in Boston as well as in Florida. Subject was I 
involved in a road rage incident in Boston a's well I 

,as a fight in a Florida parking lot. Subject also ! 
!body slammed a manager of a Hookah Bar in I 
!Florida because he wanted a specific waitress to : 
lserve him. When the manager refused because i 
!the waitress was off her shift the subject ! 
lresponded by body slamming the individual to the i 
I ground. , 

i 
I 

! 
! 

~------·----·------·------------------·-·-·J 

Subject received medical treatment: 

(i, Yes 

3o 
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(e No 

Was this person injured or killed during this incident?: fi' Yes r No 

Height: ,5,
9

,, 
·-· 

·, 

J 
Weight: 'iEiO . . 

" -- - . " 

DOB: ~/fi{1985 

C No 

Injury Description: ____ _ 

1Multiple gun shot wounds to the body. 
I 
I 
i 

i 
I 
L--·-· 

Result of Incident: Death 

Cause of Injury Death: LEO 

Nature of injury/cause of death: 
i- -·-i Multiple gun shot wounds to the body. 

i 
I-·-·····-

INCIDENT DATA 
Number of LEOs present: !~~-~~ ·· 

Number of UCEs: l~~~-~ 

Provide all ZIP codes where this 
incident occurred: 2IP.S?d~: 

32819 

Did injury or death to any person other than a LEO/FBI Employee 
or Subject mentioned above occur as a result of this incident? 

r Yes (i No 

Number of Subjects: ione 
,--------------

Number of CHSs: [_nont::l __________________________ _j 

Incident Location: Cit; Indoors 

Type of Location: , 

~- Residence 
(to include single family home, 
row house, apartment, trailer 
home) 

r Hotel 

r Firing range 

r Watercraft 
(a seafaring vessel that is large 
enough to include an indoor 
environment) 

r Aircraft 

Lighting Conditions: 
Poor Artificial Light 

C Outdoors 

0 Large open $pace(warehouse, 
parking garage, convention center, 
mall, airport terminal) 

0 Office/Business 

(" Training facility 

C Motor Vehicle 

40 
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Form Classification: 

(i Unclassified (' Confidential ('. Secret 
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D, Special Agent!~--------- having been sworn by 

As~istant Inspector I land Assistant Inspector 

I who I know to be Supervisory Special Agents .__ __________ _ 
(SSAs) of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), hereby make 

the follow~ng voluntary statement. Present in the interview was 

FLEOA Attorney~! ____ ....,... __ ~ 

I have been advised this is an inquiry concerning the 

shooting and use of force incident which occurred on 

05/22/2013, atl ~----------~I Orlando, Florida 32819. 

I have read and signed a document entitled, "Warning and 

Assurance to Employee Requested to Provide Information Following 

A Shooting Incident." 

I entered on duty as a Special Agent (SA) of the FBI on 

11/08/2008. I was assigned to the Boston Field Office after 

completing New Agent's Training at Quantico, Virginia. I have 

served on Squad C-6, sincel~-------~l Prior to that 

assignment, I was assigned to Squad C-5 Economic Crimes. My 

responsibilities on Squad C-6 include the Violent Incident Crime 

Program. In addition to my primary duties, I also serve as a 

member of the Boston Field Office's Special Weapons and Tactics 

(SWAT) team, for which I was selected three years ago . 

.. Prior to my employment with the FBI, I was a Police Officer 

for the Oakland Police Department from~I ______ ___.I My l~o 
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Dnforcement experience includes hundreds of arrests and numerous 

high risk search warrants. 

I have received a variety of specialized training in the 

FBI, to include safe streets survival, breaching, specialized 

tactical, close quarter combat, and firearms. 

At the time of the operation, I was carrying my FBI-issued 

Glock 23, .40 caliber, with a chambered round and a fully loaded 

and topped off magazine with service ammunition. 

Approximately one week after the 04/15/2013 bombings in 

Boston, I was assigned to work with the Massachusetts State 

Police (MSP) on a triple homicide that occurred on 09/11/2011 in 

Waltham, Massachusetts, in which Ibragim Todashev was a suspect. 

My MSP partners were Trooper~l ______ ~lwho is a homicide 

expert, and Trooperl I who is a fugitive 

investigator. I was tasked to work with the Tampa Field Office, 

Orlando Resident Agency (ORA) to conduct an interview of 

Todashev about the homicide and any connections he may have to 

the Boston bombings on 04/15/2013. 

I studied the background of Todashev and had a very good 

understanding of how much training he had in Mixed Martial Arts 

(MMA) and wrestling. During our investigation, I personally 

viewed several of Todashev's MMA fights on YouTube. Various 

interviews of Todashev's associates also indicated that he was 

an adept wrestler, and haq competed in the sport for many years • 
2 
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D also understood that Todashev had been previously arrested in 

a road rage incident in Boston, Massachusetts, as well as an 

incident in Orlando, Florida. The arrest in Florida stemmed 

from a fight over a parking space in which Todashev fought with 

two individuals, one of which was knocked unconscious and lost 

several teeth. FBI Agents surveilling Todashev witnessed this 

event and relayed the details directly to me. On a scale of one 

to 10, I believed Todashev was an eight as far as his 

inclination and ability for physical violence. 

During the week of 05/13/2013, myself and the MSP Troopers 

traveled to the ORA to interview Todashev regarding his time in 

Boston around the date of the homicide, no direct questions of 

the crime were planned. Upon arrival we decided ORA Agent 

._ ________ land Task Force Officer (TFO) _l _______ lwould 

conduct the interview with Todashev since they had a rapport 

with him. The interview was conducted and we received pertinent 

information on the homicide and bombing investigations. 

Once back in Boston, I learned that Todashev had tentative 

travel plans to return to Russia on 05/24/2013. The TFO's and I 

were instructed to travel back to the ORA in order to interview 

Todashev regarding the triple homicide. We arrived on 

05/20/2013 and asked TFO_l ____ lto call Todashev to negotiate an 

interview. On 05/21/2013, TFol !convinced Todashev to meet 

with us. Todashev stated that he would not meet with us at 
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Dorlando Police Department as he did previously, and that if we 

wanted to meet, we had to come to him. Todashev eventually 

agreed to meet with us for one hour at his apartment. 

On 05/21/2013, at 7:30 PM, myself, the MSP Troopers, and 

TFo_l ____ lmet Todashev at his apartment in the parking lot. He 

was calm and respectful and led us to his apartment. I and the 

MSP Troopers went to the apartment and TFO _l ____ lremained 

outside in the parking lot. Prior to entering Todashev's 

apartment, we observed a large image of an AK-47 at the top of 

the front door. Todashev stated something to the effect that 

other Agents had previously observed the image, but that he 

could not remove it easily. Upon entering the apartment, 

Todashev asked us to remove our shoes and I noticed the room was 

very dark and hot. Todashev, turned on the kitchen light which 

dimly lit the entire first floor. There were no other light 

fixtures on the first floor that functioned. As I proceeded 

into the living room, I immediately noticed a sward hanging on 

the wall near the stairs. I was the first one in the room and I 

sat on the second stair step that led to a loft which was also 

unlit. Trooper D sat in a chair in the living room and 

Trooper_l _____ lstood against the stairwell wall. Todashev then 

opened the louver blinds covering the sliding glass door at the 

rear of the apartment's first floor. It was still light 

outside, so the interior lighting was improved, although stil • 
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Dimly lit. Todashev sat on the floor directly across from 

Trooper~l __ __,land in front of me to my left. 

At approximately 7:45 PM I started the interview by asking 

some indirect questions. At approximately 8:30 PM, Trooper 

._ __ ___.lstarted direct questioning of Todashev about his presence 

in Boston during the time of the triple homicide. During this 

portion of the interview Trooper~l----~~sked Todashev a direct 

question. It appeared Todashev did not like his tone and he 

replied "don't talk to me like that!" while pointing his finger 

directly at~I ____ _. At that point, I felt that Todashev's 

stress level was very high, and that the possibility for him to 

react in a physical way was increased. I based this on my 

training and experience and my personal knowledge of his 

demeanor and capabilities. As a result I was on guard for any 

precipitous change in his behavior. 

For the next three hours we continued to question Todashev 

in regards to the Waltham triple homicide. Todashev eventually 

alluded to the fact that he was going to tell us some 

information regarding the homicides, but that he first wanted to 

smoke a cigarette. Todashev also started twitching and looked 

very uncomfortable. Todashev signed a Miranda waiver form 

At the end of the questioning Trooper asked 
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Oodashev began to ask whether he would be able to smoke in jail, 

how much time he would get, and if he would get a deal. We made 

no comment back to him indicating in any fashion that he was 

going to be arrested or go to jail. However, I felt at this 

point that Todashev knew he was going to jail and he began to 

appear resigned to that fact. 

.__ _____________ ....,I when Trooper D left the apartment 

to make a phone call to the Middlesex Assistant District 

Attorney and I took his chair. Todashev moved to the edge of 

the bed 6 to 7 feet directly in front of me I 
Trooperl I stood in the same location against 

the wall. At this point Todashevl I had not· 

made any overt actions. 

Todashev then requested to use the restroom for the third 

or fourth time. It should be noted that on each prior trip to 

the bathroom, which was located at the top of the stairs, it 

created a heightened sense of awareness for our, safety. On this 

last trip to the bathroom, Todashev urinated only one quick 

burst, which led me to question whether he had to really go to 

the bathroom at all. Trooper_l ___ ___.land I made eye contact and 

gestured to one another that we need to be well aware of the 

threat Todashev posed in this position. The bathroom door was 

open, and Trooper~l ___ ___.land I were able to observe ·Todashev 

from the back. After he was done urinating, Todashev reacheo 
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Over to the sink with his left hand and turned on the water. He 

then ran the water over his left hand, slowly brought his hand 

in front of his face. While looking down, he let the water drip 

from his fingers into the toilet. He slowly opened and closed 
r 

his hand while waving his fingers. He repeated this process 

three to four times before slowly closing his fly and wiping his 

hands on the front of his pants. When he had finished in the 

bathroom, Trooper _! ___ __.land I went down the stairs with 

Todashev, where we returned to our previous positions. Todashev 

then resumed writing his statement. 

I was reading my notepad when I heard a loud noise and 

suddenly felt a blow to the back of my head. I was knocked 

partially off my chair, but I caught myself. I saw Todashev 

running past me and I tried to grab him. I removed my weapon 

from the holster and aimed the gun at Todashev who had run 

tbwards the kitchen. I shouted "show me your hands!n I saw 

Trooper_l _____ fo my left, but don't know if he had his weapon 

drawn. I stood in the middle of the room and saw Todashev 

partially in the kitchen. I continuously yelled for Todashev to 

show me his hands, but he did not comply. I heard the sound of 

metal banging together like knives in a very hurried fashion. I 

believed that Todashev was trying to retrieve a weapon, and that 

he was successful in doing s9 _____ __. 
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Oadashev instantly ran at full speed from the kitchen 

directly towards me and Trooper! ____ _. I saw Todashev's left 

shoulder drop as he rounded the corner from the kitchen to the 

living room. It was obvious to me that Todashev was in an 

attacking posture. In the split second available to me to 

assess the threat posed by Todashev's wholly non-compliant 

actions, I was in fear for my life and the life of Trooper 

-----~I There was no doubt in my mind that Todashev intended 

to kill both of us. In order to stop this threat, I shot 

Todashev three to four times. Todashev fell backwards, but did 

not go to the ground. He then re-established his footing and 

suddenly lunged again towards us. I then shot him 3 or 4 more 

times in order to stop his continuing deadly threat. This time 

Todashev fell to the ground face first and I believed the threat 

had been eliminated. 

Trooper! !applied first aid to my head and Trooper 

I and TFq I entered the room. I yelled that everything 

was okay. Trooper I !checked Todashev for a pulse, but 

could not locate one. TFO I ~alled 911 for medical 

assistance. Once the fire department arrived I was transported 

to the hospital for my head injury.I _____ _ 
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I have read the statement consisting of 9 pages and a 

diagram, and it is true and correct to the best of my 

recollection. 

Special Agent 

ca 
Sworn and subscribed before me this "2£_ day of May 2013, 

in Boston, Massachusetts. 

Assistant Inspector 

--~ Assistant Inspector 
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D Special Age_n_t_~I=============~----' having been sworn by 

Inspector-in-Charg~ !Assistant Inspector (AI) 1-----
~----~fnd AI I I who I know to be Supervisory 

Special Agents (SSAs) of the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

(FBI), hereby make the following voluntary statement. Also 

present during this telephonic interview was FLEOA Attorney 

I have been advised this is an inquiry concerning the 

shooting and use of force incident which occurred on 

05/22/2013, at~l __________ ____,I Orlando, Florida 32819. 

This interview focused on the existence of a consensual 

recording which included both audio and video. 

I previously read and signed a document entitled, "Warning 

and Assurance to Employee Requested to Provide Information 

Following A Shooting Incident." 

With respect to the recording of the interview of Ibragim 

Todashev, I want to make it clear I did not know the interview 

of Todashev was being recorded. My responses during my previous 

interview were focused on the shooting inquiry and the events 

which led up to me having to discharge my weapon. 

I remember we were informed approximately 30 minutes before 

the scheduled interview by Orlando Police Department (OPD) 
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Only at his home. Todashev did not want to meet at the OPD as 

he had done previously but at his apartment. I, and 

Massachusetts State Police (MSP) Troopers! land~I----~ 

._ _____ I hurried to the location of the interview. On the car 

ride to the interview OPD Officer_l ____ lcalled on the vehicle's 

Bluetooth system. During our discussion concerning the 

interview, one of the MSP Troopers asked if Florida was a one or 

two party recording state. Office~~-----lsaid it was a one 

party state but advised they may want to mirandize Todashev. I 

don't recall any other discussion concerning recording 

interviews. I do not recall anyone specifically saying the 

interview was going to be recorded or videotaped. We wanted to 

conduct the interview at the police station in order for it to 

be recorded but things changed quickly and in the rush, a 

determination about recording the interview was not made. 

During most of the interview of Todashev, I was sitting on 

the stairs and~l ________ ...... lwas standing to my left and 

behind me. I did not see any recording devices or video cameras 

at the time we interviewed Todashev. 

I recall at some point during the interview, Todashev said 

"don't do that" and turned to Troope~------

what Todashev was referring to and the interview 

2 
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0: first. learned the interview was recorded on Friday, May 

24, 2013, when I received a message from Trooper! lwho 

advised videos were uploaded to the Google cloud. Once I 

located the recordings on the computer I found there were both 

audio and video recordings of the interview of Todashev. I 

found out after the fact, Trooper_l ____ lhad used a high 

definition recorder which he had placed on the kitchen counter 

which eventually ran out of battery life, at which point Trooper 

______ I switched to his telephone to continue the recording. I 

also found out after returning to Boston that Trooper! lhad 

a recorder in his pocket during the interview. At the time of 

the interview, I did not know the interview was being recorded 

by anyone. 

Trooper_l _____ ladvised he had passed the videos to other 

individuals who had a need to know in his department. After 

this had happened, I did not think about the recording. When I 

returned to work after being off for the injury I received as a 

result of the assault on my person by Todashev, I was contacted 

by Ar_l ____ lwith some additional questions regarding my initial 

signed sworn statement. I mentioned to Ar_l ____ lsomething to 

the effect of, it would be nice if we released the video because 

it would refute many of the press' allegations. AL_l ____ lwas 

very surprised by this because he did not know about the video'~------
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D 
existence. He advised he would need a copy. I mentioned to AI 

._ __ __.I that I had only learned of the videos after the incident. 

I have read the statement consisting of four pages, and it 

is true and correct to the best 

Special Agent 

Sworn and subscribed before me this L/-tt. day of September 

2013, in Boston, Massachusetts. 

Inspector-In-Charge 

Assistant Inspector 
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DURING INTERVIEW 
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DURING HANDWRITTEN CONFESSION 
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DURING INCIDENT 
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DI, T rooper .... l .....-___ ....,I having been sworn by Assistant Inspector ._I ____ .... land 

Assistant Inspecto~._ _______ lwho I know to be Supervisory Special Agents (SSAs) of 

the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), hereby make the following voluntary statement. 

Also present during this interview was State Police Association of Massachusetts 
~ . 

Attorney._! ______ ...., 

I have been advised this is an inquiry concerning the shooting and use of force incident 

which occurred on 05/22/2013 arl._ _______ ....,!Orlando, Florida 32819. 

I entered on duty as a Trooper with the Massachusetts State Police (MSP) in June of 

2000. I am currently assigned to the Violent Fugitive Apprehension Section and have been since 

approximately 2007. 

Prior to my employment with the MSP, I was a Police Officer for the Mansfield, 

Massachusetts Police Department from May of 1996 to June of 2000. My total approximate law 

enforcement experience includes hundreds of arrests, interviews and numerous high risk search 

warrants. 

I have received a variety of law enforcement training to include search and rescue 

operations as well as patrol rifle usage. 

Approximately one month ago, I was notified by my supervisor that I was temporarily 

assigned to investigate any links between the Boston Marathon bombing suspects and a triple 

homicide which had occurred in Waltham, Massachusetts in September of 2011. I was assigned 

to work with Boston FBI Special Agent (SA) .... l _____ .... lin this assignment. Through 

investigation, Ibragim Todaschev was developed as a suspect in the homicide and as an associate 

of bombing subject Tamerlan Tsarnaev. MSP Trooper .... l ___ ....,lwas assigned to work the 

Waltham homicide and later joined SA!._ ___ .... land I in the investigation ofTodaschev. • 
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Oogether, the MSP and FBI formed a plan to travel to Orlando, Florida to interview 

Todaschev in an effort to place him in the Boston area at the time of the Waltham homicides. 

sAl .... ___ .... ~andled the coordination with the Orlando FBI office. We learned that one of the 

Orlando Task Force Officers (TFO)J .... ____ .... I was familiar with Todaschev from previous 

interviews and had rapport with him. 

In preparing for the interview!._ __ _.l .... l ___ _.pnd I discussed Todaschev's skills in 

Mixed Martial Arts and had viewed open-source videos of one of his fights. We had also learned 

of his recent violent altercation in an Orlando area parking lot, as well as Todaschev's criminal 

history which contained acts of violence. 

Due to our knowledge of Todaschev's physical abilities, the initial plan was to have him 

come to the Orlando Police Department for the interview; however, he refused. TFO ._I __ ... ~as 

able to arrange the interview at the apartment where Todaschev had be~n living with D 
I was advised by 

the FBI Todaschev had not been living at the apartment recently. Although we knew Todaschev 

was dangerous, we felt this interview was necessary as we had no physical evidence to link him 

to the homicide crime scene and we had information Todaschev was leaving the country in a 

matter of days. Based on these factors, we agreed to proceed with the interview at the apartment. 

We arrived at the apartment at approximately 7:30 PM and met with Todaschev. He 

invited us inside and asked that we remove our shoes, which we did. I visually scanned the room 

for weapons and noticed a large, Samurai type sword mounted on the wall near the entrance to 

the kitchen. I also noticed two crystal ash trays on the table near the bed which appeared to be 

heavy and could potentially be used as weapoG 
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One interview was conducted primarily by Trooper • .sAj land I 

participated at various times, mainly to refute various parts of Todaschev's story. TFo .... 1 ,...,....._ .... 

remained outside. During the course of the several-hour interview, Todaschev asked to go to the 

bathroom several times and was escorted each time by a member of the interview team: -

As the questioning became centered on Todaschev's presence in the Boston area during 

the time of the Waltham homicides and his involvement in the murders, his demeanor changed. 

Todaschev smoked a cigarette, he repeatedly looked aro~d the room, he became fidgety, and at 
.. . 

times appeared to be stretching his legs and arms as he spoke. 

Eventually, Todaschev began to acknowledge 
.__ ___ .=-====~--------------

,___ __ ___,I At about this time, I stepped out to speak with TF0 .... 1 ------~d to get Todaschev 

more cigarettes. I told TFOI lthat Todaschevl land askedLJto go 

around to the back of the apartment in case Todaschev tried to run out the back. At that time 

Todaschev began to chain smoke cigarettes. 

As Todaschev continued to .__ ____ ....,... ________ __.TrooperLJave 

him.__ _____________________ _.then left the room to go outside 

to make phone calls. Todaschev asked aboutsmpking and said he needed more cigarettes even 

though there was nearly a full pack on the table in front of him. I opined he was attempting to 

get me to leave the room. Shortly afterward, Todaschev again asked to go to the bathroom. SA 

.__ ___ _.I escorted T odaschev upstairs to the bathroom. I came halfway up the stairs to make 

sure I could maintain visual contact with S~ I On this trip to the bathroom I noticed 

that Tcidaschev was moving noticeably slow, almost methodical in his movements. 

When T odaschev was returning down the stairs, I was more and more concerned that he 

might try to flee or a~ack us. As I came down the stairs and turned toward the main room, o 
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Dabbed the sword from the wall and quickly stashed it in the kitchen to keep it from 

Todaschev's reach. Although Todaschev was still on the stairs, I believe he saw me hide the 

sword in the kitchen due to a large mirror positioned at the_ bottom of the stairway. 

I was sitting on the stairs across from SAi lwho was sitting in a chair directly 

across from Todaschev, who was sitting on the bed. A small table separated SAi land 

Todaschev. 

Due to Todaschev's continued erratic behavior, I sent a text message to SA._I ___ __, 

and Trooper I !which read: "Be on guard. He is in vulnerable position to do something bad. 

Be on guard now. I see him looking around at times." I was waiting for sA.j._ _____ _, 

BlackBerry to "ding" when my text came in but it didn't. After about a minute, I checked my 

phone to make sure the text went through. As I was looking at my phone, I heard a roaring 

noise, looked up and saw the table between Todaschev and SAi ~ise up and fly toward 

S~ I I immediately yelled! Ito alert TrooperOthere was trouble inside the 

residence. Todaschev ran from the bed toward the door near the kitchen area and began quickly 

scanning left to right as iflooking for something. He then darted toward the door, I thought he 

was trying to flee and began to give chase. As Todaschev reached the door he grabbed a red, 

approximately five-foot long pole that was leaning against the wall near the door. Todaschev 

moved incredibly quickly, almost like something in a movie. As he grabbed the pole, Todaschev 

turned quickly toward me and raised the pole above his head with both hands, which appeared to 

me to be a trained fighting position, and charged toward me as if he was going to impale me with 

the pole. I then heard shots fired off to my right and saw Todaschev make two movements 

which indicated to me he had been impacted by the shots. Todaschev fell to his hands and kneeO 
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On front of me and then, almost immediately: he sprang forward, coming up in a fighting stance. 

I heard more shots and Todaschev fell to the ground again, this time apparently incapacitated. 

Immediately after Todaschev fell the second time, I heard S.Al,_ ___ _.lyell "call 911." 

I turned to look toward sAl .... ___ _.!and saw he was bleeding profusely from the head. 

Troope~,_ _ ____,land TFODhad come to the residence door and I announced to them it was 

clear to come inside. I moved toward SA ... I ___ _.pnd applied pressure to a large laceration 

near the back of his head. When TrooperOcame in, I had him apply pressure_to SA 

.__ ___ __,!wound while I checked Todaschev. I was handed a rubber medical glove and I 

checked Todaschev for a carotid and ulnar pulse and was unable to locate one at either location. 

Todaschev's eyes were open and unblinking. I believed that Todaschev was deceased and did 

not move his body further to keep from disturbing the scene. 

Todaschev had several opportunities to escape during the altercation, but instead chose to 

obtain a weapon and attack. Todaschev's actions placed me in fear of imminent physical injury 

or even death. I am certain sAl._ ____ .... lactions saved me from serious physical injury or 

death.• . D 
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D have read the statement consisting of 6 pages and a diagram, and it is true and correct to 

the best of my recollection• 
I--

Trooper 
Massachusetts State Police 

Assistant Inspector 

Assistant Inspector 
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q' Trooper ... ! ____ ..... I having been sworn by Inspector-in-Charge_! _____ .... 

Assistant Inspector (AI) .... 1 ___ ____.lmd .... l ______ ___.I who I know to be Supervisory 

Special Agents (SSAs) of the Federal Bureau oflnvestigation (FBI), hereby make the following 

voluntary statement. Also present during this telephonic interview was State Police Association 

of Massachusetts Attorney .... 1 ---------~d .... l ____ __,pf the MSP Union I ___ ..... 

I have been advised this is an inquiry concerning the shooting and use of force incident 

which occurred on May 22, 2013 at .... I ________ lorlando, Florida 32819. 

This interview focused on the existence of a consensual recording of the interview of 

Ibragim Todashev which included both audio and video. 

With respect to the recordings of the interview with Todashev, I wish to make the 

following statement. I, Massachusetts State Police (MSP) Trooper! pnd FBI Special 

Agentl lwere making the initial plans to interview Todashev. As I recall, a lot 

of logistical movement was going on and we still had not established a place to conduct the 

interview. TrooperDAgen~ ______ ____.I and I were at our hotel and we had a brief 

discussing regarding the recording of the interview. 

Our original thought was T odashev would meet us at the Orlando Police Department 

(OPD), where he had been interviewed before, and the interviews were recorded. As the evening 

. drew closer, it became increasingly apparent that he did not want to meet with us. OPD Officer 

...._ _______ lmanaged to get Todashev to agree to meet with us at Todashev's apartment. 

I mentioned that I had my high-definition recorder in my bag. When we asked Officer._! __ __. 

what time the interview was scheduled to start, he replied right now, or words to that effeco 
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[Joop9._ __ ..... 1Agen~ .... ______ land I headed to Todashev's apartment. As we were 

driving to the location, we were talking to OfficerLJver the Bluetooth device oii the rental 

car. TrooperOasked OfficerDifFlorida was a one or two party recording state, to 

which he replied, it was a one party recording state but recommended we give Todashev his 

Miranda Rights if we were going to record anything. It is not uncommon for the MSP to record 

the interviews of subjects. I did not think much more about recording the interview. 

Once we arrived at Todashev's apartment, we quickly began the interview. Todashev 

was talking and all three of us were taking notes. It was at this time I remembered about the 

personal digital recorder in my bag. I walked over to the dining room table where I had placed 

my bag when we first arrived, and got the recorder out. I deleted some family videos from the 

recorder prior to turning it on in order to be able to record the interview. I then placed it upright 

on the table facing Todashev in full view. It was about 20 minutes into the interview when I 

started the recording. 

As Todashev was talking, I would walk over to check on the recorder. I watched to make 

sure it was still recording and at one point when it had stopped, the screen said the video card 

was full. I deleted some additional family videos and turned the recorder on again. After awhile, 

I again noticed the recorder had stopped recording due to lack of space to record. I again deleted 

additional family videos, as well as the first portion of the interview which contained what I 

thought was general conversation, nothing specific about the homicides. I then resumed 

recording when the conversation about the Waltham murders took place. My JVC recorder 

captured the Miranda Warning as Todashev walked right up to the recorder that was now placed 

on his kitchen counteO 

2 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
b7C 

TODASHEV-904 



Dt some point the battery failed and I pulled out my personal cellular telephone to record 

the interview. I was standing against the wall where the flag was located; and began to video 

with my Droid Razor cellular telephone. After a few minutes, Todashev looked in my direction 

and said "don't do that," or words to that effect. I turned off my cellular telephone. After 

sometime, I again began to record the interview with my cellular telephone. Todashev again said 

to turn it off, which I did. Later when Todashev took a cigarette break, I placed my cellular 

telephone on the dining room table and then resumed recording, while leaning my cellular phone 

upright against my bag, It remained there recording the interview until I needed to use it._! __ ...., 

While ... I __________ !no questions were being asked, I turned off my cellular 

telephone recording device in order to use my phone. It was then that I saw a text message had 

come from the Assistant District Attorney stating "Don't put him in custody until we get a 

warrant." I then displayed this message to Agen~._ _____ ____.I L,.l ________ ....1 

.__ ____ _.I I heard him ask Agent.__ ___________________ ___, 

.__ _______________________ _____. Agen~----

.__ ___ __,~esponded stating, .... ! _ ____.I Todashev asked to go to the bathroom and Agent 1-I __ _. 

L--------'~d I walked him up the stairs. Agent_l ______ lwas at the top of the 

stairs and I was standing on the stairs about halfway up where I could maintain visual contact. 

We were on alert due to Todashev's strange behavior. He was moving extremely slow and 

looking around. As I came back down the stairs, I grabbed the sword on the wall near the flag 

and moved it behind a rack at the kitchen. I presumed Todashev saw me move the sword due to 

a large mirror placed at the bottom of the stairs that was strategically placed where as to see the 

door and hallway. Todashev returned to his position sitting on the be~ ....ii...___ L...---------:_1 _ ___, 
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• q~ ______________ ...__ _ __,,I Agent=I ===========lwas sitting 

on a folding chair directly in front of Todashev. I moved back to the stairs. 

As I sat on the stairs, I began texting Trooper .... ! _ ____.twho was now outside) and Agent 

,__ _____ ....,~o alert them to the feeling I had about Todashev's strange and nervous 

behavior. I sent a text message to Trooper .... l __ pnd Agent .... l _____ ____,~o be on alert and 

on guard. It was while I was sitting on the stairs when Todashev flipped the coffee table. 

I did not mention the recordings in the initial interview because I was concentrating on 

the actual shooting incident itself. Furthermore, I was never asked. The recordings were made 

known to other people involved in the handling of this case. Also, the recordings were provided 

to District Attorney's Office the day after we arrived back in Massachusetts. Nothing was out of 

the ordinary, as MSP tends to record subject interviews. Had I known the Shooting Incident 

Review Team was not aware of the recordings, I would have told them. 

I have read the statement consisting of four pages, and it is true and correct to the best of 

my recollectioO 

Trooper 
Massachusetts State Police 

Sworn and subscribed before me this*~ day of September 2013, in Boston, 

Massachusetts. 

I 
Inspector- In-Charge 

Assistant Inspector 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 
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05/29/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of an 
Agent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013, at~I--------~ 

! !Orlando, Florida 32819. The residence was an apartment with a 
stand alone address. Assistant Inspectors-In-Place! !and 
Assistant Inspector! konducte tr interview of Common 
Wealth of Massachusetts State Police (MSP) Present 
during the interview was Attorney._ __________ ...., The interview was 

conducted at the FBI Tampa (TP) Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency 
(ORA). After being informed of the nature of the interview and the 
identities of the interviewing Agents, I !provided the following 
information: 

._ ____ !entered on duty as a MSP State Trooper on 11/2004. 
previously served as a police officer for the Westford Police Department in 
Massachusetts from 1996 to 2004. I lwas assigned as a detective for the 
Middlesex County District Attorney's Office (MCDAO) since 07/01/2012 . 

._ ____ ~!primary responsibility was.the investigation of unattended deaths 
including homicides within the jurisdiction of the MCDAO. 

Following the 04/15/2013 Boston Marathon bombings! !was assigned 
as a liaison officer from the MCDAO to the Boston FBI Field Office. While 
serving in this c~paci ty ,I lwas assigned as the primary case officer 
for a triple homicide investigation which occurred in Waltham, 
Massachusetts on 09/11/2011. During the course of this homicide 
investigation,! !identified several persons of interest including 
deceased Boston Marathon bombing suspect Tamerlan Tsarnaev and Orlando, 
Florida based Ibragim Todaschev. Tsarnaev and Todaschev were associates and 
participated in Mixed Martial Arts (MMA) training and fighting in the 
Boston area. 

On 05/14/2013,_l __ ___.lalong with FBI Boston SA_! _______ __.!travelled 
from Boston to Orlando in order to observe an interview of Todaschev 
conducted by Orlando RA JTTF personnel. The interview was conducted at an 
Orlando Police Department facility. The interview focused on establishing 
a timeline regarding Todaschev's travel in and out of the Boston area in 
September 2011 and his association with Tsarnaev. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 
-• t;\t,°'''J 

Investigationon 05/22/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D Date drafted O 5 / 2 9 / 2 01 3 

by'""==============:!. _____________________________ _ 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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FD-302 Massachusetts State Trooper D 
ContinuationofFD-302of.,,! =====:::!!L._ ________________ ,On 05/ 22 / 2 0l3 ,Page 

2 of 3 

.---___,;O;..;n"'--0;;.,5/21/2013,1 I SA._! _____ _.I and MSP State Trooper ._I _____ ..... 

._. ___ _,~ravelled ._f_r_o_m_B_o~ston to Orlando in order to conduct a follow-up 

interview of Todaschev in connection with the Waltham triple homicide 
investigation. The interview strategy focused on solidifying Todaschev's 
travel timeline in the Boston area in September 2011 and to subsequently 
confront Todaschev with forensic evidence associated with the triple 
homicide. The Boston interview team was made aware of Todaschev's previous 
criminal history, past physical confrontations, his association with · 
Tsarnaev, and his MMA fighting abilities. Further,! !conducted open 
source research which yielded video footage of Todaschev's participation in 

MMA fights. 

On 05/22/2013, FBI Orlando RA TFo! ! assisted in 
setting up an interview with Todaschev. Initially, the Boston interview 
team requested the interview take place at the same Orlando Police 

Department facility in which the prior interview was coFn~d~u~c~t~e~d~,._h~o~w~e~v~e~r~,~ 
Todaschev refused and only agreed to be interviewed at! ! 
residence located at I ! Orlando, Fl ... _or_i_d_a-.-... 1-_-_-_-_-_-_-:,-1w_a_s~ 

made aware the ORA was conducting surveillance of Todaschev prior to the 

scheduled interview. Due to Todaschev's previous violent history·and his 
MMA fighting ability,! !wanted three law enforcement personnel to 
conduct the interview. 

On 05/22/2013 at approximately 7:30 PM, Todaschev arrived at the 
pre-designated interview location. I ~as informed the FBI surveillance 
observed Todaschev arrive at the interview location accompanied by another 
male. Upon entering ~he residence,! !conducted a visual sweep of the 
residence and noticed a sword attached to the wall and several glass bowls 

on top of a table. 

Initially, the interview focused on the aforementioned timeline and 
Todoshev's association with Tsarnaev. Several hours into the interview, 

e 

----' stopped the interview and provided Todoshev with Miranda warnings. 
Todoshev executed a signed Miranda waiver at approximately 10:25 PM. After 

waiving his Miranda rights,! 

offered Todoshev ..._ __ _. ._ _____ ,-- __________ ____. 
-----~and Todoshev agreed.! !noticed Todoshev's demeanor began to 

change after he started providing information regarding! I 
_____________ ..... I· I !described Todoshev was looking around the 
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.,....f .... D_-..,3...,0._2_M.....,a..,s..,s..,a,..chusetts State Trooper I 
·ContinuationofFD-3020~ I .__ ___ _.,On 05/22/2013 ,Page 3 of 3 

room and smoking heavily. I jalso stated Todoshev asked if this was 
going to be last time he would be able to smoke and how much jail time he 
was facing . 

.----A_t_a_p • rroxirnatel~ 11:55 PMI I informed Trooper! land SA 
~l---~~~-he was going to step out of the residence for a few minutes. 
l~ ___ _.lthen stepped outside in order to call the district attorney and 

provide an update. During the call,! !received a text message from 
Trooper! I however, he was on the phone at the time and was unaware 
of the incoming text message. Shortly thereafter,! lheard yelling 

corning from inside the residence followed by se 1eral glnshots. I !drew 
his sidearm and then heard additional gunshots. rushed to the front 
door of the residence whereupon he kicked it open. He announced his 
presence and received a response from either Trooper or SA -----,,..-----, 

.__ ____ -,-,!that it was clear to enter. Once inside the door, ._ ___ ...._o_b_s~erved 
Todaschev face down just in front of the door. He saw Troo er and 
SA! !with their weapons drawn and took notice SA..._ ____ _.was 

bleeding from a wound to his head. I llook~odaschev and opined he 
had suffered gunshot wounds and was deceased. L___jprovided Trooper 

..._ ___ __.I with a latex ~love and observed while Trooper I !checked 
Todoshev for a pulse. l I asked SA! !if he was ok and 
subsequently rendered first aid to him by applying a piece of cloth to the 
back of his head. I lthen assisted in securing the scene until 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) arrived on scene. 

After the shooting incidentJ ~ead the text message sent just 
prior to the shooting incident by Troope~~----_.~hich· read, "He is in 
vulnerable position to do something bad. Be on guard now. I see him 
looking around at times." The text message was time stamped at 12:04 AM. 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 09/04/2013 

(U On Thursday June 13, 2013 Massachusetts State Police (MSP) 
Troo er was interviewed by Assistant Inspectors! I 

_____ and---------~regarding the events relating to a shooting of 
Ibragim Todas ev on May , 2013. Present for the telephonic interview was 
State Police Association of Massachusetts Attorney! land 

._ ________ I of the MSP Unionl I After being advised of the 
identity of the interviewing agents and the nature of the interview Trooper 
I !provided the following information: 

(U//~ Trooper • had already given his account of the events of 
the Agent-involved shooting which occurred on May 22, 2013. The purpose of 
this interview was to clarify information about a recording device Trooper 

._ __ ___.lpossessed during the interview. As arrangements to meet Todashev 
were being made, it became apparent they were not going to conduct the 
interview at the Orlando Police Department (OPD). The previous interviews 
of Todashev took place at the OPD and were recorded. According to Trooper 

._ __ __.I there was a brief comment made in passing about recording the 
interview when Trooper entioned he had a recording device, and MSP 
Trooper added that he had audio and visual record_i_n_g ___ ~ 

capabil~i_t_i_e_s ____ T_h_1-·s--c-o-mment was made between himself, FBI Agent~! ___ _. 

and Troo er This brief conversation took place in 
Agent hotel room prior to the interview. Initially .__ _________ _. 

._ ___ ___. was going to observe the interview from the observation 
room at the OPD. Due to the change in venue and for officer safety, 
Trooper! !instead participated in the interview at Todashev's 
apartment. As a practice, MSP often records subject interviews as most of 

the time the interviews are conducted in the police station in rooms 
equipped for recording. The OPD had audio and video recording capability. 
Despite the change of venue for the interview, there was no further 
in-depth discussion on whether or not the interview would be recorded. 

Trooper! lalong with the other members of the interview team, Trooper 
I pnd Agentl I prepared for the interview by developing 

questions and securing a location where Todashev would agree to meet with 
them. OPD Master Police Officer! !called to advise Todashev 
would only agree to an interview at Todashev's apartment. Due to the short 

notice, Trooper I !Trooper I I and Agent I I hurried 
to prepare for the interview and arrive at the apartment. In the car ride 

UNCLASSIFIED//~O 

Investigationon 06/13/2013 at Boston, Massachusetts, United States (In Person) 

F~# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted 0 9/04/2013 

by"==========:::!...... __________ __;_ ________________ __,_.,----, 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are no 
to be distributed outside your agency. 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
b7C 

13 



FD-302a (Rev. 05-08-10) 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

297-HQ-A1271966-D 

FD-302 Interview of Trooper! Ire 
ContinuationofFD-302of _R_e_c_o_r_d_i_n_g_s __________ ... _-_-_-_-_ ... ______ ,On 06/13/2013 ,Page 2 of 3 

over to Todashev's apartment Trooper I Trooper! I and Agent 
lhad a conversation relative to one party consent with 

.__O_f_f_i_c_e_r,1------.l~participating via the Bluetooth device . 

.---------Di/~) After arriving and entering Todashev's apartment, Trooper 
L___Jturned on his small portable MSP audio recording device, which was 

located in his left breast pocket. Trooper! ldid not kriow if it would 
work but thought he would try it anyway. T~ was not aware of the 
recorder concealed in the pocket of TrooperL__J Trooper I I 
described Todashev as calm, articulate, and not excited or agitated. 
Trooper! I advised Todashev was allowed to smoked cigarettes and take 
water and bathroom breaks throughout the interview. 

(U/~) After 10 p.m .• Trooper! Jverbally provided Todashev with 
his Miranda Rights. Agent I fprovided a Miranda Rights form 
to Trooper! rhich Todashev signed. Todashev did not ask for legal 
representation even after he was read his Miranda Rights. 

(U//~) At one point during the interview, Todashev asked Trooper • to stop writing and at another point during the interview Trooper 
recalled Todashev saying to Trooper I I "Don't do that." When 

Trooper! !heard this from Todash 1v, hi looked over to see a telephone 
in Trooper! !hand. Trooper thought Trooper! pay be 
taking r pict 1re or recording parts of the interview with his telephone. 
Trooper sat across from Todashev the entire time he was in the 
apartment. 

(U//~) Trooper! !advised during the course of the interview 
Todashev asked to use the bathroom. Prior to Todashev's discussion about 
the triple homicide, Todashev used the bathroom unaccom anied. However, 
following ...=..===::::;------r---------,------------------- ..... 
Trooper ... ! __ __.!and Agen ~--------___.escorted him to the bathroom. An 
additional bathroom break occurred after Trooper! !had left the 
apartment. Trooper! lwas later advised both Trooper! land Agent 

I I accompanied Todashev to the restroom during the last 
bathroom break. Trooper! I felt it was prudent to escort Todashev to 
the bathroom the last two times as it was after Todashev had been read his 
Miranda Rights and Trooper! lfelt Todarhey's mind was in a different 

lace. Todashev had started to talk about_ I 
________ a_n....,d for officer safety, they accompanied him to the bathroom. 

Trooper cleared the bathroom prior to Todashev entering to ensure 
there were no weapons in the immediate area. 

(U//~ TrooperLJobserved a sword hanging on the wall with a 
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couple of screws near the plant and then after the Agent-involved shooting, 
observed the sword behind the shoe rack near the kitchen. After the 
shooting, Trooperl7became aware that during one of these bathroom 
breaks, Trooperc==Jmoved the sword from the wall within Todashev's 
apartment. 

(U//~ Towards the end of the interview, Troo er •r;;..;;;..;;;...;;..i;;=...__ __ .,F';.;;..;;..;=, 
would be best to allow Todashev the opportunity ....-.....:..-'---------------'-----, Troo er offered Todashev 

As Todashev began to 
Trooper._ _ __,asked both Trooper! land 

AgentL,,_ _______ __.if he could step out of the apartment to make a 
telephone call. Trooper! !wanted to contact the Assistant District 
Attorney! Ito advise him of the progress of the interview and 
to confer about the next course of action. As Trooper! ~as outside 
the apartment on the telephone, he heard a commotion to include yelling and 
gunshots from inside Todashev's apartment. Trooper! ldid not notice 
anyone else outside~ed his notes, and was unsure what he did with his 
telephone. TrooperL___Jdrew his weapon, announced himself, and came 
through the front door of the apartment along with OPD Officer I I The 
front door of the apartment was not locked. When he entered thj apar!ment 
he saw Todashev laying on the floor, it was apparent to Trooper he 
was dead. Immediately after entry into the apartment, Officer! I 
called 911 for medical assistance. He also saw Agent~l---------~­
bleeding from the head profusely. 

(U//~) Once Trooper! !returned to his department in Boston he 
checked his audio recorder and found it had recorded a large portion of the 
interview with Todashev. He submitted the recorder to his department for 
retrieval and dissemination to the FBI. 
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05/22/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of an 
Agent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013, at I I Orlando, Florida. The residence is an apartment ~w_i ___ t_h_a __ s_t_a_n_d __ a_l__,one 

~a_d_d_r_e_s__.s. Assistant Ins ectors-In-Place! ! and Assistant 

Inspector conducted a voluntary interview of Task Force 

Officer (TFO)~-------------' The interview was conducted at the 
FBI Tampa (TP) Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency (ORA). After being 

:informed of the nature of the interview and the identities of the 
interviewing Agents,! ! provided the following information: 

I I was an officer with the. Orlando Police Departmen~ for 
nineteen years a~d held the rank of Master Police Officer. ~was 
assigned to the ORA JTTF for twenty-two months.I lserved as case 
agent for the TP full investigation which had a nexus to FBI Boston's (BS) 
investigation into the Boston Marathon bombings.! !contacted and 
interviewed the main subject in the TP case, Ibragim Todaschev, three times 
since 04/21/2013. 

On 05/21/2013,! BS SAi I Massachusetts State 
Police (MSP) Detective! and MSP Detective I !Last Name 
Unknown (LNU) convened at the ORA to plan an interview with Todaschev 
re~arding a triple homicide in the Boston, Massachusetts area. ~I----~ 
telephoned Todaschev, who agreed to the interview, three separate times 
between 10:19 AM and 6:34 PM to negotiate where they would meet. It was 
agreed the interview would take place· at Todaschev's residence. 

On 05/21/2013, at 7:3~5_P_M~,~1 ___ __.land the Boston investigators met 
Todaschev and his friend,! ILNU, in the parking lot of Todaschev's 
residence. The Boston investigators went inside the residence with 
Todaschev andl !remained outside withl !LNU, who provided no 
statements contributing to the inveftigation. ! !LNU advised Todaschev. 
was very upset about! _being deported and he believed the FBI 
was responsible for that action. At 10: 30 PM,I I LNU was told ,he could 
leave and Todaschev would be brou ht to him af~interview was . , 
completed. Before leavin LNU provided~Todaschev's cellular 
telephone and wallet. ~---~provided the cellular telephone to the Boston 
investigators. 
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Between 7:40 PM and 11:32 PM, received text messages from the ....., ___ ..__ __________________ __, 

Boston investigators who advised 
I I They made n._o __ i_n_d_1_· c_a_t_i_o_n __ t_o_ .... _-_-_-_-_-_-_-.. -o-f_a_n_y_p_r_o_b_l_e_m_s_o_r_ .... 

difficulties with Todaschev inside the residence. At 11:40 PM, I I 
exited the residence, stood next to! ! and had a cellular telephone 
conversation with the District Attorney from Boston. At no time did any 

( 

investigator ask I Ito go inside the residence to replace! I 
On 05/22/2013, at 12:05 ~heard three gunshots come from the 

residence. Instantly he. and~took their weapons out and ran towards 
the residence door. Prior to getting to the door, ~eard another four 
gunshots from the same location. Once at the doorL___jopened the door 
all the way,! !instantly observed a body lying face down with 
significant amounts of blood around and a red broom stick protruding from 

underneath the torso. I lalso observed a sword leaning against the 
wall.I I then observed! !standing in front of,the body with 

blood coming from'his head area. I ! askedl I if be had been 
shot, andl !advised "No he had not been shot." I !determined 
the threat had been resolved and then said "don't talk .anymore about the 
shooting." I I then went back outside of the residence, and called OPD 
Dispatch for uniform police officers and the fire department .(FD) to 
respond to the scene. 

!observed the FD go into the residence and declared Todaschev 
dead .. _o_n __ t_h .... e scene . ._l ___ _....lhad no further involvement inside the residence. 
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Date of entry 05/23/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of ap 
Agent-involved shooting which occu~red on 05/22/2013, atl I I Orlando' Florida 32819 .. This residence was ap ~r._a_r_t_m_e_n_t __ w_i_t_h--a-

stand alone address~ Inspectors-In-Charge! _and Assistant ·. 
Inspector! !conducted a voluntary interview of Assistant 
Special Agent-in-Charge (ASAC) Robert C. Geeslin. The interview was 
conducted· at the FBI Tampa (TP) Field Office, Orlando Residen~ Agency 
(ORA). After being informed of the nature of the interview and the 
identities of the interviewing Agents, ASAC Geesli~, provided the fbllowing 
information: 

On 05/22/2013, ASAC Geeslin served as A/SAC for the TP Field Office. 
He was also the ASAC assigned to the ORA and·oversaw Counterterrorism and 
Counterintelligence matters for the field office. 

At approximately 12:30 AM on 05]22/2013, ASAC Geeslin received a 
telephone call from ASAcl _who advised there was a~ 
Agent-involved shooting at the residence of TP's subject Ibragim 
Todaschev. As ASAC Geeslin was the A/SAC, he served as the FBI on-scene 
commander during the incident. He arrived on-scene at approximately 12:52 
AM. Upon arrival ASAC Geeslin did not ask any questions regarding the 
shooting. 

ASAC Geeslin notified the INSD, SIOC, and others as required regarding 
the Agent-involved shooting. He later spoke ~ith Deputy Director S~an M. 
Joyce to advise him of the details of'the shooting and the welfare of the 
Agent-involved. ASAC Geeslin deployed TP ERT to the scene and Agents to 
assist with securing the scene. The Agent involved with the shooting was 
injured during the incident and both the Agent and one of the Massachusetts 
State Police Troopers was transported to the local hospital. ASAC Geeslin 
detailed two Agents to the hospital to accompany both the Agent and the 
Trooper. 

The Principle Firearms Instructor took possession of SAi 
.._ ______ ~!weapon and provided him with a temporary weapon._ ______ _. ASAC Geeslin 
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also coordinated with the Orlando Poli~e Department Deputy Chief I 
______ I Deputy Chief I ~dvised his officers would hold ~a_n_d __ s_e_c_u_r_e~ 

the scene for the FBI. 

ASAC Geeslin authorized·TP's media representative1to coordinate with 
the Boston .Field Office, the Counterterrorism Dlvision at FBIHQ, and the 
National Press Office regarding media releases from the FBI. TP's. media 
representative released several statements once ,approved by FBIHQ. 

ASAC Geeslin was aware of the history of'the subject, Ibragim 
Todaschev, and that Todaschev was considered armed and dangerous due to his 
training as a Mixed Martial Artist. ASAC Geeslin was also aware that TP 
Agents and Task Force Officers had·met Todaschev multiple times in the past 
without incident. 

ASAC Geeslin contacted SAC Danny Banks from the Florida Department of 
Law Enforcement to provide a briefing of the Agent-involved shooting. SAC 
Banks offered his assistance with no further questions cpncerning the 
incident. 

) 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

· Date of entry 05/23/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of an 
Agent-involved shooting which occurred at! ! Orlando, 
Florida 32819, Assistant Inspectors~In-Place! !and Assistant 
Inspector! !conducted a voluntary interview of .Tampa Field 
Office Chief Division Counsel (CDC)! !atl~-~~--~---~-~ 
Orlando, Florida on 05/22/2013. After being informed of the nature of the 
interview and the identities of the interviewing Agents, !provided 
the fbllowing information: \ 

On 05/22/2013, at approximately 12:45 AM, CDcl !received a 
telephone call at his residence from an agent of. the Tampa Field Office, 
Orlando Resident Agency (ORA), who advised him that there had been an 

Agent-involved shooting. CDq lwas advised that the~shoo~ing involved 

received a head injury during the incident. CDC called! 
Agent! lfrom the Boston Field Offignd that he had 

FBI issued cell phone and spoke tol I CDC check~e-d--o-n----~ 

! !welfare and if he wished to ob~ain emergency legal 
representation· from DOJ. ! !advised he ~ng fine and he 
initially requested legal representation. CDCL___jthen contacted the 
Civil Litigation Unit at FBIHQ to notify them of the incide~t and to 
coordinate obtaining legal representation. When CDcl }re-contacted 

_____ ___.I he advised that he had retained Attorney I I from FLEOA 

for le9al representation. 

At no time did CDcl I review, an ops plan for the multi-divisional 
interview of Ibragim Todashev. CDC! !contacted the CDC at BS to 
coordinate efforts. CDCI lalso_c_o_n_t_a~cted the local AUSA in Orlando, 

FL to ensure they were aware of the incident~ 

During a conference call with the Evidence Response Team Unit (ERTU) at 
Quantico, VA, Tampa's ERT was asked whether it could collect evidence from 

the scene of thl Agentlinvol ved shooting. When this question was· later 
conveyed to CDC by SSA! ! CDC I I advised that 

' ' 
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Tampa's ERT should only process the immediate scene but should not expand 
its collection beyond the immediate scene until a search warrant .was 
obtained. 
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Date of entry 05/23/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of an 
Agent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/~013, at I I Orlando, Florida 32819. This residence was an ap~a_r_t_m_e_n_t __ w_i_t_h __ a_. 

_s_t_a_n_d_a_l-one address. Assistant Inspector! land Assistant 

Inspector-in-Place! !conducted a voluntary interview of 
Supervisory Special Agent (SSA)! I The interview was 
conducted at the FBI Tampa (TP) Field Office, Orlando Resident'Agency 
(ORA). After being informed of the nature of the interview and the 
identities of the interviewing Agents, SSA I lprovidetj the following 
information: 

SsAI lsupervise4 the Joint Terr6rism Task Force (JTTF) in the 
Oralndo RA. !squad was working the case on Ibragim Todaschev since 
the ORA was sent a lead as a result of the 04/15/2013 Boston Marathon 
bombing. The Todaschev,ca~e had the interest of the Director and was being 
closely monitored and coordinated with Boston Field Office as well as the 
Counterterrorism Division. SSA! lwas aware Todaschev was a suspect in 
a triple homicide which occurred in Waltham, Massachusetts on 09/11/2011 
and was also a Mixed Martial Arts fighter who had a proclivity towards 
violence. 

SS was aware Todaschev canceled his flight to Russia on --------... ,...,.o~5'-'--'2~1....._.2~0~1~3....__._ ___ _.~elieves this cancellation was due to the fact 

-------------- was arrested on immigration charges as well as charges 
he was facing from a violent confrontation in a parking lot in Orange 
County. Throughout the course of the day, ssAI lreceived updates 
regarding the location of an upcoming interview with Todaschev. After 
several phone cal~s between Todaschev and TFol la meeting 
location was agreed upon which was Todaschev's home. Once the interview 
began SSA! !received periodic updates from TFol lindicating the 
interview w9s going well. The last update·SSA! !received was around 
10:45 PM saying all was going well and they were still interviewing 
Tod'aschev. The next time· ssAI I received an update it was from the 
Tampa radio room patching a call through from SSA I I advising 
there had been an agent-involved shooting. At that point, SSA! ! 
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contacted the Tampa radio room to ensur~ the A/SAC had been advised. SSA 

-----~he~ headed out to the scene ad~ising the Tampa radio room via his 
Bureau radio he was responding. 
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08/09/2013 

Assistant Inspectors I land! I interviewed 
Assistant District Attorney (ADA) lvia telephone, telephone 
number! ! After being informed of the identity of the 
interviewers and the nature of the interview ADAI !provided the 
following information: 

(U//~) ADA remembers receiving a text from Massachusetts 
State Police (MSP) Trooper._ ____ __,around 10:30 p.m. on May 21, 2013. 
ADAI !does not remember exactly what was said but remembers it being 
very good news about the Waltham triple homicide investigation on which the 
MSP were interviewing Ibragim Todashev. ADA headed to his office 
in anticipation of drafting an indictment. ADA received another 

L..r----.....,i 
telephone call later in the evening from Trooper around 11:50 p.m., 
although he does not remember the exact time. Trooper._ __ ~told ADA 

lthe interview was going well and Todashev was writing out his 
._c_o_n_f_e_s_s_i~on. ADA! ! thought the investigators were doing a good job 

from a legal stand point, stating they gave Todashev cigarette breaks, 
bathroom breaks, and allowed him to move around the room freely. Trooper 

! ! and ADA! !continued to talk about certain aspects of the 
investigation when the call ended abruptly. ADAI I did not think 
anything of the abrupt ending to the telephone call and in his experience, 
many law enforcement calls of that nature end abruptly. 

(U/~) ADAI ~hen contacted! ~ the Assistant 
United States Attorney (AUSA) in Boston. ADA I I knew AUSA 

I !would want to know Todashev was talking to the investigators. 
ADAI ~id not know the interview was going to be recorded and did 
not authorize or suggest the interview be recorded. ADAI !was well 
aware of Todashev's violent history and criminal record. ADAI I 
stated everyon~ involved in the case knew Todashev was a Mixed Martial Arts 
fighter and had a violent nature. When asked about DNA evidence found at 
the Boston triple homicide crime scene in Waltham, Massachusetts, ADA 

! !stated it was not the District Attorney's office policy to comment 
or provide information on an ongoing investigation. 
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Date of entry · _ _:1:..::2...:./_l_0_...:._/_2_:_0_1-=3-

Pursuant ·to an Inspection Division (INSD) Shootin Incident Review of 
an agent-involved shooting which occurred at .._ ______________ ..._ ___ _ 
Orlando, Florida, 32819 on May 22, 2013, Assistant Inspector (AI) 

I I and Special Agent I !Tampa Field Office conducted a 
neighborhood canvass of the residences surrounding .._ _____________ ___, 

Orlando, Florida, 32819. After being advised of the identities of the 
interviewing agents and the nature of the interview, the individuals 
provided the following information: 

...----'-----------..------11 date of .. b_i_· r_t__. ______ ..--__ _ and ._I _____ ___. 

._ ___________ ~ date of birth were interviewed at 
their residence located at Orlando, Florida, 32819 
with regard to the shooting incident on May 22, 2013. On May 21, 2013, at 
approximately 10:30 p.m.,~l ____ pame home from work and observed the lights 
on and the sliding lass door blinds o en at the condominium across the 
lake (referring toL... ___________ ...,._ ...... -,- _ __.thought this was odd, 
because the blinds were never open. As ____ looked at the condominium 

across the lake, he observed several males inside the condominium. As 
! !was watching TV, at approximately 12:00 a.m. on' May 22, 2013, .. ! ___ _ 

heard four loud pops, followed by three additional pops. I lcould not 
see where the noise came from because his television and wall obstructed 
his view. I ~elieved the individuals across the lake were doing 
construction and looked out the window to see what they were doing. When 

~ooked outside the window, he saw several individuals "hovering" over 
._s_o_m_e_t_h ... ing on the ground. I lwas awaken by the no,;;i;;..s;;..e.;;.... __ 

and described the sound as someone "hammering" on the wall. Neither I 
nor I I called the police to report what they heard because the._y ___ ___. 

believed the noise was attributed to construction. 

__ ....._ __________ I date of birth and 

date of birth were interviewed at their residence 
located at._ ____________ __.rlando, Florida, 32819 with regard to 

the shooting incident on May 22, 2013. I !did not speak English, so 

translated! !statement for the interviewing 
_a_g_e_n_t_s ____ O_n_M_a_y--2-2-,-.-2-013, at approximately 12:00 a.m.J !was upstairs 

in her bedroom listening to gospel music. As! ~hut off the music, 
she heard two gunshots and loud banging.! !ran to her kids bedrooms 

lnvestigationon 12/04/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted 12/05/2013 

by L..--------------------J------------------------
This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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to check on them and looked out the window. Whenl l1ook~d out the 
window she observed a bald white male talking on a cellular telephone. 

----~ldid not go outside or call the police . ._ _ __.kas working at the time 
of the incident. 

date of birth Social 

Security Account Number (SSAN): I ~ndl I 
date of birth! I were interviewed at their residence located 

atl I Orlando, Florida, 32819 with regard to the 
shooting incident on May 22, 2013. On May 22, 2013, at approximately 

12:00 a.m.,I !heard a noise like a gunshot and did not go outside . 
._ ____ !did not know where the noise came from and did not observe anything 

else out of the ordinary on the evening of May 21, 2013 or the early 

morning hours of May 22, 2013. ! ! was out of the 
country at the time of the incident. 

SSAN: ! date of birth 
,_l _______ ljnd I ~ datL._e_o_f_b_i_· r_t_h ____ .....,_ ___ .., SSAN: 

~l-----,1-----1.were interviewed at their residence located at I Orlando, $lorida, 32819 with regard to thr shootjng-jn_c_i_d_e_q_t_o_n __ M_a_y_ 
22, 2013. Both individuals were home and neitherL,. __________ __,Jheard or 

observed anything out of the ordinary on the evening of May 21, 2013 or the 

early morning hours of May 22, 2013 until law enforcement arrived. I._ ___ __. 
observed one male with a head bandage who appeared to be law enforcement 

obtaining medical assistance. 

I I date o.,..f_b_i_r_t_h_! ____ ..---___ _.! and 
.,..l _______________ d_a_t_e_o__.f birth! 

were interviewed 

at their residence located at Orlando, Florida, ____________ __, 

32819 with regard to th~ shooting incident on May 22, 2013. Both 

I I heard or individuals were home, asleep, and neither 

observed anything out of the ordinary on the evening of May 
early morning hours of May 22, 2013. 

21, 2013 or the 

! date of birth SSAN: 
and I I date.__o_f_b_i_· r_t_h......,.. ____ .__ _ __,;,____, SSAN: 

were interviewed at their residence located at -----------and o, Florida, 32819 with regard to the shooting incident on May 

22, 2013. On the fvening of May 22, 2013, I !was staying at a hotel with 
her kids and ___ __._was working in Tampa, Florida. 

date of birth I 
,.;;;..;;;,,;;,,,;;;,,;,.J,------_.was interviewed at his residence loc~a_t_e_d __ a_t..,!r-----~ 

Orlando, Florida, 32819 with regard to the shooting 
L.i_n_c_i_d_e_n_t_o_n_M_a_y_ ..... 22, 2013. I lwas working during the time of the 

incident and did not return until approximately 2 a.m. on May 22, 2013, 
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when he was not allowed to return to his residence due to the police 
barricades. 

3 of 3 

was interviewed 
L...,..-----,--,---.....,,...--,---,--...,......___J---------i-:---:--:----= at her residence located at._ ___________ __.Orlando, Florida, 32819 

date of birth 

with regard to the shooting incident on May 22, 2013. ! !was home 
,watching her television and did not hear Of observe anything out of the 
ordinary on the evening of May 21, 2013 or the early morning hours of May 

22, 2013. · 

Interviews were not conducted at the residences below due to the 
occupants not being home: 

Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 

Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
Orlando, Florida 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

F_EDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Docume11tpa>tlcipar,tsh11vedigita11ysigned. 
All slgrl11tun:i1 have been verffiodbya 
certlfltld FBI intorrmi~on 5)'Stem. 

Date of entl)' 05/23/2013 

Supervisory Special Agent (SSA) I I conducted a review of 
investigative file 8 9B-TP-288 63 60. The fol,lowing summarizes the 
administrative and investigative components of the investigation: 

Date opened: Full Investigation opened 05/23/2013 

Case Agent: Special Agent .. l _________ _ 
Squad: TP-ORA5 

Supervisor: SSA .. I ___________ ..... 
Total Number of serials in main file: A total of six serials as of 
05/23/2013 

List of sub-files: Not applicable 

As of the date of this report, the investigation remains ongoing. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D -'13, Datedrafted 05/23/2013 .--=========.---,---------:-------'---
by.._ _________ __..,__ _______________________________ _ 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned.to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

CONSENT TO SEARCH 

1. I have been asked by Special Agents·of the Federal Bureau ofJnvestigation to pennit a complete 
search of: 
(Describe the pcrson(s), place(s), or thing(s) to be searched.) 

[nfJC.icol t~f 'JZ.P (Jfi•1np,r1cl'u 1n1JpE{ it fJ II Fl ( {)lfl<--IJ. 

/VCK1/.1 (p(l(• {'p/lv/6.r klcfht>M': 

/Lk,k ,.4 5!l ;'{/4 7l:i.E/)/1t•J.;fj_ 

;•of:.1A C{//dar fc,kp11(.Y,-( ;11.t,,1cL ()JC'/ :f,u'crt. 

1)/A(..i.-l)erl'.f ,~?c•OEC., : 5c H I( .J?c,~ • I J L RJ,I~() =ccJ() A J L s-e If R J~ 0 

F"CcII) /)c!&Ai.fDJ6 •LC.IP !(·1·1'C-lH]t)j/J flc.~c:7-141]1'3 /0·&15 

· 2. I have been advised of my right to refuse consent 

3. l gi"'.e this pennission voluntarily; 

4. I authorize these agents to take any items which they detemiine may be related to their investigation. 

Witness ·~......___---
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CONSENT TO SEARCH COMPUTER(S) 

I, TfJ££)(-,/,'n , have been asked by Sp~cial Agents of the 

Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) to permit a complete search by the FBI or its designees of any and all computers, 

any electronic and/or optical data storage and/or retrieval system or medium, and any related computer peripherals, 

described below: 

fhflc,. WJl l?JcfJft.. 11 A II 8.~I __ B~l~/l(f lfJPTCP Cc111£ulf~-
cru Make, Model & Serial Number (if available) 

Storage or Retrieval Media, Computer Peripherals 

Ct'/IV\A( 

and located at ____________________________ • which I own, possess, 

control, and/or have access to, for any evidenc_e ofa crime or other violaiion of the law. The required passwords, logins, 

and/or specific directions .for computer entry are as follows: ___________________ _ 

I have been advised ofmy right to refuse to consent to this search, and I give permission for this search, freely 

and voluntarily, and not as the result of tltreats or promises of any kind. 

I authorize those Agents to take ~y evidence discovered during this search, together with the medium in/on which 

it is stored, and any associated data, hardware; software and computer peripherals. 

&?Cr .2 12 C)/5 
Date 

(DY, /21 !?t)/ 3, 
Date / ' ' 

U If l OVl J_o ·a 
Location -. -t-)-+--------------
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Allsignalull'Shave ~ verifredbya 
certified FBI informa11on s}'$1em 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of entry 06/07/2013 

IBRAGIM TODASHEV, date of birth September 22, 1985, telephone number 

(407)350-0932,_ having a residence at I lorlando, 
Florida, was interviewed in regards to an ongoing Federal investigation. 

Present fqr thf interview were Massachusetts State Police (MSP) Troopers 
_ (TPR! ~ ! l(TPR ! I, and Federal Bureau of 

Investigation (FBI) Special Agentl l(sAI I. The 
interview time and location were coordinated with TODASHEV by FBI Task 

Force Officer! !(TFO I I. TODASHEV previously met 
with FBI agents at the Orlando Police Depa~tment (OPD) for an interview, 
but advised TFO! !that he would not meet at ·that location again. 

Therefore, it was agreed upon to meet at his residence. After being 
advised of the identities of the interviewing Agent/Troopers, Todashev 
provided the following information: 

TODASHEV was first questioned as to his relationship withl 
I· He advised that he did not know her very_w_e_l_l_,_a_n_d.,...... 

_t_h_a_t_h_e __ o_n_l_y_s_a_w_ .... her in 2008 and 2009 when he (TODASHEV) and I 
____ __.! TAMERLAN TSARNAEV (TSARNAEV) were better friends and_s_a_w_m_o_r_e_o....,f 

each other. TSARNAEV and TODASHEV had a falling_,...._....,......,~ they were 
involved in a physical fight. TODASHEV never saw outside of the 
time he was in TSARNAEV's com any. He simply thought of as, ~I---. .__ ___ ___. 

TODASHEV advised that he did not know much 
about.__ ____ __,movements, and that he had only been in TSARNAEV's home a 

couple of times in 2008 and 2009. After TODASHEV and .TSARNAEV fought, they 
did not see much of each other after that. When they,did run into one 
another, it was typically at Friday prayer at the mosque. TODASHEV was 
asked about a photograph (administrative note: it was shown to him at a 

·prior interview) that was taken at a celebration foi the end of Ramadan. 

TODASHEV, TSARNAEV andl lwere captured in the 
photograph. TODASHEV was asked ifl ~as pre~ent for the celebration 
that was being held at a mosgu~, however, he did not know if she was there. 

When questioned aboutl ~nowledge of the Boston Bombings, he 
advised that he was unaware if she knew of the plan to bomb the marathon. 

Investigationon 05/21/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 343G-BS-2902066 Datedrafted 06/07/2013 ..----------------------------------
by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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When asked about! TODASHEV advised that he 
knew him as! ! !worked_! __ __, 

lbut had other jobs as well. TODASHEV could not recall where 
"'"""----~!worked. TODASHEV would occasionally seel lat night clubs. 

He (TODASHEV) also advised that he andl lused to live_! _______ __, 
and TSARNAEV in Chelsea, Massachusetts. TODASHEV did not really know 

._ _____ ___.!friends because they were younger. 

TODASHEV advised that while he was living in Boston, he spoke with 
-----lonce or twice a week, or maybe more. Since moving to Florida,· 

TODASHEV now speaks tol !maybe once a month. TODASHEV added that, 
· "he never picks u!", referring tol ~nd his phone. TODASHEV last 

spoke tol Jone or two days after the bombing. They asked 
each other how they were doing, andl that "someth1~·~n~g~---
happened in Boston." When TODASHEV inquire,l,a-.....,.~ ...... --A .. at happened, ._I ____ __. 

stated, "watch the news, you'll find out.'' worked in_t_h_e _____ _ 

and was also a He ._I _______ _. 

worked for When asked about l ? financial status, TODASHEV advised that he did not believe 
l Fad much money, although he never asked him directly. I lis 

now married to I Last Name Unknown I I LNU) . He I I was not 
married to! !LNU when TODASHEV left for Florida. When asked about ..... ___ __, 
companies located in Chelsea, MAJ !advised that he knew thatl 

.__ ____ _.I based his company in Chelsea, MA. also lived in Ch_e_l_s_e_a_, _ _. 

When asked about .__------.-----~dvised that he thought MA. 

I the name TODASHEV was asked if he 
kn'ew anyone living in New Jersey. He advised that he knew a Chechen male, 

I !Last Name Unknown I ~NU), who lived there. I ILNU was 
approximatel~ears old at the time TODASHEV was speaking with him. 

I ILNU had children who were into Mixed Martial Arts (MMA), and he 
approached TODASHEV over 

met I I LNU in person. 
Los Angeles, CA. 

the telephone to talk about it. TODASHEV never 
TODASHEV advised that he knew no one living in 
) 

TODASHEV arrived in the United States sometime in June 2008. He first 
lived in Pennsylvania and was working at a carnival for approximately one 
week until he was fired. TODASHEV advised that the owner of the carnival 
was having him work day and night. They would have to constantly move the 
carnival from one city to another and it was non-stop. TODASHEV told the 
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owner that he did not want to work anymore, so he was fired. While working 

at the carnival, he was living at a place in the woods with the rest of the 
carnival employees. 

After being fired, TODASHEV then moved to Boston, MA in June 200_8_. __ _ 

Prior to moving to Boston, MA, TODASHEV called an individual namedl 
Last Name Unknown! !LNU) who was located in Moscow, Russia. ~l..;......-~lrL_N_U-.-~ 
put TODASHEV in contact with some of his friends in Boston, specifically 

! ! who could assist with his relocation efforts. 
TODASHEV metl ILNU in Moscow prior to coming to the United States. 

I !advised TODASHEV that he could set him up with a job once he 
arrived in Boston. 

for one or two 
days. I __ then connected TODASHEV, 

Once TOQAS;fv arrived in Boston, he sta ed with 

! I and ! Last N aine Un known :=-=--=-~---_-~..,_L_N_U_)_t_o_g_e_t_h_e_r_. __ T_O_D_A_S~HEV 

lived with that group in Chelsea, MA for about one month. He (TODASHEV), 
then moved to Watertown, MA for a short period of time, and then moved back 
in wit~ !in Cambridge, MA. TODASHEV lived there for approximately 
six months. He then moved to Atlanta, GA to live wit~ I 

I, sometime in 2009 or 2010. TODASHEV met 
------,!,_t_h_r_o_u_g_h __ t_h_e_i_r_m_u....,t ua 1 friend,! ! whi 1 e they we re a 11 in 

Boston. At the time,I I was visiting the Boston area for a couple 
of days. After meeting TODASHEV,I ~eturned to Atlanta. TODASHEV 

visited! lin Atlanta once after they first met in Boston. He flew 
there in either 2009 or 2010. After the visit, TODASHEV returned to Boston 
but stayed in touch withl lby phone. After a period of time, he 

then moved down to Atlanta to be wit~ I permanently. He did not 
remember the address wher~ he first lived in Atl~nta withl I 

TODASHEV left Atlanta in May or June, 2011, to return to Boston, MA. 
He had grown tired of Atlanta. He was not working and he was not training 

MMA due to the fact he had knee surgery in 2009 prior to his move to 
Atlanta, GA. Once TODASHEV's knee healed, he wanted to return to Boston, 
MA to resume his MMA training. TODASHEV estimates he lived in Atlanta, GA 
for one to one and a half years. He never owned a vehicle while living in 
Atlanta, GA. TODASHEV did not recall whether he made his return trip to 
Boston, MA by bus or plane. 
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When TODASHEV arrived back in Boston, MA, he moved to Allston or 
Brighton on Gordon Street. At that location, he moved in with "a bunch of 
students." TODASHEV did not recall who they were, but there were three or 
four of them. He did not know them prior to moving in with them. TODASHEV 

st~yed at! ! address until the beginning of September 2011. 
TODASHEV stated that he stayed atl lfor "the first ten days" 

of September, then he moved back to Atlanta, GA. He thinks he took a 
GREYHOUND bus back to Atlanta, GA. He left from downtown Boston, travelled 

alone, and he thinks he left in the daytime. TODASHEV paid cash for the 
ticket, and he used the name IBRAGIM TODASHEV to buy the ticket. TODASHEV 
advised that he moved back to Atlanta because he had recently lost an 
amateur MMA title fight and lost his job. The fight took place in July or 

Aufust 2011, and he was working for VTL transportation while he was living 
at_ I TODASHEV drove an old DODGE CARAVAN for VTL 
transportation and he was allowed to drive the van for personal use. 

TODASHEV was later involved in a car accident while driving the van, and 
he was fired from VTL. 

When asked about his cell phone, TODASHEV advised that he has had his 
current number for a long time. He did have prior numbers, but he does not 
remember them. 

TODASHEV advised that on this last GREYHOUND bus trip to Atlanta, the 
bus stopped a couple of times. He believes it stopped in New York City and 
one other location that he could not recall. When he arrived in Atlanta, 
TODASHEV stated that he called! ! He then advised that~[ _____ !_w-a..,s 

actually waiting for him at the bus station in Atlanta. He ancil I 
then went tol !residence, where he ended up staying for._t_h_e_n_e_x_t_~ 

couple of weeks. After that, TODASHEV left Atlanta for Orlando, Florida. 
He advised that he probably took a GREYHOUND bus but he was not certain. 
The bus was grey in color, and he paid cash for his bus ticket. Once he 

arrived at the bus station in Orlando, TODASHEV was.-m_e_t __ b~y___,"a bunch of 
guys", including! I I lwas living. in I I FL at the 
time. The bus station was located at John Young Orange Blossom Trail in 

Orlando. 

When asked about his friends! ITODASHEV advised 
that he mostly hung out with them.__d_u_r_i_n_g __ h_i_s_t_i_· m_e_i_n_B__.o st on. I I 
moved to Florida at the same time TODASHEV made his first trip to Atlanta. 
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In the Summer of 2011, TODASHEV hung out with TSARNAEV and! He 
would see TSARNAEV at the gym, and! !at the mosque and in Cambridge 

and Brighton. TODASHEV was working out at the WAIKRV gym five to six days 
a week 1ostlylin the evenings. He would train with! r7, Last Name Unknown! !LNU) and~!--..!r!L_a_s_t __ N_a_m_e_U_n_k_n_o_w_n __ __. 

~U). TODASHEV was friends withl !of the WAIKRU gymJ~---~ 
Last Name Unknown! !LNU). TODASHEV advised that he never saw any of 
these guys outside of the gym. There were also a couple of "Americanized" 
Russians who worked out at the gym, however, they spoke little Russian. 

TODASHEV never worked out with TSARNAEV at the gym, because he (TSARNAEV) 
would come to the gym to train at different times than TODASHEV. TODASHEV 
advised that TSARNAEV used to drive a white HONDA CRV, and a silver 
MERCEDEZ C180. 

TODASHEV was asked about his marriage! He advised that he 
and I I "had been to mosque", but that they were no longer married. 

TODASHEV advised that he di~orced her by stating, "you're not my wife'', 
three times. They do however still stay in contact with one another. 

TODASHEV estimates that they can be in contact with each other almost 

daily at ti,es, When,verl lis in Russia, they will stay in contact 
over SKYPE. ~-----__,_does not have a FACEBOOK account however sometimes 
she uses TODASHEV's. TODASHEV does not know I I very well. ============:1-d_o_e_s_n_o_t __ i_n_t_e_r_f_e_r_e_i_n __ t_h_e_i..Jr 

relationship, and he has onl, met he~ on two or thr~e occasions. The last 
time TODASHEV sawl Jwas during a recent trip ia to renew 

the registratio~ of :is vebicJe, which actually belon 
TODASHEV met with_ I at her residence and ____ _.was there. He 

arrived late in the evening, and he spent the night. The next day TODASHEV 
renewed the vehicle registration and spent an additional night at 

The next day, TODASHEV andl l1eft for Atlanta 
together. 

When asked about the phone number (617)749-6196, TODASHEV advised that 
he did not remember it, but that it could be his old number if his friends 

said it was. TPR! !then produced a MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE (MOTA) form dated August 19, 2011, that was filled 
out in TODASHEV's name. The form had the number (617)749-6196 listed as 
the phone number for TODASHEV. He then advised that sometimesl._ _____ __. 

would fill out the EBT forms for him. TODASHEV was then shown a form from 
the INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE, that was filled out with his signature and 
dated September 7, 2011. He advised that it was his signature, but that he 
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was not sure on the date. When ques 1ioned a~out his EBT card, TODASHEV 
advised that he gave his EBT card tol lone week prior to leaving .__ ___ .... 
Boston in September 2011. 

During follow up questioning as to TODASHEV's movements in September 
2011, TODASHEV advised that although he was forced out of Gordon Street in 
September, he continued to live there for several days. He cited the fact 
that the owner was never around and that there was still room in the 
building for him to stay. TODASHEV advised that he also spent a couple of 

nights with~ lin Brighton, and a couple of nights withl land 
his family. ~------~~nd his father were the only ones staying in the 
residence at the time TODASHEV was staying there. TODASHEV does not recall 
what day he left Boston. It could have been a Sunday or a Monday, but he 
thinks he left on September 10, 2011. Seeing 'the documents provided by TPR 

! !helped his recollection. 

The telephone number (407)350-0932 was obtained by TODASHEV once he 
arrived in Florida. He advised that during his time in Boston, he had bnly 
one cellular phone, stating, "why would I have more than one phone?" 

TODASHEV switched from a Boston phone to a Florida phone because~t~b ...... e __ ~ 

cellular plan in Florida was only $40.00 and it was cheaper. TPR~I ___ ___. 
then produced a receipt from BOSTON WIRELESS in Revere, MA for a $40.00 
SIMPLE MOBILE cellular phone plan. When asked if that was record of his 
purchase, TODASHEV responded, "could be." 

A cduple days before TODASHEV left Boston for Atlanta, he got together 
wit~ landl I They all drove around Boston together, however, 
TODASHEV does not remember what they•did specifically. The night before 
TODASHEV left for Florida, he did not do anything. He believes he may have 
been staying with! !orl lthat night. TODASHEV advised that he 
made plans to move back to Atlanta at the end of August. TODASHEV was 
asked who was living atl !residence when he (TODASHEV) was staying 
there. He advised that_ lmay have been staying there along with his 

! ! father. TODAS~EV stated that he left Boston on a GREYHOUND 
bus on September 9, 10 or 11th. 

TODASHEV was shown phone records detailing phone calls between 
(617)749-6196 (His phone number) and I lphone ~I ______ ___. and 
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._ _______ landl lphone ._ ______ ___. on September 12, 2011. 

TODASHEV was then asked_ where he was at the time these phone calls 11:ere 
placed. He advised, "I guess in Atlanta. My friends would not call~ ______ I 

._ _____ _,!at 12: 25 at night." TODASHEV also advised that he would never 
loan his phone to another person, any longer than it took for them to make 
a phone call. TODASHEV advised that the phone records would show where he 
was when the calls were made. TODASHEV was asked why his phone appears to 
stop being used on September 12, 2011, and he did not know why. TODASHEV 
does not remember borrowing a phone after he stopped using his phone. 

TODASHEV remembers arriving in Atlanta on the GREYHOUND bus sometime in 
the evening. He advised that it was a two day trip to Atlanta with stops 
along the way. 

The accident TODASHEV was involved in while driving for VTL occurred in 
June 2011. TODASHEV last saw TSARNAEV at a Friday.or evening prayer at the 
mosque. Friday prayers are held at noon. 
to his departure for Florida. 

It was two or three days prior 

TODASHEV advised that he follows the Chechen news online, and that he 
does not really pay attention to the United States news. When asked if he 
remembered BRENDEN MESS (MESS), TODASHEV advised that he did, and that he 
saw him at the gym. TODASHEV never heard about TSARNAEV's involvement in a 
triple homicide. As our questioning continued and we began to focus on the 
triple.homicide in Waltham, MA, TODASHEV asked about what we "could offer 

him." He then stated thatl 

TODASHEV then advised that he has looked on the Internet, and he knows 
that deals can be made with people that cooperate with investigators. He 
then asked the question, "what if I didn't go there at all? If I wasn't 
there, but I can tell you. What can you do for me?" 

(Administrative note: Partial Audio/Video recordings of the interview 
exist from this point forward. For an exact verbatim record of the 
recorded interview, see the CD contained in the lA section of the case 
file) 
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TODASHEV advised that 

The next time TODASHEV heard anything about.,..........__..._.....,. ........... _._ ........................ ____ _ 

September 12, 2011, the day after the robbery. 

After being confronted on his stor that he was not involved in the 

tri le homicide TODASHEV stated 
At this point TPR 

advised TODASHEV of his mirarida r~ After being provided with an 
FBI advice of rights form (FD-395), TPPL__Jagain advised TODASHEV of his 
rights and had him sign the form. This occurred at approximately 10:25 
P.M. 

TSARNAEV advised that he first approached TODAS.HEV during Ramadan D 
TODASHEV then paused and advised the 

interviewing TPRs/Agent that he was speaking to them without a lawyer 
present, and that he was not sure if he could trust them. TODASHEV then 
advised that he could obtain a lawyer if he wanted to and that it was his 
right to do so. He (TODASHEV), appeared somewhat reluctant to move 
forward, making the statement that he could be imprisoned for "like ten 
years." TODASHEV then continued advisin that TSARNAEV never mentioned 

that 
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b7A 

On the evening of September 11, 2011, TSARNAEV met TODASHEV nn the 
street somewhere in Brighton, MA near the WAIKRU gym. I I b7A 

As soon as I b7A 
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TODASHEV advised that he and TSARNAEV never really had a good 

relationship. 

When questioned as to whether 

When TODASHEV was asked aboutl 
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I 
TODASHEV previously stated,! 

TODASHEV advised thatl he left his cellular 
phone ·at home. ~l __________ ___.lhe purposely disposed of the phone 

(administrative note: TODASHEV's cellular phone number at the time was 
617-749-6196). TODASHEV boarded a GREYHOUND bus in South Station the day 
after the murders, bookinq a ticket usinq a Russian or Chechen name. 

TODASHEV advised that hel 

TODASHEV was offered an opportunity tol 

I He advised that he would like the opportunity to do soJ 

ITODASHEV attacked the interviewing agents and was shot and 
killed in a violent confrontation. For a more detailed account of the 
incident, please refer to the shooting incident review board investigation 

that was conducted. 
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11-os-: io2 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

ADVICE OF RIGHTS 
=c:±=======================;::=========== 

LOCATION: 

f o/4! /a,,n,,d ~ : 
YOUR RIGHl(S 

Before we ask you any questions, you must understand your rights. 

You have the right to remain silent. 

Any.thing you soy can be used aguinst you In court. 

You have the right to talk to a lawyer for .idvlcc before w~ ask you any questions. 

You have the right to have a lilwycr with you during questioning. 

If you cannot afrord a lawyer, one will be appointed for yo,u before ;:,ny questioning if you wish. 

If you decide to answer questions now without a lawyer present, you have the/ight to stop ansvvering cJt any time. 

CONSENT 

I have read this statement of my rights <:lnd I understand what my rights are. At this time, I am willing to ;:,nswer 

questions without a lawyer prcs:cnt. 

Signed: ~ ~ 
'"'---"------~:::=~=====.-----:---------------·--.........L~L, -------------

-~~ 
WITNESS 

Wltne'.;S: _____ ___. 

Witness: 

"flrne: 

FD-395 ( lcvlsed 11-05-2002) Page 1 of 1 FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

100.--·roo·d 29T9SZUT9 NIWO\i 18.:I s1:11 STOZ-ST-Nnr 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Document partlcip11mts hevo dlgi:ally &,gnod. 
All S1gt13!urue have 00\lo verlllodbye 
certified FBI iofom,11,1ijen sy5tem, 

• ? 

Date of entry 05/23/2013 

____ T_h_e_~following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector! 

-----~Ion 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Flbrida: ----

An internet search was ~onducted for a map of .. I ____________ __. 
Orlando, Florida 32819, Google Maps. 

A copy of the map was printed for inclusion in the_ lA ~ection of the 
file. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States (, Other (Internet}} 

File# 297-HQ-A127196 6-o-45 Date drafted 05/23/2013 

by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency: it and its contents arc not 

, to be distributed outside your agency. 
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UNCLASSIFIED~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

OFFICIAL RECORD, 
FD-302 (Rev 5-8-10) Documerit participants h8vo digita!ry signei 

All signaturu, hevo been verified b~ a 
certlfled FBI inform,~on system, 

Date of entry 05/23/2013 

, On 05/23/2013, Assistant Inspector-in-Place~! _________ ___. 

downloaded the following weather information from The Weather Channel 
Internet site regarding weather conditions on 05/22/2013 for the Orlando, 
Florida area: 

Sunrise: 6:32 AM; 

Sunset: 8:14 PM; 

High Temperature: 84 degrees Fahrenheit; 

Low Temperature: 69 degrees Fahrenheit; 

Weather Co_nditions: - PM Thunder Storms; .16 inches of 
precipitation; 

Moon Phase: waxing Gibbous 

A copy of the aforementioned printout was placed in a lA envelope. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States- (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D-t-/>f Datedrafied 05/23/2013 

by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 

I 
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- 1 of 1 - Docllmul'!tparticipo!'tt5M\'1ldigitaUytignod, 
Altsignall,IT&& have been venflodbya 
certified FBI inform.lillon sy1:tem. 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of entry 05/24/2013 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector in 

Place (AIIP)I Ion 05/24/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

Supervisory Special Agent I I as,ignedl to the Tampa Field 
Qffice (TP), Orlando Resident ·Agency provided AIIP with a four 
different 'FD-192 Evidence Logs (FD-192). On 05/22/2013, the FD-192s were· 

' ( 

established by the TP Evidence Response Team ERT at an A ent-involved 
shooting crime scene located at located at Orlando, L...-------r------'-------------, 
Florida 32819. ERT collected Boston Field Office Agent~----------
FBI issued weapon which included: one Glock 23 handgun with serial number 
of NM56922 (evidence item 1B22); one Glock 23 magazine (evidence item 
1B19); seven .40 caliber Smith and Wesson rounds (evidence item 1B20); and 
one Glock holster with s~rial numbei 0702-83 (evidence item 1B21). The 
FD-192s established chain of custody of all four components of the weapon 
by ERT members from the crime scene to the TP Evidence Control.Room. 

Investigationon 05/24/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D -{p3 Datedrafted -======;;;;;;;:;----------------'----- 05/24/2013 

by 
L_ ______ __J-----,----:-------------------------

T his document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of' the l'Bl. ft is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it a~q its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Docurientpat1ic:lparitshavodigital!~Sl{J110d, 

Alls1gnaturn1h8v11beenvorffledbya 
cerafied FBI infonn1!1°n $)'51llm, 

Date of entry 05/23/2013 

____ T_h_e_~following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector I 
~-----Ion 0~/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: ~---

Photographer! ! Laboratory Shooting Reconstruction Team, 
provided AI~!:....._....._ _____ .....,!_w_i....,th a sketch of the shooting sceqe and a 

photographic log of pictures taken atl Jorlando, 
Florida 32819. The sketch wa~ provided to the Shooting Incident Review 
Team. (SIRT) for use while conducting the shooting incident review. 

The sketch was scanned and uploaded intol ( ._ _____ _ in the lA section of 
the SIRT investigative file. 

\ 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D-lf7 Date drafted 05/23/2013 

by L ___________ J--------,,-----------------------
This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency: it and its contents are not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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All s,gnaluro, tu:,vo been verified by a 
certilled FBI informaUon sy&tem. 

,) 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

, FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 05/23/2013 

____ T_h_e__,following investigation was conducted·by Assistant Inspector I 
._ ___ __.!on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: ._ __ _ 

Photographer! !Laboratory Shooting Reconstruction Team, 
provided AI ~1--------~!~w_i_t~h aerial phot6graphs of the residence 

·located at! !orlando, Florida 32819. The photographs 
were provided to the Shooting Incident Review Team (SIRT) for use while 

conducting the shooting incident review. 
( ' 

The photographs were scanned and uploaded into~l _____ ~lin the lA 
section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED//.}!stJO 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Maitland,, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D- 57 Datedrafted 05/23/2013 

by L- __________ ....,, ___________________________________ _ 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents arc not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of entry 

OFFICIAL AECOAJ,~ 
Dorument partk:lpar,t, have digitally &igned. 
,Al! slgnaturue have been vertl'iedbye 

'cenlffed FBI infollnaij011 syatem. 

05/23/2013 

The following investigation~was conducted by Assistant Inspector in 
Place (AIIP)I Ion 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

Special Agent._ ____________ ____,of the Evidence Response Team 

(ERT), assigned to the Tampa Field Office (TP), Orlando Resident Agency 
provided AIIPI lwith a FBI ERT Casebook. The casebook documented ~n 
Agent-involved shooting on 05/22/2013, at! I Orlando, 
Florida 32819. The casebook was prepared by TP ERT Team Leader! ! 

The casebook included: an Administrative Worksheet that 
documented the ERT Roster and timeline of processing the scene; an Evidence 
Recovery Log; and a Photographic Log displaying 360 crime scene 
photographs. A CD-ROM accompanied the casebook which contained the same 
crime scene photographs. 

Investigation on 0 5/ 23I2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 
----------------------------------

Fi I e # 297-HQ-Al271966-Q-·.51 Date drafted 05/23/2013 

by-----------------------------------------------

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outs.ide your agency. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Dol;umentpa'tleipru,31lavedl'Qilally&'9~. 
Allslgnatura1h.webe6nvertliedhya 
c-ertifled FBI inforriaUon syt!em. 

05/23/2013" 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector in 
Place (AIIP}! I on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

of the Evidence Response Team, 
assigned to the Tampa Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency provided AIIP 

• r 

Special Agent!._ ___________ ____, 

._ __ ~!with a_ copy of a FD-597 Receipt for· Property. The FD-597, dated 
05/22/2013, was left at an Agent-involved shooting crime scene, 

~I ___________ _.I Orlando, Florida 32819. 

located at 

The FD-597 will be included in the lA section of the investigative 

file. 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

File,..#;;....__2_9_7_:...._H_Q_-_A_l_2_7_1_9 ... 6_6_-_D_-_53 _______________ -,--_______ Date drafted 05/23/2013 

by~ _______ ...._ ____________________________________ _ 

' This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD. 
DooJm1mtpa,.Jcip1mts.havodigitallys'9no,,:1, 
All slgna!uf"3& h8'ie b!'!&n ~ertncd by a 
ce1tlfi&d FB! ioformaU,:m S)'1.!em, 

05/24/2013 

The following investigation was,conducted by Assistant Inspector in 
Place (AIIP)! !on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

Special Agent (SA) lof the Evidence Response 
Team, assigned to the 'Tampa Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency provided 
AIIP! !with a crime scene sketch. On 05/22/2013, the not to scale 
sketch·was created by sA! !representing an Agent-involved ~hooting 
crime scene located at located atl I Orlando, Florida 
32819. 

The sketch is included in the lA section of the investigative file. 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D - l_p { Date drafted O 5 / 2 4 / 2013 

by.._ _________ ,.__ __________________________________ _ 

This ,document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and _is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

0FFICIAL_RECORD. 
Oocom11nt 1l8rtir.l;mnt1 h3ve dlQl\,:llly sigri~d 

All 5i9n1:1M·l'1 havf! ~n vcri(,edl:rya 
certified FBI mformali<m syst,:im. 

03/19/2014 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector(AI) 
!on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: Special Agent -----------------~I of the Evidence Response Team, assigned to the 

Tampa Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency provided AIi lwith a 
CD-ROM (CD). The CD contained 325 diff~rent photographs taken by TP ERT of 
Todashev's residence and items of evidence. A total of one CD was 
provided. 

The CD is included in the lA section of the investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted 0 3 /1 9 / 2 0 1 4 

by.._ __________ __._ _______________________________ _ 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Date of entry 

0FFtCIALIIEqpAD 
Doeumor,tpartlcipantshavadig,tanysfijnod. 
Afl si'gnah1rea ha--ia beao vortflod by 9 
certtfled F81 informallor. system . . 

05/23/2013 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector in 
Place (AIIP)I Ion 05/23/2013 at Orlando, ilorida: 

Special Agent._ ____________ ___,of the Evidence Response Team, 

assigned to the Tampa Field Office, Orlando Resident Agency provided AIIP 
! !with a CD-ROM (CD). The CD contained 37 different photographs of 
Boston Field Office Agent! !injuries and blood soaked 
clothing. Agentl ! received these injuries from an attack by 
Ibragim Todaschev, ~ho was being intervi~wed by Agentl las a 
suspect in a homicide investigation. The photos were taken at Florida 
Hospital, 601 East Rollins Street, _Orlando, Florida 32819. A total of 
three CDs were provided. 

The CDs are included in the lA section of the investigative file. 

r 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D-· 50 Date drafted O 5/23/2013 

by L--------..1----------------------------------

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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REPORT OF EXAMINATION 

ALL I1JFORMA'fI01J CONTAI1IBD 
BEREilr IS UNCJ.ASSI~IED EXCEPT 
'HBERE SlKMti OTHERWISE 

2501 Investigation Parkway 
Quantico, Virginia 22135 

CLASSIF'nm BY NSICG/JB6J43T30 

REASOIJ: 1.4 (C • 
DECl.A.SSU:'Y OIi: 02-25-20,f,0 
DATE: 02-:2:5-201!1 

To: TAMPA Date: July 7, 2013 

TP-ORA5 
Case ID No.: 89B-TP-2886360 

Lab No.: 130531006 AAR NN 
130614011 AAR NN 

130626012 AAJ.sNN 

Reference: Communications dated May 29, 2013, June 12, 2013 and June 25, 2013. 

Your No.: 

Title: IBRAGIM TODAS_H=E __ V..._: _____ _ 

SPECIAL AGENT .... I _______ _ 
May 22, 2013 

Date specimens received: May 31, 2013, June 14, 2013 and June 26, 2013 

The following items were received in the Firearms/Toolmarks Unit: 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE ACQUIRED FROM THE DISTRICT 9 MEDICAL 
EXAMINER, 2350 EAST MICHIGAN STREET ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND 
SUBMITTED TO THE LABORATORY FOR EXAMINATION (Communication dated 
May 29, 2013 assigned Laboratory number 130531006 AAR NN): 

Q9 

QIO 

Ql 1 

Q12 

Projectile from right chest wall (Your 1B23) 

Projectile from heart (Your 1B23) 

Projectile from left base of skull (Your 1 B23) 

Projectile from right back (Your 1B23) 

~l_l -----
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Q13 Projectile from left lower lung lobe (Your 1B23) 

Q14 Projectile from stomach (Your 1B23) 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE ACQUIRED BY FBI TAMPA AND SUBMITTED 
. TO THE LABORATORY FOR EXAMINATION (Communication dated June 12, 2013 

assigned Laboratory number 130614011 AAR NN): 

Q15 Shell casing (EV2) (Item 1B7, E03415572) 

Q16 Shell casing (EV3) (Item 1B8, E03415571) 

Q17 · Shell casing (EV 4) (Item 1B9, E03415570) 

Ql8 Shell casing (EV5) (Item 1B10, E03415569) 

Q19 Shell casing (EV6) (Item 1B11, E03415568) 

Q20 Shell casing (EV7) (Item 1B12, E03415567) 

Q21 Shell casing (EV12) (Item 1B13, E03415566) 

THE FOLLOWING ITEM WAS ACQUIRED BY FBI TAMPA AND SUBMITTED TO 
THE LABORATORY F.OR EXAMINATION (Communication dated June 25, 2013 
assigned Laboratory number 130626012 AAR NN): 

K5 Glock #23, Serial NMS622 (Item 1B22, E03415547) 

The results of the firearms examination are included in this report. 

Results of Examinations: 

Specimens Q9 through Q 14 are .40/10mm caliber copper jacketed hollow point bullets 
which were fired from a polygonal rifled barrel with six grooves, right twist. The Q9 through 
Q 14 bullets were identified as having been fired from the barrel of the K5 pistol. 

Page 2 of 7 
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Specimens Q15 through Q21 are .40 S&W caliber cartridge cases which bear the 
headstamp of Winchester ammunition. The Q 15 through Q21 cartridge ·cases were identified as 
having been fired in the K5 pistol. 

Specimen K5 is a .40 S&W caliber Glock pistol, Model 23, Serial Number NMS622. The 
K5 pistol functioned normally when test fired in the Laboratory. 

Methods: 

Bullets 

Two bullets, either two evidence items or one evidence item and one bullet test fired in 
the Laboratory, undergo two stages of comparison. First, the bullets are examined to determine 
and compare their class characteristics. The class characteristics of fired bullets include diameter, 
number of land and groove impressions, direction of twist, and the widths of the land and groove 
impressions. If the class characteristics of the two bullets are not clearly different, the 
examination moves to a second stage using comparative microscopy. 

A microscopic comparison examination consists of a search of the striated marks present 
on two bullets to determine if patterns of similarity exist. At the completion of these 
comparisons, one of the following three opinions is issued: 

1) Exclusion (Elimination) 

If two bullets have different class characteristics, an Exclusion opinion is rendered. 

Exclusion opinions based on a measured class difference or the physical comparison of a 
discernible difference in class characteristics cannot be reported unless a second qualified 
firearms/toolmarks Examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same 
conclusion. 

2) Identification 

If the following conditions are met during the comparison of microscopic marks, an opinion of 
Identification is rendered: 

· a) The degree of similarity is' greater than the Examiner has ever observed in previous 
evaluations of bullets known to have been fired from different barrels. 
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b) The degree of similarity is comparable to that normally observed in bullets known to 

have been fired from the same barrel. 

An Identification opinion cannot be reported unless a second qualified firearms/toolmarks 

Examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same conclusion. 

3) Inconclusive (No Conclusion) 

If the conditions required for an Exclusion or Identification are not observed, an opinion of 
Inconclusive is rendered. A failure to meet the conditions for an Exclusion or Identification 

could be the result of limited ~icroscopic marks of value, a lack of any observed microscopic 
similarity, or microscopic similarity that is present but too limited to meet the criteria for 

identification. 

Cartridge Cases 

Two cartridge cases, either two evidence items or one evidence item and one cartridge 
case test fired in the Laboratory, undergo two stages of comparison. First, the cartridge cases are 

examined to determine and compare their class characteristics. The class characteristics of fired 
cartridge cases include caliber, shape of firing pin impression, shape and orientation of breech 

face marks, and relative locations of extractor and ejector marks. If the class characteristics of 
the two cartridge cases are not clearly different, the examination moves to a second stage using 
comparative microscopy. 

A microscopic comparison examination consists of a search of the impressed and striated 

toolmarks present on two cartridge cases to determine if patterns of similarity exist. At the 
completion of these examinations, one of the following three opinions is issued: 

1) Exclusion (Elimination) 

If two cartridge cases have clearly different class characteristics, an Exclusion opinion is 

rendered. 

Exclusion opinions based on a measured class difference or the physical comparison of a 

discernible difference in class characteristics cannot be reported unless a second qualified 
firearms/toolmarks Examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same 

conclusion. 
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2) Identification 

If the following conditions are met during the comparison of microscopic marks, an opinion of 

Identification is rendered: 

a) The degree of similarity is greater than the Examiner has ever observed in previous 
evaluations of cartridge cases known to have been fired in different firearms. 

b) The degree of similarity is comparable to that normally observed in cartridge cases 
known to have been fired in the same firearm. 

An Identification opinion cannot be reported unless a second qualified firearms/toolmarks 
examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same conclusion. 

3) Inconclusive (No Conclusion) 

If the conditions required for an Exclusion or Identification are not observed, one of two types of 
inconclusive results can be reported. An opinion of No conclusion is rendered if the impressed 

and/or striated toolmarks present in either or both of the specimens are of poor quality, have 

limited microscopic marks of value, lack any observed microscopic similarity, or microscopic 
similarity that is present but too limited to meet the criteria for identification. An opinion of 

nothing found to indicate is rendered if the microscopic marks of value on both specimens are of 
good quality but lack correspondence in the impressed and/or striated marks. 

Firearms 

The make, model and caliber of a firearm are normally determined by directly observing 

manufacturer markings on the firearm in question. When these are not present, published 
materials and firearms in the Laboratory's Reference Firearms Collection may be used to make 

determinations. 

Unless otherwise noted, submitted firearms are test fired: 
1) in the condition they are received in the Firearms/Toolmarks Unit, 

2) with ammunition from the Laboratory's Reference Ammunition File, 

3) in a manner that allows for testing of available modes of fire such as manual safety 
engaged, manual safety disengaged, single action, double action, semi-automatic, fully 
automatic, etc. 
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Limitations: 

Bullets 

Firearms/Toolmark Identification is an empirical science that relies on objective 

measurements and a subjective comparison of microscopic marks of value. 

Due to random changes in barrels such as wear, corrosion and lead accumulation: bullets 
fired from the same barrel are sometimes not identifiable as such. Additionally, some barrel 

manufacturing methods routinely produce barrels that leave limited microscopic marks of value 

on fired bullets. Damaged, corroded or fragmented bullets may be of little or no value for 

comparison purposes. 

Cartridge Cases 

Firearms/Toolmark Identification is an empirical science that relies on objective 

measurements and a subjective comparison of microscopic marks of value. 

Due to possible changes in firearm operating surfaces from wear, corrosion and ordinary 

fouling and differences in ammunition design and construction, cartridge cases fired in the same 

firearm are sometimes not identifiable as such. Additionally, some firearm manufacturing 

methods routinely produce working surfaces that leave limited microscopic marks of value on 

fired cartridge cases. 

Firearms 

The results of firearms function examinations describe the operating condition of the 

firearm as it was received in the Firearms/Toolmarks Unit. 
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Remarks: 

The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations expressed in this 
report are retained in the FBI files. The submitted items and FTU secondary evidence will be 

returned under separate cover. For questions about the content_ of this report or the status of other 

firearms examinations, please contact Examiner¼ li:or other 
questions, please contact Request Coordinator S . I 

Firearms/Toolmarks Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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REPORT OF EXAMINATION 
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DECLASSIFY OB: 02-25-2040 
DATE,: 02-25-2015 

To: TAMPA Date: September 30, 2013 

Case ID No.': 89B-TP-2886360 

TP-ORA5 

Lab No.: 130531006 AAR NN 

130626012 AAR NN 

130808005 AAR NN 

Reference: Communications dated May 29, 2013, June 25, 2013 and August 6, 2013 

Your No.: 

Title: IBRAGIM TODASHEV; 
SPECIAL AGENT i--------------
May 22, 2013 

Date specimens received: May 31, 2013, June 26, 2013 and August 8, 2013 

The following items were received in the Firearms/Toolmarks Unit: 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE ACQUIRED FROM THE DISTRICT 9 MEDICAL 
EXAMINER, 2350 EAST MICHIGAN STREET ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND 
SUBMITTED TO THE LABO RA TORY FOR EXAMINATION (Communication dated 
May 29, 2013 assigned Laboratory number 130531006 AAR NN): 

Q9 

Ql0 

Ql 1 

Q12 
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Projectile from right chest wall (Your 1 B23) 

Projectile from heart (Your 1B23) 

Projectile from left base of skull (Your 1B23) 

Projectile from right back (Your 1B23) 
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Q13 Projectile from left lower lung lobe (Your 1B23) 

Q14 Projectile from stomach (Your 1B23) 

THE FOLLOWING ITEM WAS ACQUIRED BY FBI TAMPA AND SUBMITTED TO 
THE LABO RA TORY FOR EXAMINATION (Communication dated June 25, 2013 
assigned Laboratory number 130626012 AAR NN): 

K5 Glock #23, Serial NMS622 (Item 1B22, E03415547) 

THE FOLLOWING ITEM WAS SUBMITTED TO THE FBI LABORATORY BY FBI 
TAMPA PER REQUEST OF FBI INSPECTION DIVISION (Communication dated 
August 6, 2013 assigned Laboratory number 130808005 AAR NN): 

Q23 Projectile (lBl, E03415545) 

The results of the firearms examinations are included in this report. This report supplements FBI 
Laboratory report dated July 7, 2013 from the Firearms/Toolmarks Unit. 

Results of Examinations: 

Specimen Q23 is a .40/10mm caliber copper jacketed hollow point bullet which was 
fired from a polygonal rifled barrel with six grooves, right twist. The Q23 bullet was identified 
has having been fired from the barrel of the K5 pistol. 

Methods: 

Bullets 

Two bullets, either two evidence items or one evidence item and one bullet test fired 
in the Laboratory, undergo two stages of comparison. First, the bullets are examined to 
determine and compare their class characteristics. The class characteristics of fired bullets 
include diameter, number of land and groove impressions, direction of twist, and the widths of 
the land and groove impressions. If the class characteristics of the two bullets are not clearly 
different, the examination moves to a second stage using comparative microscopy. 
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A microscopic comparison examination consists pf a search of the striated marks 

present on two bullets to determine if patterns of similarity exist. At the completion of these 

comparisons, one of the following three opini•ons is issued: 

1) Exclusion (Elimination) 

If two bullets have different class characteristics, an Exclusion opinion is rendered. 

Exclusion opinions based on a measured class difference or the physical comparison of a 

discernible difference. in class characteristics cannot be reported unless a second qualified 

firearms/toolmarks Examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same 

conclusion. 

2) Identification 

If the following conditions are met during the comparison of microscopic marks, an opinion of 

Identification is rendered: 

a) The degree of similarity is greater than the Examiner has ever observed in previous 

evaluations of bullets known to have been fired from different barrels. 

b) The degree of similarity is comparable to that normally observed in bullets known to 

have been fired from the same barrel. 

An Identification opinion cannot be reported unless a second qualified firearms/toolmarks . 

Examiner has examined the items in question and reached the same conclusion. 

3) Inconclusive (No Conclusion) 

If the conditions required for an Exclusion or Identification are not observed, an opinion of 

Inconclusive is rendered. A failure to meet the conditions for an Exclusion or Identification 

could be the result of limited microscopic marks of value, a lack of any observed microscopic 

similarity, or microscopic similarity that is present but too limited to meet the criteria for 

identification. 

Limitations: 

Bullets 
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Firearms/Toolmark Identification is an empirical science that relies on objective 
measurements and a subjective comparison of microscopic marks of value. 

Due to random changes in barrels such as wear, corrosion and lead accumulation, 
bullets fired from the same barrel are sometimes not identifiable as such. Additionally, some 
barrel manufacturing methods routinely produce barrels that leave limited microscopic marks of 
value on fired bullets. Damaged, corroded or fragmented bullets may be of little or no value for 
comparison purposes. 

Remarks: 

The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations expressed in this 
report are retained in the FBI files. The submitted items and FTU secondary evidence will be 

returned under separate cover. For questions about the content of this report or the status of other 
firearms examinations, please contact Examined IFor other 
questions, please contact Request Coordinator sAj I 

Firearms/Toolmarks Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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DATE.: 05-04-.2015 

2501 Investigation Parkway 
Quantico, Virginia 22135 

REPORT OF EXAMINATION 

ALL INFOIIMATION CON'l'.AIHED 
BERE.I1i IS UIICLASSil'IED· EXCEPT 
WHERE SBOWH OTHERWISE, 

To: Tampa 
IP-QBA5 

Date: September 18, 2013 

Case ID No.: 89B-TP-2886360 

Lab No.: 130808005 AAR FY 
130816006 AAR FY 

Reference: Communications dated August 6, 2013 and August 15, 2013 

Your No.: 

Title: IBRAGIM TODAS.,...H ..... E ..... V_· --------. 
SPECIAL AGENTI 
May 22, 2013 ---------

Dates specimens received: August 8, 2013 and August 16, 2013 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE SUBMITTED TO THE FBI LABO RA TORY BY FBI 
TAMPA PER REQUEST OF FBI INSPECTION DIVISION: 

The specimen listed below was examined in the Nuclear DNA Unit under cover of 
communication dated August 6, 2013 (130808005 AAR FY): 

Q22 Suit coat (1B4, E03415575) 

The specimens listed below were examined in the Nuclear DNA Unit under cover of 
communication dated August 15, 2013 (130816006 AAR FY): 

Q26 White table (1B32, E03415562) 

Q27 Shelf from table (1B33, E03415561) 

This report contains the results of the serological and nuclear DNA analyses. 

Results of Serological Examinations: 

Blood was identified I on specimens Q22, Q26, and Q27. 
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Results of Nuclear DNA Examinations: 

Specimens Q22-l (cutting from bloodstain on suit coat), Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-7, Q22-
10 (cuttings from stains on the suit coat), Q26-l, Q26-2 (swabbings of bloodstains on table), 
Q26-3 (swabbing of stain on the table), Q27-l (swabbing of bloodstain on shelf), Q27-4 --------..... swabbin of stain on shel 

Based on the typing results froni I male DNA3 is present in the 
DNA obtained from specimens Q22-l, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-7, Q22-10, Q26-l, Q26-2, Q26-3, 
Q27-l, Q27-4, Q27-5, and Q27-6. 

The STR typing results from specimens Q22-l, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-7, Q22-10, Q26-
l, Q26-2, Q26-3, Q27-l, Q27-4, Q27-5, and Q27-6 were compared to the STR typing results 

from specimen K70 (TODASHEV), a known sample from IBRAGIM TODASHEY [s}bmitted 
under FBLLaboratory Number l30508016AARFYj and 
reported in the FBI Laboratory report dated May 19, 2013]. 

Based on the STR typing results, specimen K70 (TODASHEV) is excluded as a 
potential contributor of the DNA obtained from specimens Q22-7, Q26-2, and Q27-4. 

The STR typing results from specimen Q27-1 indicate the presence of DNA from two 

or more individuals. A male major contributor can be discerned and is suitable for comparison 
purposes. The STR typing results for the minor contributor tq_ specimen Q27-l are suitable for 
matching purposes. Specimen K70 (TODASHEV) is excluded as a potential contributor of the 
DNA obtained from specimen Q27-l. 

The STR typing results from specimens Q22-1, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-10, Q26-1, 
Q26-3, Q27-5, and Q27-6 indicate the presence of DNA from two or more individuals. The STR 
typing results for the minor contributor to specimens Q22-1, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-10, Q26-1, 
Q26-3, Q27-5, and Q27-6 are not suitable for matching purposes; however, they may be utilized 
for exclusionary purposes. 4 Specimen K70 (TODASHEV) is excluded as a potential contributor 
of the DNA obtained from specimens Q22-l, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-10, Q26-1, Q26-3, Q27-5, and 
Q27-6. 
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It is noted that the DNA profile obtained from specimens Q22-7, Q26~2, and 
Q27-4, and the major DNA profile obtained from specimens Q22-1, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-10, 
Q26-l, Q26-3, Q27-1, Q27-5, and Q27-6 are consistent with having originated from the same 
male individual. 

The DNA typing results obtained from the tested specimens are not eligible for entry 
into the Combined DNA Index System (CODIS). These results will be maintained by the FBI 
Laboratory for possible future comparisons. · 

No other serological or nuclear DNA examinations were conducted. 

Methods/Limitations: 

The following methods and limitations apply to the results/conclusions provided in the results 
section(s) of this report and are referenced by number in the body of the text for clarity. 

3 The presence of male DNA in a mixture may limit the ability to determine if female DNA is 
also present in that mixture. 

4 As used here, STR typing results are deemed not suitable for matching purposes(i.e., 
inconclusive) when the potential exists that not all of the genetic information in a biological 
sample has been detected. For STR typing results to be used for matching purposes, sufficient 
DNA quality and/or quantity is necessary. 

Page 3 of 4 

130808005 AAR FY 

b7E 

TODASHEV-97 
S~T 



Remarks: 

The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations expressed in this report 
are retained in the FBI files. The submitted items will be returned to you under separate cover. 
For questions about the content of this report, please contact Forensic Examiner ... ! _____ .... 
I I For questions about the status of your submission, including any remaining 
forensic examinations, please contact Supervisory Special Ageni I I ~---~ 

In addition to the evidence in the case, the Nuclear DNA Unit has generated 
secondary evidence that will also be returned·to you. The secondary evidence can be found in a 
package marked NUCLEAR DNA UNIT SECONDARY EVIDENCE. It is recommended that 
this evidence be stored in a refrigerator or freezer and isolated from evidence that has not been 
examined. 

Nuclear DNA Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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REPORT OF EXAMINATION 

2501 Investigation Parkway 
Quantico, Virginia 22135 

To: TAMPA Date: October 28, 2013 
IP-OR AS 

Reference: Communication dated October 3, 2013 

Your No.: 

Case ID No.: 89B-TP-2886360 

Lab No.: 131008011 AARFY 

Title: IBRAGIM TODAS .... H_E_V ..... ; _____ ----. 
SPECIAL AGENT .... I ______ ____. 
May 22, 2013 

Date specimens received: October 8, 2013 

The specimens listed below were examined in the Nuclear DNA Unit: 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WERE SUBMITTED TO THE FBI LABO RA TORY BY FBI 
TAMP A PER REQUEST OF FBI INSPECTION DIVISION: 

Q28 · Dark pants (IBIS, E03415557) 

Q29 Dark coat (1B16, E03415556) 

Q30 Dress shirt (1Bl8, E03415554) 

This report contains the results of the serological and nuclear DNA analyses. 

Results of Serological Examinations: 

Blood was identified' on specimens Q28, Q29, and Q30. 

Results of Nuclear DNA Examinations: 

Specimens Q28-1 and Q28-2 ( cuttings from bloodstains on pants), Q29-l ( cutting 
from bloodstain on coat), and Q30-l (cutting from bloodstain on dress shirt) were subjected to 
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Based on the typing results froml lmale DNA is present in the 
DNA obtained from specimens Q28-1, Q28-2, Q29-1, and Q30-1. 

The STR typing results from specimens Q28-1, Q28-2, Q29-1, and Q30-1 are 
consistent with having arisen from a single individual and are suitable for comparison purposes. 

It is noted that for comparison purposes, specimen Q30- l is being used as alternate 
reference samples for I land hereafter will be designated specimen Q30-1 

I Ito further differentiate it from the other questioned (Q) specimens analyzed. 

The STR typing results from specimen Q30-ll lwere compared to the 
STR typing results from specimens Q22-1 (cutting from bloodstain on suit coat), Q22-2, Q22-4, 
Q22-7, Q22-10 (cuttings from stains on the suit coat), Q26-1, Q26-2 (swabbings of bloodstains 
on table), Q26-3 (swabbing of stain on the table), Q27-1 (swabbing of bloodstain on shelf), 
Q27-4 (swabbing of stain on shelf), Q27-5, and Q27-6 (swabbings of bloodstains on shelf) 
[submitted under FBI Laboratory numbers 130808005 AAR FY and 130816006 AAR FY and 
reported in the FBI Laboratory report dated September 18, 2013]. 

Based on the STR typing results3 and to a reasonable degree of scientific certainty, 

specimen Q30-1 I lis the source4 of the DNA obtained from specimens Q22-7, 
Q26-2, and Q27-4. 

Based on the STR typing results3 and to a reasonable degree of scientific certainty, 

specimen Q30-ll ~s the major contributor 4 of the DNA obtained from specimens 
Q22-1, Q22-2, Q22-4, Q22-10, Q26-1, Q26-3, Q27-1, Q27-5, and Q27-6. 

The DNA typing results obtained from the tested specimens are not eligible for entry 
into the Combined DNA Index System (CODIS). These results will be maintained by the FBI 

Laboratory for possible future comparisons. 

No.other serological or nuclear DNA examinations were conducted. 
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Methods/Limitations: 

The following methods and limitations apply to the results/conclusions provided in the results 
section(s) of this report and are referenced by number in the body of the text for clarity. 

1 The identification of blood on an item is established bv first usinQ when annlicablel 

I Th~ lis used for sex determination. Insufficient DNA quality and/or 
quantity can affect the ability to generate a DNA typing result and is not an absolute 
determination that an individual did not corp.e into contact with an item of evidence. 
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Remarks: 

The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations expressed in this report 
are retained in the FBI files. The submitted items will be returned to you under separate cover. 
For uestions about the content of this report, please contact Forensic Examiner ... ! _____ __. 

For questions about the status of your submi~sjon jnc)udjng any remajnjng 
..,.o .... r_e_n_s1 .... c_e_x_r_m_m_a"""t-10ns, please contact Supervisory Special Agen~ ... ____________ ____. 

In addition to the evidence in the case, the Nuclear DNA Unit has generated 
secondary evidence that will also be returned to you. The secondary evidence can be found in a 
package marked NUCLEAR DNA UNIT SECONDARY EVIDENCE. It is recommended that 
this evidence be stored in a refrigerator or freezer and isolated from evidence that has not been 
examined. 

Nuclear DNA Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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UNCLASSIFIED 

REPORT OF EXAMINATION 

2501 Investigation Parkway 
Quantico, Virginia 22135 

To: Tampa Date: October 24, 2013 
ORAS 

Reference: Communication dated August 6, 2013 

Your No.: 

Case ID No.: 89B-TP-2886360 

Lab No.:_ 130808005 AAR ABP 

Title: IBRAGIM TODAS,...H .... E ..... V ..... : ---------. 
SPECIAL AGENT .... I ______ ____. 
May 22, 2013 

Date specimens received: August 8, 2013 

The specimens listed below were examined in the Latent Print Operations Unit: 

Q24 Sword (1B3, E03415549) 

Q25 Broomstick (1B14, E03415548) 

This report documents the friction ridge print examinations. 

Results of Examinations: 

One latent fingerprint of value was detected on Q24. No latent prints of value were 
detected on the remaining specimen. 

The latent fingerprint is not a fingerprint ofIBRAGIM TODASHEV, UCN 
20549HD1;1 
SA!,___ _______ __, 

Methods: 

Items of evidence submitted to the Latent Print Operations Unit for examination may 
be examined visually, examined with various light sources, and/or processed with chemicals and 
powders to detect the presence of latent friction ridge prints. The specific sequence of 
· examinations and processes depends upon the nature of the evidence. 
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friction rjdge odot examinations are con~ucted usin~
0 

___________ ..... 

I Jwhich includes an assessment of the 
quantity and quality of the information present. The steps 04 ___ ... ~re applied to each 
examination as appropriate. 

Analysis is the assessment of a friction ridge print to determine if sufficient reliable 
details are present to conduct a comparison with another print and to reach an identification 
conclusion. If these conditions are met, the print is determined to be of value. 

Comparison is the direct side-by-side observation of friction ridge prints of value to 
determine whether or not the informatio_n in two prints is in agreement. 

Evaluation is the formulation of a conclusion based on the information gathered 
during the analysis and comparison of the friction ridge prints. 

I 

Conclusions that can be reached are as follows: 

• Identification - the determination that there is sufficient quality and quantity 
of detail in agreement to conclude that two friction ridge prints originated 
from the same source. 

• Exclusion - the determination that there is sufficient quality and quantity of 
detail in disagreement to conclude that two friction ridge prints did not 
originate from the same source. 

• Inconclusive - the determination that corresponding areas of friction ridge 
prints are absent and/or unreliable and therefore cannot be identified or 
excluded. 

Verification is the independent application o~ I 
-------------~ethodology to a friction ridge print by another examiner. 

Interpretations: 

Due to the many factors involved in the deposition of a friction ridge print, neither the 
absence of a friction ridge print on evidence nor the exclusion of a friction ridge print with a 
given source disassociate that ,source from having touched the evidence. 
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Remarks: 

For questions about the content of this report, please contact Physical 
Scientist/Forensic Examine~ I 

For questions about the status of your submission, including any remaining forensic 
examinations, please contact Request Coordinato~ I 

The requested object shots have been forwarded to the Inspection Division as 
requested. 

The specimens and a photograph of the det.ected latent print of value are being 
returned under separate cover. The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations 
expressed in this report are retained in the FBI files. 

Latent Prmt Operations Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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REPORT OF EXAMINATION 

2501 Investigation Parkway 
Quantico, Virginia 22135 

To: Tampa 
.ORAS 

Date: November 13, 2013 

Case ID No.: 89B-TP-2886360 

LabNo.: 131010009AARABP 
131022013 AAR ABP 

Reference: Communications dated October 9, 2013, and October 18, 2013 

Your No.: 

Title: IBRAGIM TODA,HEV: 
SPECIAL AGENTl May 22, 2013 ________ ____, 

Dates specimens received: October 10, 2013 and October 22, 2013 

The specimen listed below was submitted under cover of communication dated October 9, 2013, 
assigned Laboratory number 131010009, and examined in the Latent Print Operations Unit: 

Q31 One (1) notebook (1B2, E03415550) 

The specimen listed below was submitted under cover of communication dated October 18, 
2013, assigned Laboratory number 131022013, and examined in the Latent Print Operations 
Unit: 

K6 Fingerprints and palm prints oflbragiin Todashev (1B31, E03415740) 

This report documents the friction ridge print examinations. 

Results of Examinations: 

Six latent fingerprints and two latent palm prints of value were detected on Q3 l. 

The six latent fingerprints and one latent palm print detected on Q31, a notebook, 
have been identified as fingerprints and a palm print ofIBRAGIM TODASHEV, UCN 
20549HD1. 

The remaining latent palm print is not a palm print of TODASHEV. 
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Methods: 

Items of evidence submitted to the Latent Print Operations Unit for examination may 
be examined visually, examined with various light sources, and/or processed with chemicals and 
powders to detect the presence of latent friction ridge prints. The specific sequence of 
examinations and processes depends upon the nature of the evidence. 

Friction rid e rint examinations are conducted using 
which· --an--as_s_e-ss-m-en""'t,...o ....... t..,.....e____, ...._ _______ ___,..,.....---,_.... ___________ ,,........, 

ormat10n present. T e steps of are applied to each ...._ _ __, 

Analysis is the assessment of a friction ridge print to determine if sufficient reliable 
details are present to conduct a comparison with another print and to reach an identification 
conclusion. If these conditions are met, the print is determined to be of value. 

Comparison is the direct side-by-side observation of friction ridge prints of value to 
determine whether or not the information in two prints is in agreement. · 

Evaluation is the formulation of a conclusion based on the information gathered 
during the analysis and comparison of the friction ridge prints. 

Conclusions that can be reached are as follows: 

• Identification - the determination that there is sufficient quality and quantity 
of detail in agreement to conclude that two friction ridge prints originated 
from the same· source. 

• Exclusion - the determination that there is sufficient quality and quantity of 
detail in disagreement to conclude that two friction ridge prints did not 
originate from ~he same source. 

• Inconclusive - the determination that corresponding areas of friction ridge 
prints are absent and/or unreliable and therefore cannot be identified or 
excluded. 

Verification is the independent application o~ I 
...._ ___________ _.lmethodology to a friction ndge pnnt by another exammer. 
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Interpretations: 

The presence of a friction ridge print on an item of evidence indicates contact was 
made between the source and the item of evidence. The presence of a friction ridge print alone 
does not necessarily indicate the significance of the contact or the time frame during which the 
contact occurred. 

Due to the many factors involved in the deposition of a friction ridge print, neither the 
absence of a friction ridge print on evidence nor the exclusion of a friction ridge print with a 
given source disassociate that source from having touched the evidence. 

Remarks: 

Eullv and cJear)v recorded ua)m mints for SAi I 
.__ __________________________ .....,~ecorded in connection 
with this case as necessary, should be submitted to the FBI Laboratory's Evidence Control Unit 
with correspondence referencing FBI Laboratory number 131010009. The submitted prints will 
be used for comparisons and any latent print testimony you may desire in this matter. 

The known prints of TODASHEV should be retained in your files for possible future 
court use. The individual who recorded these prints will be a necessary witness. 

For questions ab~ut the content oftbis reooct o)eas]· contact Physical 
Scientist/Forensic Examiner! -------------

For questions about the status of your submissions, including any remaining forensic 
examinations, please contact Request Coordinator! I 

The specimens and photographs of the detected ~atent prints of value are being 
returned under separate cover. The supporting records for the opinions and interpretations 
expressed in this report are retained in the FBI files. · 

Latent Print Operations Unit 

This report contains the opinions/interpretations of the examiner(s) who issued the report. 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry · 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Doo.,r,arrtpartJci08(ltsh3vedigilall}'S'9"1Bd. 

All ~;nal\lrea hava been Ylllffied ll)' a 
~ FBt informalJon syst8m. 

05/23/2013 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant 

Inspector-in-Place (AIIP) I Ion 05/22/2013 at Orlando, Florida: ._ __________ _. 

Special Agent {SA)I bf the Boston Field Office, One 
Center Plaza, Suite 600, Boston, MA 02108, provided AIIPI 1-

lcopies of Firearms Information, Registration and Shooter Tracking 
_(_F_J_R_S_T_)_reports pertaining to SAi I The qualifications 

scores are for the ,eriod of 02/07/2013 through 03/14/2013. The documents 
s0owed sAI Jobtained the following scores on the listed dates with 
the indicated weapon: 

Serial Point Qualifying 
Date Make Model Score 

Number Scale Score 

2/7/2013 Glock 23 NMS622 

2/7/2013 Glock 23 NMS622 

3/14/2013 Glock 23 NMS622 

3/14/2013 Glock 23 NMS622 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/22/2013 at Orlando, ·Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D -42- Date drafted 05/23/2013 

b6 
b7C 

b7E 

b6 

by L...----------...1---------------------------~---,------ b7C 
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e,mJfloo FBI intormaUon system, 

UNCLASSIFIED//~· 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 05/24/2013 

~--~T~h~e~following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector! 
______ Ion May 24, 2013 at Orlando, Florida: ----

Attached to this EC is al lprint out of the property r~cords for ___________ I The record~s_r_e_f~lect sAl~ ______ !{s issued a Glock 23, 

Serial number NMS622, Barcod~ numbe~ F2396122. 

T~e! brintout was scanned and uploaded into ~l ____ ~lin the lA 
section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLAS~IFIED/~ 

Investigationon 05/24/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D - /tJ'$? Datedratied 05/24/2013 

b6 
b7C 
b7E 

b7E 

,......;==========,----'---------------- b6 
b7C 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It 1s the property of the FBI and 1s loaned to your agency 1t and its contents are not I 

rn be a;s,c,bc,kd ooo,deyoocag,,,cy . TQDASHEV-98~ 

by...._ ____________ _.__ _________________________________ _ 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
[k,c;un,;nt paftlcipents have digitally signod­
All sJgnaNroa have been vellfted by a 
eartffied FBI information S)-Slem, 

05/23/2013 

The following information was provided by Supervisory Special Agent 

(SSA)_! !chief Division Counsel, Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), Boston Field Office. 

~ssAJ~---~dvised FBI Deadly Force Policy Training was conducted on 
10/23/2012 during legal training provided to the Boston Field·Office 

personnel: Either SS~ ~r SSAI !Associate Division 
Counsel were the presenters of this training, which was memorialized via 
Electronic Communication (EC) 'dated 01/17/2013, lZ-BS-89582 (Legal 

. ' ~ 

Training) Serial 850. A review of the attenrance records conducted by SSA 

._ __ ~!indicated Special Agent I jwas present for the training. 

A copy of the EC described above and attached attendance record was 
provided to the Shooting Incident Review Team for inclusion in the lA 
section of the file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/22/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (Email) 

. File ... #_2_9_7_-_H_Q_-_A_1_2_7_1_9_6_6_-_o_,_Lt_l-,-____________________ Date drafted 05/23/2013 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
by.__________________________________________ b7C 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and.is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are·not ~ 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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~~ 
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

ALL INFOIIMATION CON'l'.AIHED 
HERETH IS UIICLASSil'Ilm• EXCEPT 
WHERE SBOWH OTHERWISE, 

Date of entry 

0..,FFICIAL RECORD. 
D<:>cumortt participants tiavo digit.a~~ sjgnsd. 
All slgfltllunl& have. been varffiedbya 
eertlfied FBI infomli:1!1on system. 

. 05/23/2013 

The following investigation was fonducted by A~sistant 
Inspector-in-Placelon 05/,23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

SAi l FBI, Tampa Field Office, searched Universal Indices 
for Ibragim Todashev and found the following positive results: 

}SlL .... J ______ I dated 04/23/2013 
~2. 89B-TP-2886360 dated 05/23/2013 
·- 3. ated 05/01/2013 
\JJ4~ ted 05/01/2013 

' 
Id 

Ida 
~5 dated 05/03/2013 
1~~6: ted 05/01/2013 

7. 06/28/2012 

I 
I 

Ida 
I dated 

sAI !provided a printed copy of the report described above for 
inclusion in the lA portiori of the investigative file. 

lnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D- ~LR Date drafted 0 5 / 2 3./ 2 0 1 3 

by .__ _________ ...a---------------:,------------------------
This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Doaimflfltparticlpan!Shavedigiratly&ign&d. 
AllslrJ1181!Jreahavebeerlvertfiedbya 
cert/tied FBI informatton system. 

05/23/2013 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant 

Inspector-in-Place! on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

b6 
b7C 

Supervisory Special Agentl I Tampa Field Off{ce, Otlando 
Residence Agency provided writer with a printed copy of a report dated 
05/23/2013 from the National Crime Information Center (NCIC), with criminal 
history for Ibragim Todashev, born 09/22/1985, SSAN 012-92-3664, FBI number 
20549HD1. 

The NCIC report contained two entries for Todashev, to include two 

arrests for offenses including aggravated battery, disorderly conduct, and 
resisting arrest. 

At the time of the NCIC query, no active arrest warrants ~ere located 
for Todashev. 

The documents described have been included in the lA section of the 
investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-_A1271966-D-·55 Datedrafted 05/23/2013 

by-----------------------------------------------

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FB_I and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

DoQlmentpartlc<pan\$haygdigitallysigned. 
Al!Slgoaturua have been vCli!!edl:;ya 
certified FBI inforr:.allon sys:mn-

Date of entry 05/23/2013 

.---T...._.h~e....,following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector • 
_____ Ion 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

Supervi~ory Special Agent ~I ________ Tampa'Field Office, ORA, 
provided a copy of a Boston Police Department (BPD) incident report on 
Ibragim Todaschev. The report was in reference to a traffic altercation 
Todaschev was involved in on 02/11/2010. 

TheOreports were scanned and uploaded into~l ____ _.lin the lA 
section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

1nvcstit1ationon 05/23/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United, States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al,271966-o-(QD Datedr.aftcd 
....-:========,-----'----------------

05/23/2013 

by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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Erlward F Davis, Police Commissioner 

INCIDENT REPORT 
ORIGINAL 

Page 1 of 3 

STATUS: APPROVED 
CLl!AR. DIST. 

A1 

UCR1NC1~"1"ft~r,1j.N--';P..,'\\,.''.'>l' - \UCRFINALINCIDEHTD~}l'T!0~1. •. .._,, t~rus ~--.,:. ,,.. ;.--: _ ~~~_:JRREDFROM DATE OCCURRED TO 

DISORDERL YrP.ERSON"' _,\DISORDERLY P.ERSON . ~'. ~. :~ Cleared Bv;Affliit....-.. :: . 02/11/201°0""-.. 

~~ E .. 
R1 
SJ 
01 
N: s· 
:::: 

't 

; :~ 

p, 

r 
s. o· 
N. 
~.' 

.·.-; 
.'. 

·,;, 

~l 
8;' 
o· 
N! 
sl 
~-.: 
,:;., 
r, -~ 
:·, 

.~ 
,, 

21TYPE 

VICTIM 
ALIAS 

HE/'"'., 

I 
OCCUPATION 

IWEJGlfT 

looo 

ADDRESS 

SUIW 

NIA 
MARITAL STATUS 

SPECIAL CHARACTERISTICS(INCLUDING CLOTiilNG) 

; : .... :l:s.s:i-io.; , 
.,,, ... ~ ~ .,, , ,.i ..... l ~, ,:·,,J. 

r·r~i.\$'··.~ -
of ·,~ - -" 1GeNoER 

IIMALE 
". ~ ✓.'I HA!R .. 

';;-,,,_ -, ... 

3 ITYPE NAME (LAST, RRST, MO ,8.S.NO. 

VICTIM 
AllAS. ADDRESS 

HE/GlfT IWEJGlfT 

0-00 000 

BUILD 

NIA 
OCCUPATION MARITAL 8TAT\JS 

SPECIAL CHARACTERISTICS(INCLIJDING CLOTHJNO) 

CUT OFF BY SUSPECT CAUSING ACCIDENT 

I 

I EMAIL ADDRESS 

4 ITYPE 
NAME II .AST FJR<>T un 

REPORTER I 
AllA8 ADDRESS 

HE/GlfT 'WEIGHT BUILD 

OCCUPATION MARITAL BTA T\J8 I EMAIL ADDRESS 

SPECIAL CHARACTERISTICS(INCLUDING CLOTHING) 

,~R 

18.B:NO. 

I I GENDER 

,~R 

AGE 

. ,~-~., ... -- ...... V DOB _.,. l'Aric: 

I I -.... 

·-. . -.,,· 
1'"' 

,~~NONO. IDOCl<ETNO. 

!RACE DOB 1..,,., 

I I 
IEYES 

Ir~·-·· CONTACT02 

I OO0l-000-0000 

,~~GNO. I DOCKET NO. 

IRACE 
DOB AGE 

0 

IEYES 

lcoNTACT•t ICONTACU2 

I I cooo1-0oo-oooo · 
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i~ 5 ITYPE ..... c" ...... ""'""' "" e.e. No. l:OKJNG NO. I DOCKET NO. 

e:,~~Vlll:.:..TN:.:.:E::SS=-----~i2w-=======~l:::'.'.:::::~m;--7~~------'-~uS..L--=--=--=....1a~m:1 .... 1, 0'11AUAS ,IGENDER l'"CE ~A '
4

"'" 

t ll~E ~ I 
) 11-HE-1_G_HT __ ..,l'""we-,o-HT-----,-~-.. u.1o'A1LD .................... -------"11~HA1-R---a1.===------l=~-... IEY_E_s _____ _._ _____ ---ll 

f)( ().()0 IV, 

:',·<. OCCUPATION ·' _! •.• -::. ~AL:'STATUS L~.L~DRESS 1'·CO__,NT....,ACT __ ._1 ___ .. 1CONTACT"2 

1--------=-;.;•::::•.::._.L_ ___ ,----1.·1_ .. _ .. _,,,__· -"";...· ...:,·,--------------------'lc""100""0='-1~..::.:.;100-0=-=o:.:coo=---1i 
.:, SPECIAL CHARACTERIBTICS(INCl,UDl~:cCoffiiNG)·~ '., -:.. •. _ ' •""-.:!., 
;~ STATED.2"GI~ IM:~lt!Cl<ING~USPECTYJHILfHE WAS ·o~\"fHE GROUND 

I DOCKET NO. 

• J ,. ,., 

ls.a. NO. • • , I BOOi<JNG,NO. • I DOCKET NO!~' 
01i:-e2-3864 1!20100025810 ..,, ·. 11 : I~ 

•• OCCUPA!1~~-' .{(O::;:,-··_:-.;:r~IT~BT1!ll!S -, ''l~.1'.¢ERESS ,:;,:~. :• .. 
,:-:, DRIVER'---:£.,.,_,.\;~cp-.~.:._<~~~~-r~.~'1·.l: ... ~ ~)i ~--·_,:~~-'/ .,•;,'",.i.·~~· .. :.r;~·-=--,• 

'.~: SPECIAI.CHARACTERIST198(1NCLI.fDINGCLOTHING)';°•"f,.-•_ :•. ·, ·., ;.L ·•, 
~ 4·L .. ~ :~--~-~~~~~,r~> ,,f~~·-~~_:{-~)j. 11 · 1 --(· 

:v: STATUS \,-:-;-:,,.:__) y-·· .. · REG.STATE·,:.,,;• •. JiiEG.NO. .:- V PUITETIPE 

!~ TOIM:D· SUSPECTVEHICL'e°·- MA ·-:'-<·.::,}: "lfv5421, :; t, ohi'eR 1 

·~ VEHJCLE~YEAR V.I.N. 'i ' STYLE'' 
::: FORD- 2009 1FBSS31L29DAS3J5. •• .·. VAN i'. 
r,: OPERATOR'S NAME 

TODASHEV IBRAGIM I
UCENSENO. 

838960396 

• BTA'!l=l: 
- .\;t -•~-~'-· . MA-· :, 

.'. ':,, 
,I'! 

-~ 
OWNER'S NAME · OWNER·~~ss~... ,..:·.,. -_-£;;..--;~r:r,J-

50 BROADLAWN7P.ARK NEWTONMA.02467-3524 ,., COCO TRANSPORTATION 
~v1 STATUS 
;E 

DC",_RTATE 

H· Ml/ACCIDENT :g 
;c~ VEHICLE MAKE YEAR V.LN. 

.E· PONTIAC - 2005 ·11 
-, OPERATOR'S NAME -, IUCENSENO. 
~;, 
',;1 I 
•· OWNER'S NAME 
;•J 

,v, STATUS 
.E 
H NIA ,J' I 
.c: VEHICLE MAKE YEAR •L·• V.1.N. 

:E- MAZDA-2008 S' 

1) OPERATOR'S NAME IUCENSENO. 

~.i. i I .. , I 
;) OWNER'S .,,.u., 
tt .,.,. 
NARRATIVE ANO ADDmONAL INFORMATlON: 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

PLATE TYPE 

STYLE 

HATCHBACK 

YEAR(EXP) I MODEL 

COLOR(TOP-BOTTOM) 

BLUE-BLUE 
STATE I OPERATOR'S ADORC<><> 

STYLE 

HATCHBACK 

COLOR(TOP-BOTTOM) 

RED-RED 
STATE I OPERATOR'S ADDRESS 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

' 

I 
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Documef!l.partidpantstlrffldigitallysignsd. 
All slgnaturH havs been vcrlflc<:lbye 
eerti!led FBI il'lforma!Jori system, 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 05/23/2013 

The following investigation was_ conducted by Assistant Inspector I 
.-----,Ion 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: ._ __ _ 

su'pervisory Special Agent I I Tampa Field Office, ·oRA, 
provided a copy of an Osceola County Sheriff's Office (OCSO) incident 
report on Ibragim Todaschev. The report was in reference to an assault at 
the Alibaba Hookah Bar on 07/07/2012. 

The OCSO reports were scarined and uploaded into_! _____ lin the lA 
section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D- 5CJ Datcdrafted 05/24/2013 
,.......:========.,--------------------

by 

,This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the Fl31. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents arc not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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~,&~wOSCEOLA CUUN'J'Y 
~· Sl-lf.!'.HI FF'S OFJtJ CE 

(J/li,,,,..,, 

llbtc 11! 

(ltrcu:.r 

Lucatiun o/ 
OJh:mc: 

Cude: 

V 
!J.I •. 

J,IAMr: II..•"· Fie~•-Mi1hlir.) 

tdlJll<E~S 
Ile,, 

AIJUltE~~ 
111,_ 

STA. TE1\1EN '"f 
Pkast: fill out in full c/(;:tail 

IL•""' 1 z.;r. o:r:9£6 I 
.-.u111cc1 "~', ,;,,,. 
11111h k: 

01l11:r ffJ (~1,,cify ll oml 
Type): 

l, do hereby volunturily make tht 
foll o wl1_n_g_s.,.ta..,.t-em_e_n t~w-.rtr-10-u-:!-:t':""hr_e_a:-t, "'."c-o-er-c-:-i o-n-.-o~fJ;:-ie-r --o-;f ;-be=-1-:1e-;:fi~, ,--.:o--r-;:fi~, v--o--r-::b __ y __ a __ n __ y __ p __ e--rs::-:·o--n--.:s--::-w·homsoever. 

- I..:rnr stolen items separately (with values) in body of statement. -. 

Tola! Value of Property Stolcri/Damngcd 

lni1iol: 
l lmvc r=ived lhc Victim': Rights pnckar,c. 

Pars011al~1•K11ow,1 0 
Produced Jdcmt/fication O Type: _______ _ 

SO-03-42 

I will testify i11 coun. 

I will prosecute criminully .. 

I Swcnr/ Affinn 

Tn1c. 

Signature: 

Arrcsl Mode? Yes ng. c:, . YesO NoQ Pal:c __ of_ 

b6 
b7C 

b6 
b7C 

TODASHEV-998 



I -
/4 

,~1/:"'li"OSCEOLA COUNTY 
~ S.1-lfi:IUFF'S Ol•'FJCI!: 

IJiur ur I Mon Iii' 
y,.irc.:1111:n:. O{ 
(1/Ji:,,;c, 3 ,, qo 
I 1111\." nr Mumh: 'JII)': rc:111: 
Dll,:,c,, . Oc. 0°1 

Cock I-IAMf: II.us,, Fir,1. Mi1kllc) 

0 

,~ 
I J.u,rH: 

,,t1S,1Ct:I 
(lus I fu~I. 
111Ni1 le: 

ST.A. TEJ\1 E J\/ T 
P/t!ase fill ou1 in fu!I d<:::i.i:!il 

z;,. 
tt~ ' 

r.";;u~u;;;,t:;;e-;:;~i?"· L----------------------'--'-,-----ti;;;:1,, L----""TT'ITffl"ll'"'"---------i w. 
LJ.L.11: 

flu,. 

Odic, 11, !Sriccily U und 
Type): 

L--------,----------------------do hereby voluntarily make the: 
following statement without threat, coercion, offer of benefit or favor hy any persons whomsoever. 

~ List stolen items separately (with values) in body of statement. ~ 

Total Value of Property S1olcn/Damagcd 

lnilinl: 
l lmvc recci vcd the Victim•~ lliglil• packncc. 

S_wo To and Subscri.b¢ cfore Me, This 
R-

Persm,al/y K1iow11 0 J 
Produced Jdentijicafio,;gf Type: ]L ______ ,__ 

SO-03-42 

lni1io 
I wi111cs1ify in court. 

I will proscculc criminally. 
lnilial: 

I Swenr/Aflinn the Above and/or AIJached Slatcmcnts arc Carree! and 

True. 

Signature 

Anesi Mode? Yes• Nu• Mira~da Yc.s0 No0 Po••c_/_01.l_ 
Wurnml\ Read·/ u 
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Sheriff Robert E. "Bob" Hansell 

Osceola County Sheriffs Office 
2601 E. Irlo Bronnon Memorial Hwy. Kiss., Fl 34744 

Telephone: 407-348-1 l 00 .www.oscetJillslwrif./.m'[f 

Incident N urn her: / 'J re ,5··9s-~1 
Defendant: ------------
DOB: --------------

Signature Affidavit 

__ Report 
__ Arrest/FSA0 Report 
__ Supplement Report 
__ Supplement to Arrest Rpt/FSAO 

Related to: --------

Nature: /3>9-/-fe;-V (SrM;:'le) 

Zone: ciy' 

lmt Name and ID Numbe, 

Date: 7- 07.-· / :Z 

Narrative?: {i:j N 
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, ,. 

Osc~·o1a ·county 
Sheriff's Office 

Witnes·s Instructions For Line-Ups 

CASE#: 12 I b ;q 5 Lt l DATE OF LINE-UP: l / 1 3 j 12-

PERSON VIEWING LINE-UP:_j._ _____ ,,,.,. .. ,.,,,,. ...... '"""""' ,..-------- ..... \1----
Prior to the witness viewing any of the photographs, the member administering the line-up will 
read the following instructions aloud to the witness (in the witness's primary/native language), 
initial next to each instruction after it is read, and not engage in any additional commentary: 

I. You will. be asked to view a group of photographs. 

2. The person of interest-might or might not be present_ in this group of photographs and the 
photographic array is not in any particular order. 

3. It is just as important to exclude innocent persons from suspicion as it is to identify the 
perpetrators. 

4. You should not feel that you have to make an identification. Take as much time as yqu need 
to look· at ·each photograph. If you do identify 1someone, I will note your exact words 
regarding your identification. · 

. . 
5. Photographs presented may not appear exactly as they did on the date of the incident because 

features such as head and facial hair are subject to change. 

6. We will continue to investigate the incident with or without an identification by you. 

7. After viewing all the photographs, if you can make an identification, please initial and date 
the photograph of the person you have identified and close the folder. The remaining 
photographs need only be initialed to indicate you in fact viewed them. 

8. · After viewing all the photographs, if you cannot make a positive identification, you may, if 
you wish, infonn me of any phoiograph(s} you believe most resembles the person you saw. 

9, Since this is an ongoing investigation, you should not discuss this line-up or the results. 

L~-.J!.:10::.:·...;I:..!> l~e!!:as~e~b~e~,!.!.i n~o~J.lw~ oft he photo graphs in the Ii ne-up. 

1------ hereby acknowledge that the above instructions 

J....,.....,,'1'lJ,i.i!a.Jl=f!:ri11:tti~~~i,:i,~:a,~C.iw:ia..:.~-11ow this line-up procedure will be administered. 

Signature o D~31i!e~ /t~~V 

Signature otL..------------- oJ/Tke\~ \ \ 2 \411.. 

The.above listed person viewed the Line-up with the fo!Jowing results: · 

Selected Subject identification n~L.U>,...._.,_ __ _ 

Not able to make identification. 

Initials (person viewing line-up): 

Initials (person viewing line-up):o= 

S0-11•277 
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* ·ame of Person Signing: 

ype offucideot: 

,. 

Osceola County 
Sherifrs Office 

ltary Putl..,_ _____ ,......1---, 
1w Enforcement Officer D ID# 

.Zone: .24 

WAIVERS.& AFifli>A VITS 

hove 
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05/13/2013 
16:22 

Incident 

OSCEOLA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Law Case Management: 

Incident: 121059561 Offenses: 130B 
Address= 3490 POLYNESIAN ISLE BLVD; ALIBABA 

City: KISSIMMEE ST: FL ZIP: 34746 

Case 

461 
Page: 1 

Misc Entry: 
Lctn Code: 2403 

Detail: PCU PERSONS CRIMES U 
Officer:~l _____ ....,I Agency: ocso 

Date Assigned: 07/09/2012 
Date Assigned: 07/09/2012 

Next Action: 

Current Status: CLO 
Previous Status: AC3 

I I Date Due: 

as of 08/07 /2012Status Entered by: I 
as of 07/09/2012Status Entered by:~--------' 

Narrative/Notes 
Narratv: (See below) 

Notes: / / 

Sol vabili ty 
Eval Type: 

Question: 

Activity 
Activity 

(See below) 

Officer 

Total Score: 0 & 0 

When Completed . 

Score: 

HH:MM Comment 
& 
& 

= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = ; = = = ; 

LAW Incident Offenses Detail: 
Offense Codes 

Seq Code 
1 130B SIMPLE ASSAULT/BATTERY 

Incident Case History: 
Assigned Assigned To 
07/09/20121..__ ___ ____, 

Detl Date Due 
PCU / / 

Amount 
0.00 

Status/Dt 
AC3 
07/09/2012 

When Entered/By 
]2·38·54 08(07/2012 

I I 
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Incident Case Notes: 
Incident Case Notes 
Seq Time/Date Misc. Notes 

1 / / 
Tue Jul 10 08:23:29 EDT 2012 
I was assigned this case for review. 

At approximately 1615 hours, I spoke with! I (victim) who advised he 
desires prose~· d/or would like the individuals involved trespassed from 
his business. advised he believes Ibaraim (or Ibrahim) lives with Muslim 
(witness) in Or ando Sun Village together. Ibaraim drives a white Mercedes. 

---.-~I explained the incident occurred in front of Cairo Market. It should be 
noted the~e are 09 video surveillance cameras in the area where the battery 
occurred. 1 __ ....... __ _.Jdoes have a video camera in his place of business; however, 
the camera does not cover the area where the battery occurred. 

Wed Jul 11 13:16:38 EDT 2012 
I went to Orlando Sun Village. I spoke with the manager in the front o~-~~ 
advised several individuals of Russian decent reside in units I ~~---~n 
Jookioa tbro1rgh the paperwork for both units. There is a resident of 

I by the name 9f I J e name._ ______ is simi 
advised this individual left approximately 5 minutes prior to my arrival in a 
red older model vehicle. The manager .remembered a white mercades being in the 
complex from time to time, but did not recall it being there any time recently. 
I provided the manager with my card and contact information and requested he 
contact me if he obtains any other information. 

I attempted to make contact with the individuals inDandl 
._ _ __.lbut there was no answer at either door. ----------

After identifying the information in regards tol 
line-up to be completed. ._ _____ ___. 

I requested a photo 

Thu Jul 12 15:54:51 EDT 2012 
I received the photo line-up. I attempted to contact! I left a message 
requesting he return my call. -----

Fri Jul 13 10:43:34 EDT 2012 
I spoke with! !who advised he will be at the Alibaba cafe around 1430 
hours. I tol him I would meet him at the cafe to show him the photo line-up. 

At approximately 1440 hours, I met with I lat the Alibaba cafe. I I was 
prryided a "Witness Instructions For Line~Ups" Form. ~he instructions were read 
to_ !at which time he advised he understood the procedure.! !was 
then provided with a written copy of the in~tructions where he 
again read over the instructions and initialed by each line •· he 
understands how the line-up procedure would be administered. was 
then presented with the photographs and reviewed each photo. advised it 
is definitely not any of the males in the photograph. He advise e is familiar 
with the suspect and knows it is not one of the individuals presented. He then 
then signed the witness instructions for line-ups form. 
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ladvised a male bv the name of! !who works at 
_____________ _.! is acquaintances with Ibrahim. 

I went to advised that I !was not at work. 
I spoke with th~ .___,,....-_,.,.,. ................... x=;lained he heard about the incident. From 
the information{ came ou~ of the Alibaba Cafe upset and 
yelling at Ibrahim and.__----~--~walked ~p close to them and was verbally 
confronting them. Due continuously walking close~m put his 
hand up to ensure that ot approach any closer. continued to 
approach and Ibrahim pushed back away from his persona space. The push 
caused I !to fall. 

When! I dot up, he again approached Ibrahim and wrapped his arms around 
Ibrahim.! I was yelling for people to call the police.! latternpte, to 
keep Ibrahim on property, at which time Ibrahim freed himself from I J 
hold and left in a vehicle~ .__ ____ ~ 

____ lfrom I !advised that he knows friends who are acquaintanc~s of 
lbrahimJ !did not know Ibrahim's full name and did not have any contact 
infofmation for him. I left a card with my contact information and requested 
that_ !and Ibrahim contact me.! ~tated he would attempt to pass the 
information along. 

Tue Jul 17 ~:05:23 EDT 2012 
I contactecl_ Jand was advised! 
utilities at ____________ _. 

!is registered for the 

I also checked all white Mercedes in Spillman and none were registered to an 
individual by the name of Ibrahim. 

At approximately 1430 hours, I returned back to ... l ___________ _. 
no answer at the door. I left a card with my contact information. 

There was 

At approximately 1445 ho~rs, I returned to! !the 
Alibaba Cafe. I met witbt !who 
advised he resides at I I He ··explained! !used to reside 
at this locatj PD i baw~ver, he is a q:.u.i;.k .. ..d.lji ver and is not around very often. 
I I beliTvesl. _ is in Chicago. L___Jexplained he does not have a contact 
number for._ _____ __, · 

____ !stated he is familiar wifb Ibrahil.l ~it joes not. directly know him. He 
advised Ibrahim is a friend ofl._ ____ _._ .... ___ _.Jdid not have a contact number for 
Ibrahim, but explained he may see Ibrahim at some point. I provided him with my 
name and contact information and requested Ibrahim contact me. 

At approximately 1630 hours, I left a message for Ibrahim at 407-350-0942, the 
number listed in the report, requesting a return call. 

Tue Jul 31 08:07:26 EDT 2012 
I attempted to contact Ibrahim at 407-250-0942. I left a message requesting he 
return my call. 

Wed Aug 01 08~· .............. ....._~ 
I spoke with who advised he has not had any further problems since the 
incident occurre . stated he no longer desires prosecution and no longer 
wants any contact ma Ibrahim. He advised the situation is no longer a 
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problem and he does not want to go to court.! I explained he will sign a 
declination or prosecution; He stated he would be at his residence all 
afternoon. 

At approximately 1300 hours, I met withl lat his residence who again 
confirmed that he no longer desires prosecution. He signed a Declination or 
Prosecution Affidavit. 

Do to the fact the victim does not desire prosecution, this incident will be 
closed. 

Det.~j _______ ..... !Wed Aug 01 14:25:07 EDT 2012 

Sgt ..... I _____ ____, 
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05/13/13 
16:21 

Nature: BATTERY 45R 

OSCEOLA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 461 
Deputy Report Page: 1 

Incident Number: 121059561 

Addr: 3490 POLYNESIAN ISLE BLVD; ALIBABA Area: 2403 224 \{jne]aod Rd CowMer 
KISSIMMEE St: FL Zip: 34746 Contact: ~I -------~I City: 

Complainant: 7 50252 

Lst: ALI BABA HOOKAH CAFE 
**/**/** SSN: 

Fst: ZONE 24 Mid: 
DOB: Adr: 3490 POLYNESIAN ISLE BLVD 
Rae: Sx: Tel: ( 407) 390-0080 Cty: KISSIMMEE St: FL Zip: 34746 

Circumstances: LT08 BAR/NIGHTCLUB 
HANDS/FISTS/FEET WE07 

SCAN SCANNED DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Responding Officers: 

Rspnsbl Officer: J j Agency: 
Clearance: ..1--~R--E=p=o""'RT TAKEN 

ocso 

ALIBABA HOOKAH BAR 

When Reported: 22:00:15 07i07/12 

Occurrd between: 21:42:00 07/07/12 
and: 21:57:59 07/07/12 

Disposition: INA Disp Date: 08/01/12 

Judicial Sts: 

Modus Operandi: 
Factor 

LOCATION 
SUSP RACE 
SUSP HAIR COLOR 
BODY BUILD 
SUSP WGT 
SUSP SEX 
SUSP HGT 

INVOLVEMENTS: 

Misc Entry: 

Description 
LOCATION CODES OF INCIDENT 
UNK SUSPECTS RACE 
UNK SUSPECTS HAIR COLO 
SUBJECT BODY BUILD 
UNK SUSPECTS WGT 
UNK SUSPECTS GENDER 
UNK SUSPECTS.HEIGHT 

Method 
BAR/NIGHTCLUE 
UNK 
BLK HAIR 
MEDIUM 
190-200 LBS 
MALE 
508-511 

Date Description Relationship 
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461 05/13/13 
16:21 

OSCEOLA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Deputy Report Page: 2 

Incident Number: 121059561 

Written by: D/sl 
Case No: 12!059~~-6-1 ______ __. 
Zone: 24 

Offense #1: Battery (simple) FSS: 784.03 (lAl) 

On July 7, 2012, I responded to 3490 Polynesian Isle Blvd (Alibab1 Hookah rar) 
in referenc; to a Battery complaint. Upon my arrival, I met with_ j I _ victim) and I J (witness) who both pr,_o_v_i,...d.,..e_d.,......,s ..... worn 
verbal and written statements. 

Dis employed at Alibaba Hookah Bar! land was working in that 
capacity at the time of this investigation.j jsaid two white males of Russian 
descent entered the bar and sat down for service. Once they sat down, suspect 
#1 (who was identified as Jb;ab~~ro/Jrnk~own last name) an~s ct #2 (who was 
later identified asl . _ J began requesting and another female 
employee to serve tnem. j ma e contact with them and tol them that tp.e.__, 
requested servers were off~were leaving. A verbal altercation beganL__Jand 
the suspects at which timeL_Jtold them to leave in which they did. 

According to! !once they left, he exited the Alibaba en route to the Cairq.._ __ _ 
Supermarket (one business door down) to purchase some items for the bar. Asl,_ __ _. 
was walking towar,.d.s.-..tl;le store, Ibrahim approached behind them and began another 
verbal argument. L__Jcontinued to walk toward~r~order to avoid the 
confrontation but Ibrahim threatened to batterL_J L__Jinformed Ibrahim if he 
(Ibrahtm) !id "hit" him, he woul'd notify law enforcement. At that time, Ibrahim 
struck in his facial area (right ear/jaw area}, grabbectc=]and threw him 
onto t e ground causing a small abrasion on! !left elbow. During the 
physical altercation several bystanders intervened andLJinstructed! ~o 
notify law enforcement. 

!provided the following statement.! !observed both suspects enter the 
__ b_a_r_a ..... nd sit down to be served. I ~escribed suspect #1 as wearing a red 

shirt and jean ants and another white male wearing a light blue shirt with 
khaki shorts.f"""--"""T--:-:~indicated she had completed her shift wh~n s:e w,s 
approached b ._ _ _. asked if the suspects had been served . ..,..,,,.,,,...~...,,.,,,..,,,.-~ 
indicated pfior toL.J---~king contact with her, the suspectsadeen requesting 
her. I _observed,__ __ make contjc~ wi~! the suspects and apologize for not 
being able to have~ serve them. stated the suspects became upset and 
bega~ing withL....J at which time asked them to leave. Once the suspects 
left,L__Jwalked outside en route to the Cairo~et to purchase store items 
when he was approached by Ibrahim. r !saidL_JcontinLJo walk attempting 
to ignore the confrontation when suadenly, Ibrahim struck in the facial 
area, picked him up and threw him onto the ground causing to receive a small 
abrasion on his left elbow. i----lstated several bystanders intervened which 
deescalated the altercation.L__J said once the altercation was over, she 
notified law enforcement. 

During the investigation,! !indicated both suspects have been at the bar on 
numerous occasions but he didn't know them personally. I interviewed several 
witnesses who didn't want to be involved but did provide the vehicle tag I I 

___ ...,..._I in which Ibrahim and the second suspect arrived in. I conducfed a 
search of the yehjcJe's taa ~nd discaiier:d the owner,!resided at 

L-....,,.--,----.,...,.----~-----..------------L I made contact with the residents 
of that address and was ,0ld along with several other Russian's moved to~I __________ J 
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461 05/13/ 13 
16:21 

OSCEOLA COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
Deputy Report Page: 3 

Incident Number: 12I059561 

I knocked on the door and a white male, wearing a light blue shirt and brown 
khaki shorts answered the door. Based on the description given by! ~nd 

._ _ __.! I believed the male to be my second suspect. I informed him of my lawful 
purpose and asked if he would provide me with a current driver license or 
identification card. The male (who was later identified as.__ ____ ___,,_ ___ _, 
via Florida dfjyer Jjcense) provided me a Florida driver license. During our 
conversation,_ !admitted to being at Alibaba .with his friend who he 
identified as Ibriham . 

._ ____ !stated they were inside the hookah bar ,Q.[l.....t.bis date. I !indicated 
once they arrived and sat down inside the bar,L__Jwalked over to them and 
said "What are you doing in here, you're not welcome, you need to leave!" 

!said bd~'t understandothey were singled out and treated that way. 
According .to ! Ibrahim and did get into a verbal argument but it was 
initiated by . I said t ey ordered some food to go, and ~y 
ordered, Ibrahim walked outside while he remained on the inside. said 
once their food was completed, he walak· . e and the altercation a already 
occurred and Ibrahim was already gone said he left the scene because he 
didn't want to have any more issues. indicated that Ibrahim didn't 
reside with him nor did he know where he lived. 

As I was there, Ibrahim called! !phone in ~hich hi answered. I asked I !if I could talk with Ibrahim at which timel~ ______ gave me his phone. I 
spoke with a male with an Russian accent who identified himself as Ibrahim. 
Once I identified myself, the subject hung up the phone. I was ~ble to obtain 
the subjects telephone number which is 407-350-0942 and nothing else. I 
concluded my conversation with! ! 

I was unable to locate any more personal information on Ibrahim therefore 
further irves,igation will be needed due tol !wishing to pursue criminal 
charges. refused all medical attention at the scene. 

I have no further information at this time. 
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OFFICIAL RECORD 
FD-302 (Rev 5-8-10) 

- 1 of 1 -

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

OQCl.lment p3rtici;:,ants h3",e di9~!ly signed. 
AU$ignatu~havebN!'lvenfiedlrya 
cer1,r.e11 FBI irifarma1,on syi.tem. 

Date of entry 03/19/2014 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector! 
______ !_o-o ...... Q-5 ...... /23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: Supervisory Special A_g_e_n_t ___ _. 

________ ___.I Tampa Field Office, ORA, provided a copy of an Orange County 

Sheriff's Office incident report on Ibragim Tbdaschev. The report was in 
reference to an assault in a parking lot on 05/04/2013. 

The Orange County Sheriff's Office incident report is attached in the lA 

section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigation on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States ( In Person) 

~~# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted O 3 / 19 / 2 0 1 4 

by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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Incident Report 13-38070 Supplement No 

ORIG 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Administrative Information 
Agency I Report No ! Supplement No I Reported Date I Reported nme 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 13-3B070 ORIG 05/04/2013 17:17 
Status Nature of call I Location of Occurrence City I ZIP Code 

REPORT WITH ARREST (ARS) AGG BATTERY B200 VINELAND AV ORLANDO 32B21 
FromTime Assignment I Entered bv I Assignment 

11: 15 I I SECTOR 4 SQUAD 3 I I SECTOR 
rovinn Officer Approval Date I ~·--,. .. ~ 

I I 05/06/2013 16:40:11 
-··- ·--- .,.. Tourist Victim? Y/N Firearm? Weapon? 

y N N N 
Vest? Hate Crime? Special Victim? DCF Notified? 

N N N N 
Declination of Intent Witness Statement 

Yes Yes 
# Offenses I Offense 

1 7B4.045(1) (A) (1) 
I Description 
AGGRAVATED BATTERY ( 

I Complaint Type 

I 
Summary Narrative 
lnvl lnvl No Type Name MNI I:" Sex DOB 

DEF 1 I TODASHEV IBRAGIM 3163 M 09/22/19B5 
lnvl tnvl No Type Sex 

VIC 1 I M 
lnvl lnvl No Type ~ 

VIC 2 I M 
lnvl lnvl No Type ~ 

WIT 1 I M 

Vehicle Summary 

Property Summary 

Summary Narrative 

CADC.11 No 

I 131242196 
Rep Dist I Area I Beat I From Date 
50B 5 50 05/04/2013 

4 SQUAD 3 I 

Mask? 

N 

I 
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Incident Report 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

DEFENDANT* (ARS USE ONLY) 1: TODASHEV,IBRAGIM 
Name 

13-38070 Supplement No 

ORIG 

TODASHEV,IBRAGIM 
I MNI I Race I Sex I DOB 
3163535 WHITE MALE 09/22/1985 

I Age I Ethnicity 
27 NON-HISPANIC 

I Juvenile? I Height I Weight ! Hair Color I Eye Color I 
No 5' 09" 160# BROWN BROWN 

Skin I Dom Violence 

WHITE NO 
I Place of Birth I 

RUSSIA 
Type I Address I City I State I ZIP Code I 
HOME ADDRESS 4502 SAINT GEORGAS CT KISSIMMEE FLORIDA 34746 
Type I ID No I OLS I 
OPERATOR LICENSE T321400853420 FLORIDA 
Phone Type I Phone No 

CELL (407)350-0932 I 
Involvement I Arrest Type I Arrest Date I Arrest Time I Status I Arrest Location I City I Rep Dist I 
DEFENDANT (ARS USE ONLY) Arrested 05/04/2013 18:49:00 BOOKED 8200 VINELAND AV ORLANDO SOB 
Place of Birth I City of Birth I Beat I 
RUSSIA UNKNOWN 50 

Charge l Level I Charge Literal I Bond Amt 

I 784. 045 (1) (A) (1) F AGGRAVATED BATTERY ( $3,500.00 

VICTIM* 1: I I 
I I Sex I MALE II 

Juvenile? I Means of Attack 

I No HAND-FISTS-FEET 
I Extent of Injury I 
SERIOUS* 

uom vI0Ience I t1.erat1onsn1p to urrenaer ..,1aceo 

I I NO NONE I 
Type ZIP 

HOME ADDRESS I I 
Type ,uNO 

OPERATOR LICENSE I I 
Phone Type 

CELL I II 

VICTIM* 2: I I 
Sex I DOB I Ace Juvenile? I Means ol Attack l Extent of Injury I Dom;~nce I 

IMALE I I No HAND-FISTS-FEET MINOR* 
t1.e1at1onsn1p to urrenaer I t'Iace 01 cunn 

I NONE UNKNOWN PLACE OF BIRTH 
Type 71P 

HOME ADDRESS I I 
Type U Nn "' ~ 
IDENTIFICATION CARD I I 
Phone Type ,Nn 

CELL I I 

WITNESS 1: I I 
MN, Sex Juvenile? ~-

IMALE I I No I I 
t"'1ace o · clnn 

I UNKNOWN PLACE.OF BIRTH 
Type 7'D 

BUSINESS ADORES~ I I 
Phone Type I 
BUSINESS I 
Property 

Modus Operandi 
Crime Code(s) 

I AGGRAVATED BATTERY 

Narrative 

On 05-04-2013 I Deputy First Classl as working off duty at the Premium Outlet Mall. 

A mall security officer and witness.I 'advised over the security radio of a physical fight in lot number 19. 
As a part of my duties as the off du1y deputy responded to the area. As I was arriving on sceneDdvised that 
one of the parties involved was leaving in a vehicle. He advised the vehicle was a white Mercedes with Georgia 
license plate BXM0212. I approached the location where the incident occurred and saw a male laying on the 
ground. I could see a considerable amount of blood on the ground and the subject appeared unconscious. 
Believing I was dealing wi\h : f~lony 9rime, I immediately located the vehicle and followed it out of the mall down 
Vineland Avenue. DeputYI..,_ .,.,_,......,_,.....,.."""""_Ja.ssisted me in performing a tactical park on the vehicle. We ordered the 
only subject in the vehicle ou a gunpoint. He was then secured in handcuffs pending further investigation. 

~-L.WM..i.wa-----,-...Jsee supplement, that he had a victim who could identify the subject. He 
.,...........,...,_ ______ ...1 referred to in this report asr-7 to the location where the subject was 

secured. positively identified the subject as the person i~d in a physical altercation with him and his 
son sa1 he was sure this was the individual based on his "height, s~r and physical appearance". 

said his son got involved to protect him, after Todashev pushed him.L_Jdid not want to press charges for ..... .,.......,... 
t e battery against him. As he ~ould not read or write English he wrote his statement and Spanish. Corporal 
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Incident Report 13-38070 Supplement No 

ORIG 

ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

.__ ___ .... ltranscribedl ~tatement into English. 

I identified the secured subject as defendant lbragim Todashev. He continuously asked to speak to me to explain 
his side of the story. I read him his Miranda Right via pre-printed text, he waived his rights and chose to speak 
with me. ~ev_state? that he an~Qot into an argumer;i,1..mLeJ; a arkin s ace. He said durin the 
argument ot into his face at which time Todashev pushec(___J 
referred to a got involved and Todashev began fighting with him. o as ev sa1 t at,,_,__.....,...came at 1m 
swinging. Todashev said he was only fighting to protect his knee because he had surgery in March. Also by his 
own admission Todashev was recently a former mixed martial arts fighter. This skill puts his fighting ability way 
above that of a normal person. . 

7as tra~s?,rted to Dr. Phillips Hospital by Orange County Fire Rescue to receive tr m n 
~J see suppl~sponded to the hospital to obtain information abouti,_,--~i,<1,1.L=irn. 
Deput advised tha a split upper lip and several teeth knocked out of place ................ ....,....1_so_h_ad., 
head inJunes, owever Deputy did not know the extent of them. Deput~ !advise 
did want to press charges and testify in court. .__ _ _.... 

I placed Todashev under arrest and transported him to the booking and release center without incident. 
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Incident Report 13-38070 supplement No 

SUPP 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Administrative Information 
Agency I Report No I SUpplement No I Reported Date I Reported Time CADCali No 

I ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 13-38070 0001 05/04/2013 17:17 131242196 
Status J Location of Occurrence I City I ZIP Code I Rep Dist I Area I Beat Officer 

I REPORT WITH ARREST (ARS) 8200 VINELAND AV ORLANDO 32821 SOB 5 50 1491/BAGSHAW,BRENT 
Assignment Entered bv Assignment 

I SECTOR 5 SQUAD 4 I II SECTOR 5 SQUAD 4 I I 
Approval Date ., .,,_ 

I 05/05/2013 00:47:51 
Victim Statement 

Yes 

Summary Narrative 

Property 

Modus Operandi 

Narrative 

I responded to the Premium Outlet Mall, on Vineland Avenue, to back-up Deputvl lwho was working . . . . 
off-duty there. Deputy! !had advised over the radio that he was dealing with a physical fight in the parking 
lot. While responding, Deputyj !advised one of the parties involved was driving away from the scene in a 
white Mercedes Benz. He also advised that there~ignificant amount of blood at the scene of the fight and 
that the situation might be a felony crime. DeputyL__Jfollowed the white Mercedes south on Vineland Avenue. 
He and Deputy! ~topped the suspect vehicle a short distance later and I arrived less than a minute 
later. I secured the suspect with handcuffs once he was on the ground. I had no more involvement with the 

suspect after that and I responded to the mall to assist there. 

I was directed to _a.Q...1Q...[4. Phillips Hospital where the victim, ... ! --------.~as transported by Orange County 
Rescue Medic 9.L__Jwas on a stretcher and was immobile due to being on a backboard with neck supports. 
His entire forehead was wrapped in gauze so injuries beneath were not visible. There was blood that could be 
seen in spots under the gauze.! !upper lip was split on the left side and he had several teeth that appeared 
to be significantly out of place (not missing). Other injuries visible to me was a large "goose egg" next to his left 
eye and ear as well as a laceration at the base of the back of his head. I photographed the injuries as best I could 
and downloaded the photos into the Data Works System. 

I lwas conscious and alert when I j 'poke w~th him. He gave me a verbal statement about what had happened 
and I wrote a sworn statement for him. old me the following occurred: · 

I !was driving in the Premium Outlet rail pating lot searching for a space. The mall was very crowded and 
available parking spots were not plentiful. asked two ladies that were walking if they were going to their car 
to leave. They told him ye~ollowed them to their vehicle, put his turn signal on and waited for them to 
leave. After they pulled outL__Jbegan to pull into the spot when he was blocked by a white Mercedes Benz 
that was trying to pull into the spot as well. The driver,.Qi..1b.a.fl(1ercedes rolled down his window and yelled at 

11that he was taking the spot and was there first.L____J,,elled back "no way I was here f~ad my 
... "15ITiiker ............... ......,on" and started to try to park. The Mercedes started to back up as if it was going to hitL___Jcar so 
I !father jumped out of the car and asked the driver what was go·~The driver of th~des got out 

of his vehicle and started yelling obscenities and derogatory remarks a and his father. L__Jsaid he 
. remained ~hicle until the driver of t_he Mercedes shoved his father at w ich point he got out to go ~efend 
his father. L__Jsaid he and the driver of the Mercedes started fighting and did so for several minutes. L 
eventually got knocked to the ground and he believes he was unconscious for an unknown period of time._ ____ _. 

---~equested to press charges and he is willing to testify in court. 
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Incident Report 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Administrative Information 
Agency 

13-38070 

CADCall No 

SUpplement No 

SUPP 

ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
! Report No 
13-38070 

I SUpplement No 

0002 
I Reported Date 

05/04/2013 
I Reported TI me 

17:17 131242196 I 
Stat1.1s I Nature of Call j Location of Occurrence I City I ZIP Code Rep Dist j Area j Beat j From Date 
REPORT WITH ARREST (ARS) AGG BATTERY 8200 VINELAND AV ORLANDO 32821 50B 5 50 05/04/2013 
From Time I Assignment Entered bv I Assignment 

I 17:17 I I TOPS UNIT B SIDE I I TOPS UNIT B SIDE 
a.nnrovina Officer I AJ>proval Date I Ap,·-·-· ,, .. ~ 

I I 05/05/2013 13:30:18 , 
·~~ 

I Yes 

Summary Narrative 

Property 

Modus Operandi 
Crime Code(s) 

I AGGRAVATED BATTERY 

Narrative 

I 

On 5-4-2013, I responded to 8200 Vineland Ave. I was requested to assist with translating a statement from 
Spanish to English. · 

I translated! !statement after he first wrote it in Spanish. I also transported him to the scene 
where the suspect had be · tified the suspect, lbragim Todashev, as the same person that 
battered him and his son, 

I returned to 8200 VineL..la_n_d,....a ..... n_d,....a_d,...v .... is-e .... d ...... D-/: .... _-_-_-_-_-_-_-..... .,thatl I had identified lbragim Todashev as the 
subject that battered him and his son. 
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Incident Report 
ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

Administrative Information 
Agency I Report No I supplement No 

ORANGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 13-38070 0003 
Status 

13-38070 

I Reported Date 

05/04/2013 
I Reported Time 

17:17 
I CADCall No 

131242196 I 

supplement No 

SUPP 

REPORT WITH ARREST (ARS) 
I Nature of Call 

FELONY 
I Location of Occurrence 

8200 VINELAND AV 
I City I ZIP Code I Rep Dist I Area I Beat I From Date 
ORLANDO 32821 SOB 5 50 05/04/2013 

I Fromnme I 
17:17 

I Assignment hu Assignment 

I I SECTOR 5 SQUAD 4 I !SECTOR 5 SQUAD 4 

I 
I Approval Date 

05/10/2013 
I Approval Time 
09:52:41 I 

,un _,, ___ 

I Yes 
# Offenses I Offense I Description I Complaint Type 

I 1 784.045-4 AGGRAVATED BATTERY 

Summary Narrative 

OTHER 1: I I 
I 

,ype ZP 

BUSINESS ADDRESS II I 
Phone Type I Phone No I 

BUSINESS I II 

Vehicle: BXM0212 
Involvement I Type J License No I State I Lie Year I Lie Type I Year I Make I Model I Style 
SUSPECT AUTO* BXM0212 GEORGIA 2013 AUTO 1997 MERCURY 4DR 4 DOOR SEDAN 

I Color I Value I 
WHITE $2,000 

VIN 

I WDBJF55FOVA398338 

Property 

Modus Operandi 

Narrative 

Take down scene: 8761 Vineland Ave. This Is a two lane road heading south with a turn lane for neighboring 
business. 

Orange county Deputies: All Deputies involved had marked patrol cars and wearing agency issued uniforms 
(badges, patches and gun belt). 

I responded to a radio transmiss~ Deputyl I D~put~.,_,.,.....,..___.was working at the Premium Outlet 
Mall 8200 Vineland Ave. DeputyL__Jadvised via radio of a physical fight at the mall. Deput~ !advised 
that a suspect was leaving the mall heading south on Vineland Ave. 

De.putyl lturther advised he was behind the vehicle and it is a white Mercedes Benz with Georgia plate 
BXM0212. 

Master Deputy ... l ____ __.lalso advised he was behind Deputy._! __ _. 

I was south of this location and began stagging to assist. As they approached my location I could see the white 
Mercedes in front of them. I activated my emergency lights and siren. The oncoming traffic began to slow and I 
was able to pull in front of the suspect vehicle. By doing this we where facing each other. The suspect brought his 
vehicle to a stop and I was able to position my patrol car at approx a 45 degree angle putting the heavi1st part of 
my car in front of his car. I stopped my vehicle about 4 (four) to 5 (five) inches from his bumper. Deputy! I 
parked to the rear of the suspect's vehicle so he was not able to drive away. 

I exited my patrol car with my handgun drawn ·and began to give the suspect verbal commands. Deputy._! __ __, 
approached with his gun drawn. I could see in the front windshield the suspect's face, chest, arms and hands. The 
suspect immediately put his hands up. I could see the features of the suspects ears. I immediately recognized the 
marks on his ears as a cage fighter/jujitsu fighter. 

I verbally yelled to Deputyll•watch him he is a cage fighter". Deputy I had the suspect exit the car and 
go directly on the ground ~wn. I know from training, experience, and watching a lot sanctioned fights how 

dangerous these men can be. I told this suspect if he tried to fight with us I would shoot him. This suspect was 
compliant and was secured without incident. 

I had this suspect roll over to his buttocks and helped him to his feet. Once on his feet the suspect commented 
that the vehicles behind us are FBI agents that have been following him. I noticed 3 (three) vehicles with dark tint. 
These vehicles began to leave the area. I noticed one vehicle was driven by a male, had a computer stand and 

appeared to be talking on a radio. 
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SUPP 

I did not make contact with any of the occupants of these vehicles to confirm if they are federal agents. 

I searched the suspects vehicle after the arrest, completed tow sheet and waited for the wrecker to tow away this 
vehicle. 

I never met with the victim, witness(s), nor did I go to the original scene. 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry . 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Do!;l.,rnontpa'tlciparrtshzrredlgitallysigr'led. 

,Alt S:qnaturu havo been verllklcl by a 
eernlieo:! FBI infoor,.aUon system, \ 

05/24/2013 

Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of an 

Agerit-involved shooting whic~.occurred on 05/22/2013 atl 
! Orlando, Florida 32819, Tampa Field Office A/SAC..,__R_o_b_e_r_t_G_e_e_s_l_i-·n___. 

._p_r_o_v_i_d_ed one CD-ROM (labeled! l5/22/2013)and a t~o page 

incident report from the Orlando Police Department dated 5/22/2013. 
Assistant Inspector-in-Place I ~eviewed the CD~ROM arid 

listened to a series of 911. calls which were organized onto two tracks as 
follows: 

Track One 

• On 05/22/2013 at 12:05 AM, A male who identified himself as Detective 
...._ ___ ~I stated he was located atl land was 

requested rolice and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) at his location. 
Detectivel lstated an FBI Agent had been struck in the head with 

a blunt object and a subject had been shot multiple times and was 
down. Detective! !further stated that scene was secure and 
requested a watch commander be deployed to the scene. 

Track Two 

• · On 05/22/2013 at 12: 07 AM, An Unknown· female 911 operator directed 
several responding rolice and EMS responders to the scene a~ 

I - --
Copies of the CD-ROM and the two page incident report from the Orlando 

Police Department were placed in the lA portion of the investigative •file. 

-UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

lnvestigationon 05/24/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D ~ (9'-( Datedrafted 05/24/2013 
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UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

D=:ner.t p;m!ci;i.::,:.: !a,e c::,:!3~y :.i!j:.e:l. 
AU s,i,natu"1$ havii be-en vcnfied by 1J 

certified FBI infonTJat,on .!iys1em. 

Date of entry 05/29/2013 

Tbe fpllpwinq investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector .__ ________ I on 05/28/2013: 

Supervisory Special Agent I Tampa Field Office, Orlando 
Residence Agency, provided via an E-mail a copy of a Orlando Fire 
Department Ambulance Record regarding patient Ibragim Todashev. According 
to the record, on 05/22/2013 the Orlando Fire Department received a call at 

12:07 AM and dispatched an ambulance at 12:09 AM to 
I I Orlando, Florida, 32819. The ambulance arrived on-scene 

at 12:12 AM and the patient disposition was recorded as "Dead at Scene." 

The Orlando Fire Department Ambulance Record ·was scanned and uploaded 
into Sentinel in the lA section of the SIRT investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigation on 05/22/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted O 5 / 2 9 / 2 0 13 

by 
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This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents. are not I 
to be distributed outside your agency. 
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. Qrlarido Fire D.epariment 
PO Bo'x 741517 

ATLANTA, GA '30374; 
. . . 407-246.:3 t•2& 

Trio Information; 

AMBUl::ANGE 
'RECORD. 

15813251 (bwaiis): 
Page'·tof4 . 

Ql~i>Jtt~_hJQ#'. 
0020910 

_ l?.t~patch'ecrA's 
.Stab/Ciunshot Wound· 

,Station' 
station fo 1 

;Respon~iijg l:Jnlf 
.E010 

iP~JJt9!:tt1p1_sp9!1,iii9n 
.Dead at Scene Stab/GuJjsliC>t'\IYC>und 

-27 
.,Received' I' C>ls~t,ched_ I .. od:61·· 00:09 . 

· Enroute·, '.I Amb,On:L:oc I •oo5o · 1 · 00:.12 
:P.t,Contact:"··, ,. '.De·OJ>SO.· rt:

44
_1::o.c; · ·1· oo:i"s J!l;~!'!I~. 

00:44 
. Pir.1<{1n oestinatioif · . -· · 

I I 
ORLANDO FL 3281 g· 

.. · · · ·•. ea.11 ·• . J3~~RQIJ$,4;!.T:Q:~~flE!_, JW1 Respons .. e.:~E.MS Scene Res.·_p_··onse}~rofr'i".Sce'ne 

. . , . Liahfs g;_: irens: 
.;Assidnea:To Disfricf2. ··· 'Miles:'Tra:nsooned ,0.00 

,'.~oun'tv, ORANGE. Countv· _. 
Patient Information 

.• l?.ati ern:Name·-
. Todashev .lbraciim 
Patient~Resiclence ·· · 
I I 
ORLANDO FL 32819' 

Patient Information 
· - '"Allerale'!C · Unknown 
' Medications'/ .. · Unknown 

Unknown 

Gender ·­.,M~,; . 
Date,of:Blr.th 
09~22-,1985 

(27YOl 

,E,t~nictty, 
UnknO\<Vn· 

:ch1eucomp1atnt per1etrating wour1c:is incompatible; Onset of-event ~urred 1 O minute~ Prior to Calling 
EMS. . . . 

. cardiac Arrear 
Yes, ·Priortd.EM~:f A~rival 
,Ar~sf W.itJies~.13y 
Witnessed by Lav Person 

Cardiac 
. l;\iglogy; 
Trauma 

;_s,pgntati~ou.~·c1rcl!l~tl<>if. 
. No 

CARES 

Resusclt~tJ91f Atternpt · 
'No 

Flfst1N.le>_nlJQt~c:tfJ!iythin,'-,, . 
Asvstole 

;._l;le.sJ~,,~1~1'9!!:,,!lJi'!!P!ed AED.A,pi>lied Priorito2EMS . Flrst:AED ~PRl!cJ(!i<>]j' 
. .. l:iyt9-.tt:r:e~ponder,z?t. .. 

'Tlme,Fli1it!R¢§porider· 
. 'Eni:.Qqf~'t 

"Flme First'Responder On Was~Hypo~heri.T!la"c;:ai'e' 
,Sge_ne~ _ .. :prQvJ~_ec:fJ.i:t?fl~ld,? 

STEMI; Location 

~_.__,.,.,.........--____. .___ __ __.ll,...____,..........,...,,_...,...........1 .__I ____,..,~-
IAe\V 111 Crew #2 ueufenani: - Crew #ll 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
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Allslgnatun:i,ha\l&t>eenverffiodbye 
centftec:IFBlinfoonaOotl~. 

.05/23/2013 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant 
Inspector-in-Place I I on 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida: 

Supervisory Special Agent I I Boston Field Office 
provi'ded a digital photograph depicting a head injury sustained by S~ 

_______ !during-an altercation with subject Ibrigim Todashev in Orla~n_d_o-,--~ 

Florida on 05/22/2013. 

A printed copy of the photograph was included in the lA section of the 
investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationon 05/23/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D - 52. Date drafted 0 5 / 2 3 / 2 0 1 3 

by-------------------------------------------------

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
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UNCLASSIFIED/. 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Ooa.imentpart1cipantshavedrg,1a!lysigned. 
A!l~natures have been venfoedbya 
certi~ed FBI informat,an system. 

12/05/2013 

(U//~) Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review 
of an Agent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013 atl I ___________ I Orlando, Florida 32819, a copy of the Medical Examiner's 

report to include the investigative and autopsy report for Case number: 
ME13-00623, .on Ibragim Todashev was obtained from the Ninth Circuit Medical 
Examiner's Office via Tampa Field Office on 07/09/2013. 

(U) On 07/24/2013, Chief Inspector Robert Shields, Inspector-in-Charge 

-------~~I Assistant Inspector and De artment of 
Justice, Civil Rights Division, Special Legal Counsel met 
with the Ninth Circuit Chief Medical Examiner (ME) ________ _.and 

Deputy Chief ME! !who provided an overview of the results of 
Ibragim Todashev's autopsy. 

(U) The Chief ME explained the ME report is made up of the 
investigative portion, based on hearsay, and the autopsy report. According 
to the Chief ME, the ME report is usually provided to the agency involved 
which would be the FBI and the State Attorney's Office. 

(U//~ The Chief ME advised the overall the results of the autopsy 
were consistent with Todashev falling forward toward the shooter with head 
down. There was no stipulating and no close contact snots. 
was not standing over Todashev nor behind Todashev. 

The shooter 

The Chief ME further noted Todashev's cau~e of death was 
"multiple gunshot wounds." Gunshot wound "A" to .the head was almost 
straight down and probably incapacitating, meaning no purposeful movement 
after sustaining the injury. Gunshot wound "B" to the back ~orso (upper 
shoulder, left of spine) was at a similar angle to the head shot and hit 
the spine. This shot could have caused Todashev to drop, but was not 
incapacitating. The ME stated, during these shots, Todashev was diagonal 
to the shooter and would have been bent forward. Gunshot wounds "A" and 
"B" likely occurred as Todashev was falling down. The ME stated Gunshot 
wound "C" to the back torso (upper right should~r) was not incapacitating. 
The ME stated the bullet traveled left to right, back to front and 
downward. Gunshot wound "D" to the back torso (lower right shoulder) was 
consistent with Gunshot wound "C," however it was at a sharper angle and 

UNCLASSIFIED~O 

lnvestigationon 07/24/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted 11 / 12 / 2 0 1 3 

by _____________________________________________ _ 
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was not incapacitating. The ME stated the bullet traveled left to right, 
back to front and downward. Gunshot wounds "C" and "D" likely occurred as 
Todashev was twisting his body. Gunshot wounds "E," "F," and "G" in the 
left side torso and left arm were likely grouped, consistent with the 
shooter being at an angle to Todashev. These three shots made seven holes; 
two hit Todashev's heart and would have been incapacitating, although not 
immediately. The ME stated the results of the autopsy were consistent with 
Todashev falling forward toward the shooter with his head down. There was 
no evidence of close range firing in any of the gunshot wounds, no 
stipulating and no close contact shots. 

(U//~) The Chief ME advised the trajectory of the head and shoulder 
wounds, the combination of the seven entrance wounds to include th_e paths 
of the bullets, were inconsistent with other possible scenarios. First, 
due to the extreme downward trajectory of the wounds to the head (''A") and 
upper shoulder ("B"), were inconsistent with the shooter being behind 
Todashev as if Todashev was running away. Rather, those extreme downward 
trajectories could have occurred when Todashev had his back to the shooter, 
only if: 1.) Todashev leaned backwards at a severe angle toward the 
shooter; or 2.) Todashev was standing below a shooter who was above him; 
or 3.) Tod~shev was shot'while both he and the shooter were prone on the 
floor .. 

(U/~O) Todashev sustained seven gunshot wounds. Five projectiles 
were recovered in the torso, and one was recovered in the head. One 
projectile exited the body and was recovered at the scene. Toxicology 
results revealed a presence of nicotine and caffeine. 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECOR~ 
Doaiment pa,t,Cipsrits have digi:1111y sigl\Gd. 
Allslgnatvn;s ha'v!I beonvelil'lodbya 
cefll~ FBI inforrnsllor. !.yt;tem, 

05/23/2013 

The following information was provided by Special Agent (SA)_! ___ _ 
._ _____ __.! Media Representative, Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), 

Tampa Field Office, regardirig tha Agent-involved shooting incident on 
05/22/2013 at._ __________ __. Orlando, Florida 32819: 

Local media in the Orlando, Florida area and national news outlets 
reported the shooting of a subject by an FBI Agent in Orlando on 05/22/2013 
shortly after midnight. The media reports advised FBI Agent~ and 
Massachusetts State Police troopers were questioning Ibragim Todashev 
primarily in regard to his possible involvement in a triple homicide which 
occurred in Waltham, Massachusetts on 09/11/2011. The reports also 
indicated Todashev was a native of Chechnya and may have'had ties to Boston 
Marathon bomber Tamerlan Tsarnaev. Virtually all national news outlets 
aired extensive coverage of the shooting incident. 

On 05/22/2013, www.orlandosentinel.com reported "Man shot after 
attacking agent was being questioned about Boston bombing suspects and 2011 
triple murder." A second article reported "Man shot by FBI was a gifted 
MMA fighter but a hot-head." 

On 05/22/2013, www.myfoxorlando.com reported "FBI shoots, kills Orlando 
man questioned in Boston bombing probe."· 

On 05/22/2013, www.wftv.com reported "Orlando man shot by FBI was about 
to sign Boston murder confession." 

On 05/22/2013, www.wesh.com reported "Orlando man killed by FBI had 
confessed to role in Mass. triple murder, authorities say." 

On 05/22/2013, www.clickorlando.com reported "FBI Agent fatally shoots 
; 

man in Orlando linked to Boston bombing." 

On 05/22/2013, www.floridatoday.com reported "Man fatally shot in 
Boston bombing probe in Orlando." 

On '05/22/2013, www. cfnews13. com reported "Man killed · in Orlando knew 
Boston bombing suspect." 
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On 05/23/2013, www.wesh.com reported "The man killed by FBI in Orlando 
knew Boston bombing suspect Tamerlan Tsarnaev, friend says." 

On 05/23/2013, www.wftv.com repo,rted "Man shot by FBI had spoken with 
bombing suspect." 

On 05/23/2013, www.clickorlando.com reported "Fatal FBI shooting iri 
Orlando linked to triple-slaying." 

On 05/23/2013, www.floridatoday.co~ reported ''Police kill man in 
J 

Orlando linked to Boston suspects, triple murder." 

On 05/23/2013, www.cfnews13.com reported "FBI team iw Orlando to review 
shooting of Ibragim Todashev." 

On 05/23/2013, the print version of the Orlando Sentinel .newspaper 
headline reported "Chechen shot amid questions in killi~gs.'' A second 
story on the front page reported "Picture of Todashev emerges." 

National rnd local video coverage of the shooting event was extensive. 

S~------ coordinated with FBIHQ National Press Office (NPO) to obtain 
the media video coverage of the event. Public Affairs Specialist~! ___ ~ 

._ ____ ~!at FBIHQ NPO was assigned to assemble the yideos and provide to. 
INSD for· eventual inclusion in the lA section of the file. 

- Media coverage is expected to continue. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

b6 
b7C 

TODASHEV-1048 



0J'flCIAJ,AECj)A'D. 
FD-302 (Rev. 5-8-10) 

- 1 of 1 -

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 

Documerrtparllcip1mbhlw11digitallysig11ed, 
All slgn.aluroe hii\/o tmenverlHedbye 
certill&d FBI inform111ion system. 

Date of entry 05/24/2013 

An open-source search provided background information on the 09/11/2011 
triple homicide in Waltham, Massachusets and is attached in the lA section 
of this file. 

Agent-involved shooting subject Ibragim Todashev was being interviewed 
regarding the captioned homicide at the time of the shooting incident . 

. . , 

UNCLASSIFIED//~O 

Investigationon 05/24/2013 at Orlando, Florida, United· States (, Other (Internet)) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D -·&7 Datcdratted 05/24/2013 ..-------------~----------------------
by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency: it and its contents a.re not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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OFFICIAL REC0!'IJ>. 
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Doci.:Me1'1partlcipt11'1t.,havedfg!tallysign6d. 

All s.gnature, h2~e blten venlled by a 
~FBl!llformaljgnsyttem. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~O 

_FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entty 

1
05/24/2013 

The following information was provided by Special Agent (SA) I I 
~-----~! Media Representative, Federal Bureau of Investigat~on (FBI),· 

Tampa Field Office. regarding the AaPnt-involved shooting incident on 
05/22/2013 at~I ___________ _.I Orlando, Florida 32819: 

The following public statements were issued by the Tampa Field Office 
in regard to the captioned Agent-involved shooting: 

05/22/2013: "We are currently responding to a shooting incident 
involving an-FBI Special Agent. The incident occurred iri Orlan90, Florida. 

The Agent was injured during an encounter with a suspect. The suspect is 
deceased. We do not have any further details at this time. We expect to 
have more information later this morning." 

05/22/2013: - "An FBI post-shooting incident review team has been 
dispatched from Washington, DC, and expected to arrive in Orlando within 24 
bo11rs The suspect has been identified as Ibragim Todashev, I I 

~------'I Orlando, FL." 

05/22/2013: "The FBI is currently reviewing a shooting incident 
involving an FBI Special Agent. Based on preliminary information, the 
incident occurred in Orlando, Florida during the early morning hours of 
5/22/2103. The agent along with two Massachusetts State Police troopers 
and other law enforcement personnel were interviewing an individual in 
connection with the Boston Marathon bombing investigation when a violent 
confrontation was initiated by the individual. During the confrontation, 
the individuai was killed and th~ agent sustained non-life threatening 
injuries. As this incident is under review, we have no furthir details at 
this time." 

05/22/2013 and 05/23/2013: "Since the FBI Shooting Incident Review 
Team (SIRT) from Washington, DC, ,is currently in Orlando and investigating 
the shooting incident we cannot comment any further at this time. They 
arrived yesterday morning and initiated their investigation. If anything 
changes I will let you know." 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigation on 05/24/2013~ at Orlando, Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-o-(o5 Datedrafted 05/24/2013 

by 
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UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

date of bi;th~! _____ _ was interviewed 

05/23/2013 

telephonically. After being·advised of the identity of the interviewing 
Agents and the nature of the interview, !provided the following 
information: 

·~l ____ ~IBureau EOD was I land he has worked nights in the 
Tampa Field Office radio room since approximately! He has been a 

Command and Tactical Operations Center (CTOC) Specialist, since the position 
was created in approximately! ! · 

._ ___ ~!was on duty the night-of !5/21/2!13 beginning at 10:15 PM. At 
approximately 12:30 AM on 05/22/2013 received a call from SA~! ___ _ 

___ _.!of the Orlando Resident Agepcy (ORA). ! !requested to speak 
with SSA! !and advised there had an incident in Orlando. 

c="Jatt~mpted to reach SsAI lat home. At ap~roximately 12:40 AM 
· L__J;eceived a call from SSA! !who advised the Boston Agents 

were interviewing a subject when the.subject pulled a knife·and the Boston 

Agent shot the ~ubject. I I also advised the A/SAC had been notified. 

ASAc~! ___ ~!called to make' sure CTOC had been notified~ At an 
undetermined time later, A/SAC Gees1in called and requested to be connected 
to SIOC. ! !attempted to call SIOC twice with no answer. A short time 
later, ~!_.._ __ !~t-r-ied again and made contact. ~l ____ lprovided the limited 

information he had to SIOC. 

At an undetermined time later, ERT Coordinator SSA! !called 
and requested a full Tampa ERT deployment to Orlando. LS_S_A~!~----,!~a-l~so 

called at some point and requested CTOC send a message to deploy his squad 

in support of the shooting. l~----~!also sent a Tampa Divisionwide E-mail 
for situational awareness of Tampa employees . 

._ ___ ~I advised the CTOC typically does not keep a log of incoming 
calls. 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Jnvestigationoh 05/23/2013 at ·Orlando, Florida, United States (Phone) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-o-4q Date drafted 0 5 / 2 3 / 2 01 3 

by 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
Doo.irn&rrtparticipantshavedlgitallysigt,ed. 
All aigoi,lunia have been venftedbya 
certified F81 infomia!Jon sr-rem, 

05/23/2013 

On 05/22/2013 at 8:06 AM,'·the Strategic Information and Operations 
Center (SIOC) at FBIHQ issued a SIOC Breaking News Notification. detailing 
the Agent-involved shooting in Orl~ndo, Florida. The UNet E-mail stated an 
Agent had been injured and the subject, identified in the messag~ as 
"Ibrahim Todashev, "· was deceased. 

A copy of the E-mail notification is attached in the lA section of this 
document. 

UNCLASSIFIED~ 

Investigation ori 05I23/2013 at ·orlando, Florida, United States (Email) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-o-54 Date drafted · 0 5 / 2 3 / 2 0 1 3 

byL _________ ___Jf-------------------------------
b6 
b7C 

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is 1,oaned to your agency; it and its conteTntsoareDn· oAt .SH. EV-1051 
to be distributed outside your agency. ~ 

I 



FD-302 (Rev 5-8-10) 
- 1 of 1 -

UNCLASSIFIED/~O 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECOAr> 
Document partieiperrts ~ digitally sigrl&U. 
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certified F81 Mformatiorl system. 

05/23/2013 

On 05/23/2013, Inspector-in-Charge (IIC) ._ _______ !and ASAC Robert 

C. Geeslin telephonically contacted the United States Attorney's Office 
(USAO)! !of the Middle District of Florida, and provided a 

briefing of the Agent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013 at 
! ! Orlando, Florida 32819. ~SAO! !provided a 

verbal deciination of prosecution to IIC! !regarding the 
Agent-involved shooting incident which occurred on 05/22/2013. 

On 05/23/2013, Inspector-in-Charge (IIC) !._ _______ !and ASAC Robert 
C. Geeslin telephonically coritacted Jeffrey Ashton, the Ninth Circuit State 
Attorney (SA) andprovided a briefing of the Agent-involved shooting which 
occurred on 05/22/2013 at I I Orlando, Florida 32819. 

SA Ashton requested the documentation of the facts from the Shooting 
Incident Response Review. SA Ashton advised the actions taken by the FBI 
on 05/22/2013, to include use of ~eadly force, were justified based on the 
briefing provided by IIcl I SA Ashton wanted the opportunity to 
review the documentation before providing the letter of declination. SA 
Ashton concluded with a verbal declination of prosecution and advised a 
formal declination letter would be issued once all the facts are reviewed~ 

UNCLASSIFIED//~O 

Investigationon 0_5/23/2013 at Maitland, Florida, United States (Phone) 

File# 297-HQ-Al271966-D-{o:Z. Date drafted 05/24/2013 
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This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 
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OFFICIAL RECORD 
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11/22/2013 
b6 Per FBI 
b7C 

'(u//~) Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting Incident Review of 
;::ln ArrPnt-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013 atl 

I Orlando, Florida 32819 I 

I 

(U) Assistant Inspector reviewed! 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigationon 11/08/2013 at Washington, District Of Columbia, United States (In Person) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D- 7is;, Date drafted 11/12/2013 
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 

OFFICIAL RECORD 
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AH '>igna!ures have been v~rified lly 3 
certlled FBI informat,on sys1mn. 

11/22/2013 

(U//~) Pursuant to an Inspection Division Shooting In-..,. ...... ....._.._....,.view 

b6 Per FBI 
b7C 

of an A ent-involved shooting which occurred on 05/22/2013 at 
Orlando, Florida 32819, 

bS Per CRM 

b6 Per FBI 
b7C 

(U) Assistant Inspector! I reviewed I 

I 

UNCLASSIFIED/~ 

Investigation on 11 /08 /2 013 at Washington, District Of Columbia, United States (In Person) 
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Businesrc··: \ 
Professi6nal 
!~\-:,,); 11'.:,ti(:1) . ··-: 1 ~- ... . .. 

Florida State Boxing Commission 
1940North Monrge Street 

Tallahassee, Florida·32399_101s 
Phorie: BS0.4l!8,85p0 • F~ 850.922.2249 

Ken L_awson, Secretary Rick .Scott, Governor 

Federal ID C~rdh9ld~r: 

Enclosed is your As~ociatiori of aoxing Commissions (ABC) Fe~eral Identification Card issue_d by tlie_ 
Florida State Boxing: Commission (Commission), · ,, 

)'our Federal ID Card includes your Federal Pr'ofe_ssional Fighter Registrati_on number. The Florida· 
. .State Boxing Commi?sion requires each professional fighter.to present their ID card at each weigh-in. 
If the Commissiqn Represe_ntativ~ is unable to verify that:your Fede rat ID registration number is cµrrent 
prior to the ev~nt thi_s might restilt in the canc_ellation of your match. 

If you mi_splace or lo$e:yqur ID .card you can qbtc:1in a duplicate carcfpy comple_tjng to·e Federal ID 
application and fee. The feedor boxing/k!ckboxirig is $.15.00 a"rid.th~ fee for mixed martial arts is· 
$25,00. The application can be downloaded from the C.or'ntnission'.s web site at: 
www:myfloridalicense.com. Please allow two weeks for·processing. · 

Pl_e~se contact the Commission at 850.488.8500 if you have any questions. 

_Sinc_erely, · , _( 

~(M- ~~~-- . . ..... . 
Thomas Molloy . • /cf) 

) Executive Direcfor _ ( f""'. . · 
Florida $tate Boxing Commission 

lBRAGiM A. TODAS.i:I.EV 
!<El># i 29-225 

000 09/22/1985 

HEIGHT 5'9" 

'WEIGIIT.155 

Hair BLACK 

Eyrs BROWN 

Eiipires 08/08/2017 

Issued by the-t'lorida State Bo~ing.Commission 

. LICENSE EFFl_(;fENTL Y. REGQLATE FAl8L Y. 
WVVWMYFLORIOALICENSE.COM · 
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STATE OF .FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PRQFESSIO~ REGULA!'._ION 

. FLORIDA STATE BOXING COMMISSION 
1940 NORT.H MONROE STREET 
NORTHWOOD. CENTRE . 
TALLAHASSEE FL 32399-1016 

.TODA~HEY; lBRAGIM A. 
4402 SUNVILLAGE BLVD 
J,CISS~E . . . . . ·FL. 34146 

Congratulations! With this· license you become one ofthe nearly orie million 
Floricjians licensed by the Department of.Business and Protessional Regulation. 

· Our professionals ·and businessesrange from architects to yacht br.~kers, from 
boxers to barbeque restaurants,_and they keep Florlda's,economy strong. 

Every day wework fo·improv·e the way we do business in order to serve you better. 
For information about our services, please log onto www.myfloridalicense.coin. 
There-you can find more information about.our divisions and the regulations that 
impact you, subscribe to department newsletters and learn more about:the 
Departmer,it's initiatives; . 

. Qur mission at t!ie Department is: Licerise Efficiently, Regulate Fairly. We 
constantly st~ve}o §er:v~ Y.9U.~etter so that you ~an serv~ your customers .. 
Than~ you for qomg bu§mess 1n Flqncja, and corigratula11ons on your.new license! 

DETACH HERE· 

STA T,E OF FLORIDA 

~50..,499..,.9500 

·sTATE oF Fi.ORti:>A 
D&PARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND 

PROFESS·IONAL REGULATION 

PART4184 _08/14/12 120965661 

·PARTICIPANT. 
TODASHEV ,. IBRAGJ:M A 

MMA PARTICIPANT 

IS LICENSED undex the provision's of Ch.548 FS. 
Expiration date: DEC 31, 2012 •Ll2081400170 

r 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL RESULATION 
FLORIDA STATE BOXING COMMISSION . . 

SEQ#Ll20i:l1400170 

-•!.ICENSE NBR I I ~,_P_AR_. _T_4_1_.8_4 __ . --,--------'-------'-----------

The MMA -PARTICIPANT · · 
Named below rs LICENSED 
Uhder the provisions.of Chapter _548 FS. 
Expirat,i:on date: DEC 31,. 2012 

TODASHEV, IBRAGIM A 
4402 SUNVILLAGE BLVD 
KISSIMMEE 

RICK SCOTT 
GOVERNOR 

FL 34746 

DISPLAY AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

KEN LAWSON 
SECRETARY 

~~~E; 
TODASHEV-107 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: I rag1mTo as ev 
Attachments: TODASHEV, IBRAGIM FEID.pdf; TODASHEV, IBRAGIM Participant's license.pdf 

Good afternoon, 

Attached is the copy of the license you requested, if you have any questions please call or email me. 

Thcmks 

·Florida Boxing.Commission 
Fax: 859-?22-2249 
Phone: 850-488-8500 
www.:myfloridalicense.com 

. 1 . 

1 
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~:lorida.f',epartm1::1t:'!,:_ 

BusJne~~th· 
Professional 
Re~Julation 

Ken ~wson, Sec::retary 

January 30, '2QJ4 

RE::Request for Yerification·of Licensure:. 
Profession:, 61.01 ·~ Participant 

Dear Sif.6r Madam:· 

Florida•State Boxing Commission 
1940 North Monroe Street: 

Tallahassee, Flbrlda:32399;'1016 
Phonei Bq0'.488:8?00. :. Faxi.$50:~22:2249 

R.ick Si::ott, Governor 

The Florida State Boxing Commission heireby· certiffes thalthei li~en:sure information pres,1:~nted is true 
~·~~ . . 

Name: lbragim A T;odaShev 
Profession: Pr.ofe§sJon~IMixed IY(artial Acts 
License Number: PART 4184 
$tatlJs: f=xpired 

' Licensure. Date: 08/14i2012 
Expjr~tion Date: 12/31/2012 
Cornmf:lrits:· NIA 

Plec;1$e feel fr.E3e,fo ~ori!?t<fthf:l Boxing C9mmissionis office, if you have. additional q't.iestiohs. 

~

in ·erely,_ 
·,u,} /1 .J,,.J . . . ~"'µ..•(?j[fl(Yi//1--' 

L ha Hurtado 

A _ _ I , I I I _. J, 
f:-'dV-b.A/V" ~o . 

Go,ve~nment l\n~lyst II 
Florida State Boxih,9 Ct:>"mmissiori 



:STATE OF: FLORIDA 
DEl?AR'l'MENT OF BUSINEs·s: ANP PROFESSIONAL REGULATION 

. FLORIDA. STATE; BOXING . COMMI:SSION 
1940'NOR'l'HMONROE STREET 

,NORTHWOOD CENTRE 
TALLAHASSEE FL 3:t3.99-1016 

TODASBEV, ·I·BRAGIM A, 
4·402 SUNVILLAGE BLVD 
KISS~E ..... , . . F.L ;3474~ 

Congratulations! With this license you be~nie one.oftt)e,nearly one mi!Hon 
F.loridians·licensed by the Department of Business :and Prof~sipnal Regulation. 
Our .professionals and busine,sses range.from architects to yacht .brpkers, .from 
boxers to'barbeque restaurants, and they keep Florida's.economy strong. 

Everydaywe work.fo,1mprove the way we do·bui;iness in order to serve you betteL 
For information about·our·services; please,log,onto·:www,myf'loridalicense.com. 

· There you canJlnd more, information about 01,fr divisions:and the regulations that 
impact.you/subscribe to department:newsletters and learn more ·about the 
Department's initiatives. · · 

Our missiorfat-the·Departmenf'is: License Efficiently, Regulate Fairly, We 
coi)star,itly .stdv~, tQ ~erJe you better so th9(yo~ -~" s~rJe youf custqr11e~s. 
TMi1~ ybt.i fqr dCJing,!:ii:isi~ess in Flo'rjda, c1.rid. co~gr,atulati9ns cih. yci!,ir'nf!iv,, licens·e!, 

DETACH.HERE 

STATE OF FLQ~IOA 

sso~4aa-a·soo 

. s;rATE,OFfL'.(?~IDA.. 
DEPAB.TMENT OF BtJsj:NESS AND 
·~'ROFESSIONAL REGULATION 

PART.4'i84 .· 08/14/12 120065661 

PARTIC::i:PANT ' 
TODASHEV', IBRAGIM. A, 

MMA PARTICIPANT. 

,I,s LI):]1:NSEb •under the provisions of. Ch.548 .FS. 
'Expiration· date: DEC 31! 2012 L120814.00170 

DEPARTMENT. OF BUSINESS AND.PROFESSIONAL.REGULATION 
. . .... 'FLORIDA. STATE BOXING COMMISSION 

.. SEQ#·t12os14001.10 
-LICENSE·NBR 
~•P_AR ___ T_4_1_84-. ---------------,,,----,-,---------1 

The MMA PARTICIPANT . 
'Named be1ow· I.S; 'LICENSED 
U:n~E!r th$ p:rovi,Si(?llS of Clli:ipter .54~ FS; 
Exp±ration .date: DE.C 31 1 2012 

TODASHEV, IBRAG.IM ~ 
4402 SUNVILLAGE BLVD 
KI$SIMMEE' ' 

RICK'. SCOT.T 
GOVERNOR 

I 

.FL 3.4746 

QISPLAYA_S REQUIRE:D BYLAW 

KEN LAWSON 
'SECRETAR:r 

TODASHEV-1073 



'Fiorida D2p,1rtrnc-nF( 
. .. . . ,,._·,~ 
@ USI ne~r(l)· 
Profess1cJA-a.l. 
Re_guJatton 
Ken Lawson, Secr~tary 

RE: Request for Verification _of Li censure 
Profession: 6) 17 -Federal Identification C.ard- MMA 

Dear Sir or Madiun: 

Florida· ~taWBo~hg ~cim.mi_ssion 
1940 North Monroe Street' 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1016 
Phohe:·850.488:8500 •·Fa,x: 850,922,2249 

Rick Scott, Governor 

The Florida State Boxing Coiruiiission hereby certifies that the licensure_ information Jresent~dis true 
arid correct. · 

N~nre: lbr.agim.A Todashev 
Profession: Federal Identification Card - Profess1onal Mixed Martial Arts 
License Number: .106-992 
Status.: Current· 
i..;fcensur~ Pat_e:· 04/27/2009' Issueg by N(;:w H~pspjre BC>xing/Wrestling Commission 
Expn:atio:P: l)~fe: 04/27/2014 
Coinments:N/A 

Pfease feel free to contact the Boxing Commission's office~ ff you have ~dditional q11~siions, 

s~·n_c __ el~ . 
.. · 6 

. . ' 

Lina: H utta:do 
Qovei::rur.ient ;\11alys.t II 
Floi;ida St~te Be>xing Comm_ission 

. ) 

LICENSE EFFICIENTLY. REGULATE FAIRLY. 
WWW .MYFLORIDALICENSE:COM 



\. 

lBRAGIM. A. '.fODA'8HEV 
FED#1~992 

SSN \~~-X\·-3_6§.f 

QOB 0?J22~t985 

HEIGH:J' 5'9'' 

WEIGHTl55 

Hair BLACK 

Ey~ BllO\VN 

Expires 04/27/2014 

:--.HIO:--.\I. Sr.,1.1.·ro 

[~sued l>y,the Florida Stall' Bo\iQg C!)mmission 



'~ ~- .-~~~~ 
~~ey1-~~/~ 

&~:~911~ --~~t:9~/ 
Ill~~. l/2/~tfo/d",J' ----. g;~·fog.J12?.J2~t1 / -

·Deval L. Patrick 
Governor 

~~ Y/1'//'.f?-$?/!2 
'~ (d'/7) l.?~t?t?/.9 

:Andrf!a J. ~.if>r.al 
Secretary 

~-#1444,-?">lr/4 
Janu11cy 29, ·2014 

Thomas.C3. (;atzunl11,P,E. 
Commissioner 

I 
I _ _ .. I 

State,Att9111,ey;~ Office - 9th Gir. 
P.O. Boxf 613 
Orlando, FL 32802 

Re: Public Records:Request 

Deatl .... ________ _. 

''fhe;Departnient of Public Safety {"Depafunent"}teceive,d your· ptiblic'.records request dated 
Janwµy 27, 2014 and it has been referred to1me for resporis'e. You· the following infotrnation: "Any 
'{zcense~ whicharef/eldby thefollowingnamediindividual,: by-which were:grantedto him by the 
Masscich'ljSetts St'ate A{hle,fic Commission; regardless of whether or not the saidlicense(s). are currently 
acOv,e.: _Mr. Ib,ragim.Toqasl;zev. 1

' 

:Ertc,lo~,e<:i'pl_easef1nd ·d9~wnents re,sp9:qsive to your. request. 

Very truly yours;. 

Assistant General Counsel 
C:P".r/tal. 
Enclosures 

S:\Legal_\Pu~lic Records ReqiJests\2014 Requests\Jailuary\Edwards Resr>onse 01292014,doc 
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07/18/11 p:34:PM . I I 6172S42222 . ,02 

: : ', ·: /subniis~ion-.:or:this)f,p}ica.tidn,, .The·fuidical:reccii'.di(i·evie\v(id .b:f.physici~n ,ntiist .be' attii~hed)d)h~iiJ~:rti({ 
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Deval L. Patrick 
Gqverrior 
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~-madd-,r~ 

febrl!ary 7, 2014 

StateAttomey's Office-9 th Cir .. 
P.O. Boxl673 
Orlando, 'FL 32802 

Re: Public R~cor.ds Request 

,Dear .... l _______ ____. 

Andrea J. Cabral 
Secr:etary 

Ttioirias G. Gatzunis/ P ,e. 
. . Comrr,ls~lone~ . . . 

larn.writtngto s\1pplenient our January 29, 2014res·poiise to your public records requested.dated 
January 27, 2014 in which you requested the following infonnation:· '''Any licenses which are-held by the 
following named individual,' by which were granted to him by the .(t.,fqssachusetts State Athletic 
Commission, regardless of whether or.not the said./icense(s) are cu,;,,ently active:. Mr. Jbragim 
Todashev." 

Enclosed please find supplemental documents responsive to yourrequest. 

CET/tal. 
Enclosures 

I veor ,mlli ,,.1,; 

Assistant General Coun~el 
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Document pairtlci;nmts hJ~e dig:tally signed. 
AU signatures haive been venf>edtrya 
certified FOi inforrm:ibon 'system. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
Date of entry 03/19/2014 

The following investigation was conducted by Assistant Inspector (AI) 
_________ __.! on 11/25/2013 at Washington, D.C.: Ninth Judicial 

Circuit of Florida State Attorney Office's (SAO's) Chief Investigator 
._ __________ I provided AIi I with a CD-ROM (CD). The CD 

contained eight different transcripts of interviews conducted by the SAO. 

The CD is included in the lA section of the investigative file. 

UNCLASSIFIED//~ 

Investigation on 11/25/2013 at Washington, District Of Columbia, United States (Mai 1) 

File# 297-HQ-A1271966-D Date drafted O 3/19/2014 

by L...-----------------------------------------
T his document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not 

to be distributed outside your agency. 
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